
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
TUESDAY, 15 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
10.30 am, COUNCIL CHAMBER – COUNTY  HALL, LEWES  
 
++PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING WILL BE TAKING PLACE REMOTELY++  
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillors Angharad Davies (Chair) Charles Clark, Michael Ensor, Kathryn 

Field, Roy Galley, Tom Liddiard, Laurie Loe, Jim Sheppard, John Ungar (Vice 
Chair), Trevor Webb and Francis Whetstone  
 

 Mr Trevor Cristin, Diocese of Chichester Representative  
Mr Simon Parr, Roman Catholic Diocese Representative 
Mrs Nicola Boulter, Parent Governor Representative 
Mr Matthew Jones, Parent Governor Representative 
 

 
 
A G E N D A  
 
1   Minutes of the previous meeting: 12 March 2020  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2   Apologies for absence   

 
3   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosures by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
4   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 

 
5   East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership (ESSCP) - Serious Case Reviews  

(Pages 7 - 22) 
Report by Independent Chair of East Sussex Local Safeguarding Children Board 
 

6   Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) 2021/22  (Pages 23 - 106) 
Report by Chief Executive  
 

7   People Scrutiny Committee Work Programme  (Pages 107 - 120) 
Report by Assistant Chief Executive  
 

8   Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report  (Pages 121 - 174) 
Report by Independent Chair, East Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board  
 

9   Any other items previously notified under agenda item 4   
 

 



 

 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent  
LEWES BN7 1UE 7 September 2020 
 
 
 
 
Contact 
Stuart McKeown, Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
Tel: 01273 481583 
Email: stuart.mckeown@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.html 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.html


 
 
 

 

PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the People Scrutiny Committee held at County Hall, Lewes on 12 
March 2020. 
 

 
PRESENT    Councillors Charles Clark, Angharad Davies (Chair), Michael Ensor, 

Kathryn Field, Roy Galley, Tom Liddiard, Laurie Loe, Jim Sheppard, 
John Ungar (Vice Chair) and Francis Whetstone.  

 
   

Lesley Hurst, Assistant Director (Business Development), Diocese of 
Chichester Representative 

  Simon Parr, Catholic Diocese Representative 
  Matthew Jones, Parent Governor Representative  
  Nicola Boulter, Parent Governor Representative 

 
 
LEAD MEMBERS      Councillor Carl Maynard, Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health 

Councillor Bob Standley, Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, 
Special Educational Needs and Disability 

 
ALSO PRESENT  Stuart Gallimore, Director of Children’s Services 

 Keith Hinkley, Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
 Fiona Wright, Assistant Director, Education and ISEND 
 Stuart McKeown, Senior Democratic Services Advisor 
 

 
59 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
59.1 The Committee RESOLVED to agree the minutes as a correct record. 
 
60 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
60.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Trevor Webb and Trevor Cristin, 
Diocese of Chichester representative. 
 
61 DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
61.1 There were none. 
 
62 URGENT ITEMS  
 
62.1 There were none. 
 
63 RECONCILING POLICY, PERFORMANCE AND RESOURCES (RPPR) 2020/21  
 
63.1  The Committee discussed its input into the Reconciling Policy, Performance and 
Resources process and possible future improvements. The Committee’s comments included:  
 

•  Members welcomed the process for consulting with the scrutiny committee over 
its priorities for the use of the additional one-off funding for 2020/2021.  In particular, the 
Committee noted that of the five top priorities identified by the People Scrutiny RPPR 
Board, four were subsequently agreed by Cabinet.   
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

•  Members also discussed the one-off funding options which Cabinet had not 
approved and noted the possibility that provision may be made for the following revenue 
projects within the Priority Outcomes and Transformation Reserve: 
 

 Ref L – ASC Home Care Commissioning 

 Ref I - ASC Assessment & Care Management journey 

 Ref J - ASC Behavioural Insight 

 Ref K - ASC Bedded Care 

 Ref M - ASC/CS IT Care Management System 
 
In response to a query about the process for making decisions about whether to proceed 
with any of the above options, the Director of Adult Social Care clarified that approval 
would be subject to a business case which identified clear benefits.  Members were also 
informed that the ability to take forward the above options would be dependent on other 
areas of activity and the outcomes of further integration work with the NHS.      
 

63.2 Members particularly welcomed the decision to approve funding in support of the ‘No 
Wrong Door’ option for Children’s Services (ref E in Appendix 1 to the covering report).    Given 
the importance of the initiative and in response to a request from the Committee, the Director of 
Children’s Services undertook to provide at an appropriate time an update on progress with 
implementation. 
 
63.3 The Committee RESOLVED to note the report and request that the Director of Children’s 
Services provide an update for the Committee at an appropriate time on progress with the ‘No 
Wrong Door’ initiative. 
 
64 PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
64.1 The Committee discussed its Work Programme which is comprised of a number of 
ongoing scrutiny reviews, reference groups and planned reports.   Set out below is an overview 
of the key items discussed.  
 
Initial Scoping Reviews 
 
School Exclusions 
 
64.2 The Committee agreed at its meeting in June 2019 to appoint an Initial Scoping Board to 
explore issues relating to the high rate of school exclusions in East Sussex.  Having discussed 
the Board’s findings, the Committee agreed to proceed with a formal scrutiny review based on 
the broad lines of enquiry set out in the report appended to the work programme item.   It was 
therefore RESOLVED to appoint: 

 
1. Councillors Field, Liddiard and Loe and Matthew Jones and Nicola Boulter 

(Parent Governor Representatives) to conduct a review of issues relating to the 
high rate of school exclusions in East Sussex; and 

2. Matthew Jones to act as Chair of the Review Board. 
 
Suggested Topics 
 
64.3   The Committee discussed developments relating to the coronavirus national emergency 
and the challenges facing the Adult Social Care and Children’s Services departments.    The 
Committee therefore agreed to add to its work programme an option to consider local responses 
to the national emergency which could then be explored further at an appropriate time. 
 
 
Scrutiny Reference Groups 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
Educational Attainment and Performance Scrutiny Reference Group 
 
64.4   Councillor Roy Galley informed the Committee that at its meeting in January the 
reference group were provided with an update on provisional attainment results for the 
academic year 2018/19 and a briefing on data relating to the Early Years, Primary and 
Secondary phases.  Councillor Galley comments included highlighting the ‘very good 
performance’ in Early Years and some of the challenges identified by the Children’s Services 
Department within the primary and secondary phases.  
 
Health and Social Care Integration Programme Reference Group 
 
64.5   Councillor Davies informed the Committee that the reference group had been provided 
with a briefing in January and that the Director of Adult Social Care had undertaken to provide a 
further briefing in April. 
 
Strategic Commissioning Review of Early Help - Scrutiny Reference Group 
 
64.6   The Committee were informed that the reference group met in January.   The primary 
purpose of the meeting was to provide Members with an update on the Department’s 
negotiations with alternative service providers (with regard to the de-designation proposals 
considered by the Lead Member for Children and Families on 7 October 2019).  In response to 
queries raised by some Members, the Director provided additional detail regarding individual 
negotiations.   
 
64.7    The Committee RESOLVED to amend the work programme in line with the items agreed 
in paragraphs 63.3, 64.2 and 64.3 above. 
 
65 STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)  
 
65.1 Councillor Roy Galley, as Chair of the Standing Advisory Committee on Religious 
Education (SACRE), introduced the report and highlighted several items for the attention of the 
Committee.   This included discussing take-up levels of Religious Education (RE) for both the 
GCSE and short courses and related to that, SACRE’s concern that some schools may not be 
meeting the required standard for the provision of RE.    
 
65.2   In response, the Director of Children’s Services discussed the evolving national situation 
and the drive for more school-led and school-supported events in aid of the leadership and 
teaching of RE.  Within this context the Committee were informed that whilst the Children’s 
Services Department can provide some limited support, it is ultimately for schools to decide how 
they approach the provision of RE.  In response to a further question about the funding of 
SACRE, the Committee were also informed that it is the role of the East Sussex School’s Forum 
to determine the level of funding for SACRE. 
 
65.3 The Committee also discussed its views on the importance of helping young people to 
develop an understanding and tolerance of different faiths and the importance of RE in 
supporting this.  Related to this, and in response to a question about whether it had become 
more difficult for RE to be selected as a GCSE subject, the Committee were informed that some 
key national developments might have some impact on take-up levels in future.  These 
developments include, for example, the implementation in September 2019 of Ofsted’s revised 
‘education inspection framework’ which requires schools to offer a broad and balanced 
curriculum and deliver a breadth of experience.  Many schools are adjusting to the implications 
of this requirement against the backdrop of the continuing importance of the English 
Baccalaureate (EBacc).  Such adjustments could in future lead many schools to re-evaluate the 
value of RE, which in turn might contribute to improving take-up rates.   
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

65.4 The Committee RESOLVED to note the work of SACRE in supporting schools and 
improving the quality of religious education, especially in maintained secondary schools. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 12.28 pm. 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

Report to: People Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

15 September 2020 

By: Reg Hooke, Independent Chair of East Sussex Local Safeguarding 
Children Board 
 

Title: East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership Serious Case Reviews 
 

Purpose: To brief the Committee on the findings and learning from published 
Serious Case Reviews 2019/20 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The  Committee is recommended to comment on and note the findings and learning from 
Serious Case Reviews 

 

1 Background 

1.1 The Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) has the statutory responsibility for 
undertaking and publishing Serious Case Reviews (SCRs). The LSCB came under new 
governance arrangements in September 2019 following the publication of Working Together 2018 
and became the East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership (ESSCP), which did not change 
membership or process significantly in East Sussex. The independent chair has also remained 
the same.  

1.2 The work of the Partnership links to the priority outcome of Keeping Vulnerable People 
Safe in the Council Plan and informs the Pan-Sussex Child Protection and Safeguarding 
Procedures.  

1.3 The Annual Report and Business Plan of the ESSCP  are presented annually to People 
Scrutiny Committee by the Independent Chair and when it came to the Committee in 2014 it was 
agreed that the findings and learning from published reviews would be presented to the 
Committee on an annual basis, this report covers reports published in the year 2019/20. 

1.4 The Lead Member for Children and Families is a participating observer on the ESSCP. 

1.5 The LSCB was independent of the Council and had the responsibility for scrutinising and 
challenging multi-agency safeguarding practice. Under the new ESSCP arrangements, Sussex 
Police, ESCC and the CCG have the statutory responsibility for the safeguarding children 
arrangements in East Sussex. The SCR reports have been submitted to the Department for 
Education, Ofsted and to the National Panel of Experts for serious incidents and have been 
published on the East Sussex LSCB website. Under the new arrangements the process will be 
the same with SCRs becoming known as Safeguarding Children Practice Reviews. 

 

2 Supporting information 

2.1 Chapter 4 of Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018 (Working Together 2018)  
sets out the requirements for undertaking safeguarding practice reviews in line with section 
16C(1) of the Children Act 2004 (as amended by the Children and Social Work Act 2017) where a 
child dies or has been seriously harmed and the case: 


 highlights or may highlight improvements needed to safeguard and promote the welfare of 

children, including where those improvements have been previously identified  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/779401/Working_Together_to_Safeguard-Children.pdf


 highlights or may highlight recurrent themes in the safeguarding and promotion of the 
welfare of children  

 

 highlights or may highlight concerns regarding two or more organisations or agencies 
working together effectively to safeguard and promote the welfare of children  

 

 is one which the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel have considered and 
concluded a local review may be more appropriate  

 
2.2 Since 2013 there has been a national panel of independent experts to advise LSCBs 
about the initiation and publication of SCRs. The role of the panel is to support LSCBs in ensuring 
that appropriate action is taken to learn from serious incidents in all cases where the statutory 
SCR criteria are met and to ensure that those lessons are shared through publication of final 
SCR reports. The panel also reports to the Government their views of how the SCR system is 
working. A new National Panel was convened under the new arrangements under Working 
Together 2018 and commissions both national reviews and thematic reviews. 
 
2.3 If SCRs make recommendations for individual agencies then this leads to an action plan 
that is scrutinised and signed off by the ESSCP. The action identified will be immediately 
addressed and does not wait for publication. Learning is disseminated to relevant practitioners 
and training is updated to reflect the learning. The ESSCP provides training on Learning from 
Reviews that covers both the local and national context. 

2.4 East Sussex LSCB published one  SCR in 2019/20 in respect of a child known as Child T. 
Published in June 2019, the SCR concerns the services provided for a  young man aged 18 who 
died in hospital due to complications associated with his type 1 diabetes which had been 
diagnosed when he was 13 years old. The case identifies significant neglect both in his care and 
in how agencies worked together to safeguard his welfare. The case was initially considered by 
the Adult Safeguarding Board but was appropriately referred to the LSCB as most of his care 
took place as a child.  

2.5  The report attached at Appendix 1 provides a brief summary, key learning and summary 
of recommendations from the SCR on Child T (the full report can be found on the ESSCP 
website). 

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1 This report has been provided in order to brief members on key learning and findings from 
the East Sussex LSCB SCR. 

 

 

REG HOOKE 
Independent Chair of East Sussex ESSCP  

 

Contact 
Douglas Sinclair, Head of Children’s Safeguarding 
Tel. No. 01273 481289 
Email: douglas.sinclair@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

 
 

Page 8



Learning from Reviews
Child T

Douglas Sinclair, Head of Children’s Safeguarding 

November 2019

P
age 9

A
ppendix 1



Introduction

• Sensitivity of the content

• Hindsight bias

• Move towards practitioner and manager involvement

• Increased focus on the ‘why’ and not the ‘what’

• No blame culture

• Purpose is to identify the learning to improve practice

• Seek a window on the wider system

P
age 10



Child T

• Published June 2019

• Available on the ESSCP website - ESSCP Case Reviews

P
age 11



Child T

• Child T died in hospital when he was 18 years old

• He lived with his Mother and was an only child

• Child T had type 1 diabetes, diagnosed at aged 13

• He was not in education, employment or training

• History of lack of engagement with diabetes treatment

• History of missed appointments

• Had been in hospital for three months

• Neglect and self neglect were identified

• His death was sudden and unexpected

P
age 12



Learning areas

Child’s Lived Experience

• Prior to admission to hospital there was limited consideration of 
the child’s lived experience when professionals were working 
with the family. Trust was placed on what Mother was saying 
without considering the impact on Child T, and without speaking 
to him directly about his life.

• Mother’s avoidant behaviour was not effectively identified or 
challenged. This was a risk in a case where Child T had a 
potentially life-threatening health condition. 

P
age 13



Transition

• At times of transition there can be increased risk for children with 
serious health needs. However it provides a good opportunity to seek 
and share information, reassess, re-engage and put plans in place for 
the child’s future care and support. 

• Professionals need to remember that a person is a child until they are 
18 years old. Appropriate safeguarding supervision should be sought 
and children’s procedures followed.

P
age 14



Persistent DNA/WNB and neglect

• Despite processes being in place to identify neglect when a child is 
DNA/WNB, they were not used in this case, and a lack of professional 
curiosity and ownership of the case led to on-going neglect of/by 
Child T. 

• All 16 and 17 year olds being treated within adult health services 
should be subjected to children’s safeguarding procedures if the need 
arises.

P
age 15



Persistent DNA/WNB and neglect

• Schools and colleges should seek information from health 
professionals and share concerns they have for a child’s health. 
It is noted that NICE guidelines place the emphasis on health 
professionals, however education staff should also take the 
initiative and responsibility. A joined up approach is essential. 

• Non-health professionals should understand more about the 
impact of diabetes on children, including the links between 
mood and blood sugar levels and the wider emotional impact of 
the condition.

P
age 16



Self-neglect and capacity

• There is a need for all professionals to understand inherent 
jurisdiction and when it should be considered in relation to 
safeguarding concerns involving self neglect and coercion and 
control in adults. 

• There is a need for robust application of the Mental Capacity 
Act with service users who are between 16-18 years old. 

P
age 17



Plans and working together

• Any unexpected death of a person, where neglect or abuse may have 
been a contributory factor, should be referred to the police. 

• Where there is more than one agency involved with a child and there 
are concerns, the professionals involved have a responsibility to 
initiate a plan that is written down and reviewed as necessary that 
outlines the expectations of professionals and family. 

P
age 18



Plans and working together

• Where there are concerns regarding self-neglect, the hospital 
multi-disciplinary team (MDT) has a responsibility to implement 
the Safeguarding and Self Neglect procedures at the earliest 
opportunity and to consider the involvement of an independent 
advocate where coercion and control is suspected or known. 
Mechanisms and processes to enable this need to be 
considered and applied including provision by the MDT of case 
specific multi-agency planning and risk assessment meetings to 
develop an action plan to mitigate identified risks.

P
age 19



Conclusions

• ‘Shocking’ level of neglect/self-neglect

• lack of willingness to accept support, but also the lack of professional 

persistence and awareness

• In hospital there was insufficient awareness of the gravity of this 

case 

• Need for communication from and to health professionals

• 16-17 year old children

P
age 20



Recommendations

• The report is shared with the ESSAB. 

• The ESSCB and ESSAB must ensure that the learning from this review 
is extensively shared and, through a quality assurance process, ensure 
that the required improvements have been made. This could include 
the key single agency learning identified in the IMRs. 

• That the ESSCB makes a formal request to the Department of Health 
that the NICE guidance regarding service provision for children with 
diabetes is reviewed to ensure that education providers are also 
invited to take responsibility and the initiative in ensuring that 
appropriate diabetes education and practical information is in place 
for school and college age children. 

P
age 21



Recommendations

• That the ESSCB makes a formal request to the Department of 
Education that the guidance for supporting children with medical 
needs in schools is reviewed to include clarity regarding the need for 
education providers to take responsibility and the initiative in 
ensuring that appropriate diabetes education and practical 
information is in place in school and colleges.

• The ESSCB and its partner agencies to ensure that any child with a 
serious health condition has a written down multi-agency plan to 
coordinate and review the child’s health care and support needs.

P
age 22



 

Report to:  People Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of meeting:
  

15 September 2020 
 

By: Chief Executive 
 

Title: Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) 
 

Purpose: To provide an overview of the Council’s business and financial planning 
process (Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources) and the 
Committee’s ongoing role in this process. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   

The Committee is recommended to: 

(1) Agree key areas of interest/lines of enquiry for scrutiny and to ensure these are reflected 
in the Committee’s future work programme; 
 
(2) Agree what further information is required for consideration by the Committee at its 
November meeting; and 
 
(3) Establish a scrutiny review board to consider the developing Portfolio Plans, Medium 
Term Financial Plan and savings proposals as they emerge in December and to submit 
Scrutiny’s final comments on them to Cabinet in January 2021. 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The State of the County report was agreed by Cabinet on 14 July 2020 and is an important 
annual milestone in the Council’s integrated business and financial planning process known as 
Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR). It sets out the current context and 
provides an overview of the latest position in preparation for more detailed planning for the 2021/22 
financial year and beyond. A copy of the report is available at State of the County. 
 
1.2 The State of the County report gives the current understanding of how the Council will need 
to reset its services to deal with the future, as we learn to live with the reality of a world with 
COVID-19 and the significant impact this has on people’s lives; manage the legacy impacts of the 
initial wave of infection; and respond to potential new waves of infection for the foreseeable future. 
The RPPR process, bringing together our policy, business and financial planning and risk 
management, provides the vehicle for the Council’s service and financial recovery and reset. 
 
1.3 The financial uncertainty created by the impact of COVID-19, coupled with continued 
uncertainty around future levels of Government funding, has made providing a clear picture of the 
Council’s financial position very difficult. Consequently, a revised Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) was not included in this year’s State of the County report and Cabinet agreed to receive 
further reports in the autumn when there is greater certainty about the impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic on East Sussex and future resources. Cabinet also agreed to review and reset the Core 
Offer in light of the current circumstances and to review the Council’s priority and delivery 
outcomes; scrutiny may wish to contribute to this process.  
 
1.4 When the 2020/21 balanced budget was approved by Full Council on 11 February 2020, 
the deficit on the MTFP to 2022/23 was £9.322m. Updating the MTFP for normal factors (such as 
inflation and an additional year) prior to the impact of COVID-19, the position would have been a 
deficit budget position by 2023/24 of £8.123m. This provides a starting point for a revised MTFP 
which will be presented later in the year. 
 

2. Scrutiny engagement in RPPR 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=4363&Ver=4


 

2.1 Scrutiny's contribution to the RPPR process is vitally important and is threaded through all 
scrutiny work.  The insight and evidence gathered through previous and ongoing scrutiny work is 
drawn together and enhanced in specific RPPR sessions which will, ultimately, enable each 
Scrutiny Committee to provide commentary and recommendations to be taken into account by 
Cabinet and Council before a final decision is taken on the updated Council Plan, budget and 
MTFP early in 2021.  

2.2 Scrutiny’s task this year has been made more difficult due to the levels of financial 
uncertainty and impact on service delivery as a result of COVID-19.  

2.3 The September 2020 Scrutiny Committees have a particular focus on reviewing current 
service and budget information as well as existing savings plans to ensure a full understanding of 
the current context and future pressures. 

2.4 The following additional attachments are provided to support the Committee in these tasks: 

 Appendix 1 is an extract from the existing Savings Plans that were agreed by Council in 

February 2020, for the services that are within the remit of the Committee. These will need to 

be reviewed in the light of the changed circumstances. 

 Appendix 2 contains the current Portfolio Plans for the functions within the Committee’s 

remit. 

 Appendix 3 contains extracts from the Financial Budget Summary 2020/21 for the areas 

within the remit of this Committee to provide the ‘big budget picture’ for revenue (the full 

document is at Financial Budget Summary) and the latest capital programme 2020/21 - 

2022/23 (extract from the State of the County report).  

2.5 Based on the information in this report, and Members’ wider accumulated knowledge and 
evidence, the Committee is invited to identify any key areas of interest or lines of enquiry which it 
will pursue through subsequent RPPR sessions and/or its wider work programme. This includes 
any additional information required for the November meeting. 

2.6 The Scrutiny Committee is asked to agree the membership of its RPPR scrutiny review 
board, which will then consider the developing MTFP, Portfolio Plans and savings proposals in 
more detail as they emerge. 

2.7 The November 2020 Scrutiny Committees can consider any additional information which 
was requested in September and any updated information reported to Cabinet during the autumn. 
Further additions or refinements to the Committee’s ongoing work programme can also be 
considered. 

2.8 The RPPR scrutiny review boards meet in December 2020 to agree detailed comments 
and any recommendations on the emerging Portfolio Plans and savings proposals to be put to 
Cabinet on behalf of their parent Scrutiny Committees. The Chairs of all the Scrutiny Committees 
are invited to attend all the scrutiny review boards. 

2.9 The March 2021 Scrutiny Committees review the process and their input into the RPPR 
process and receive feedback on how scrutiny input has been reflected in final plans. Any issues 
arising can be reflected in the future committee work programme. 

2.10 Running alongside this process, whole-Council Member forums will ensure that Members 
can keep an overview of the emerging picture across all service areas including the impacts of 
national announcements on our plans. Chief Officers will also provide any briefings required by 
group spokespersons to assist them in contributing to the RPPR process and future savings and 
spending plans. 

 
BECKY SHAW 
Chief Executive 
 
Contact: 
Stuart McKeown, Senior Democratic Services Adviser  
Tel No. 01273  481583 
Email: stuart.mckeown@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 

Page 24

https://new.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/finance/futurespend/summary
mailto:stuart.mckeown@eastsussex.gov.uk


 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



East Sussex County Council - Savings 2020/21 to 2021/22 

18239 12365

2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

Total

£'000

Communities, Economy & Transport 1,362 629 1,991

Children's Services 770 1,835 2,605

Adult Social Care 248 0 248

Business Services / Orbis 1,161 787 1,948

Total Departments 3,541 3,251 6,792

As presented in the MTFP (£m):

Savings 2020/21 to 2021/22 4.227 2.953 7.180

Temporary mitigation of savings 

(Appendix 5)
(0.686) 0.298 (0.388)

3.541 3.251 6.792

Appendix 1 - Savings Plans 

P
age 27

A
ppendix 1



Children's Services 

Gross 

budget

Net 

budget

2018/19 2018/19 2020/21 2021/22 Total

Activity Savings Proposal and impact Assessment £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Support to schools and pupils

SLES: Performance monitoring 

Reduce staffing and management capacity for 

performance monitoring across maintained and academy 

schools, only light touch monitoring where risk of serious 

failure has been brought to attention of LA. This could 

reduce the proportion of good or outstanding schools. 

[2nd year of savings]

3,993 2,112 410 0 410 -

I-Send: EHCP Assessment Services

Reduced staffing capacity may mean the process for 

completing statutory assessments will be slower. This 

could increase parental dissatisfaction and complaints to 

the Council and LGO and reduce the proportion of 

annual reviews we attend. 

28,597 862 188 0 188 - -

I-Send: Inclusion Services

From 2020/21 statutory duties in relation to attendance 

will be met wholly through DSG. This will reduce the 

number of families we work with to improve attendance 

and may lead to an increase in pupil absence from 

schools.

9,364 1,061 19 0 19 - -

Early Years: Inclusion Services

No support to schools and early years providers to 

promote inclusion and share best practice. This may 

increase the proportion of pupils who are referred for 

statutory assessment, it may increase the proportion of 

pupils with EHCPs. We will need to continue to monitor 

the long term spend in SEN budget as the decisions 

made could have an impact throughout pupils' 

education. 

27,746 326 85 0 85 - -

East Sussex County Council - Savings 2020/21 to 2021/22
Savings Protected characteristics

A
g

e

R
e
li
g

io
n

 /

B
e
li
e
f

S
e
x
u

a
l

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

N
o

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t

re
le

v
a
n

c
e

D
is

a
b

il
it

y

G
e
n

d
e
r 

/

T
ra

n
s
g

e
n

d
e
r

E
th

n
ic

it
y

M
a
rr

ia
g

e
 /
 

C
iv

il

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 

/M
a
te

rn
it

y

P
age 28



Children's Services 

Gross 

budget

Net 

budget

2018/19 2018/19 2020/21 2021/22 Total

Activity Savings Proposal and impact Assessment £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

East Sussex County Council - Savings 2020/21 to 2021/22
Savings Protected characteristics

A
g

e

R
e
li
g

io
n

 /

B
e
li
e
f

S
e
x
u

a
l

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

N
o

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t

re
le

v
a
n

c
e

D
is

a
b

il
it

y

G
e
n

d
e
r 

/

T
ra

n
s
g

e
n

d
e
r

E
th

n
ic

it
y

M
a
rr

ia
g

e
 /
 

C
iv

il

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 

/M
a
te

rn
it

y

Safeguarding Services

The ACT service, an assertive outreach service for 

young people aged 16-24 who are at risk of or being 

exploited criminally; the problem solving team which 

supports the Family Drug and Alcohol Court; and Video 

Interactive Guidance which helps parents who are 

already in difficulty learn how to respond better to their 

children will continue alongside existing activity levels for 

families who are going through court proceedings and 

the Foundations Project which works with families who 

have already had children removed from their care. The 

deferment of savings in 2020/21 means the Family 

Group Conferences/family meetings when children are 

subject to child protection plans will continue and be 

expanded, subject to the budget being agreed. These 

services will be reduced if savings are made in later 

years.

44,026 38,105 0 854 854 -

Early Help

Following Lead Member decisions and remodelling the 

Early Help Service, there will be a reduction in the family 

key work service, which has been deferred until 2021/22. 

Savings will be generated in 2020/21 as a result of 

ceasing to run services from 10 children's centres. 

9,592 5,652 68 981 1,049 - - - -

770 1,835 2,605TOTAL Children's Services 

Children's Social Care

P
age 29



Adult Social Care 

Gross 

budget

Net 

budget

2018/19 2018/19 2020/21 2021/22 Total

Activity Savings Proposal and impact Assessment £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Working Age Adults: Nursing, 

Residential and Community Based 

services

Review care packages to ensure these are focused on 

those with Care Act eligible needs and deliver support in 

the most cost effective way. The average spend on 

Working Age Adults is significantly higher in East Sussex 

than in other south east councils. The intention is to 

deliver an overall level of support which is fair, reflects 

need and achieves a level of spend comparable to other 

councils. Any decisions to change care arrangements 

will be dependent on reviews that take account of a 

clients individual circumstances. Some clients may 

however have their support reduced or removed. [2nd 

year of savings]

62,332 49,031 248 0 248 - - +/- +/- +/- +/- +/- +/-

248 0 248

East Sussex County Council - Savings 2020/21 to 2021/22

Savings

TOTAL Adult Social Care

Protected characteristics

A
g

e

D
is

a
b

il
it

y

G
e

n
d

e
r 

/

T
ra

n
s

g
e

n
d

e
r

N
o

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t

re
le

v
a

n
c

e

E
th

n
ic

it
y

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 /
 

C
iv

il

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y

 

/M
a

te
rn

it
y

R
e

li
g

io
n

 /

B
e

li
e

f

S
e

x
u

a
l

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

P
age 30



1 

 

 

Children’s Services 
 
 

Portfolio Plan 2020/21– 2022/23 
 

This plan was originally drawn up, ready for 1 April 2020 and prior to the coronavirus pandemic. We are currently assessing the impact that 
the pandemic will have on our priorities and planning assumptions. We have updated the plan in July and will continue to do so when there is 

further clarity on the effect the response to the virus has had on Council services. 

September 2020 
 

eastsussex.gov.uk 

P
age 31

A
ppendix 2



2 

 

Contents 
 

Contents .................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Cabinet Portfolio Lead Members ................................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Portfolios Overview .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Operating Principles ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Structure Chart........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Delivering Priority Outcomes ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Performance Measures and Targets ........................................................................................................................................................................ 15 

Gross Revenue Budget ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 23 

Revenue Budget ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

Capital Programme .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 25 

Appendix 1: Annual Procurement Forward Plans ..................................................................................................................................................... 26 

 

 

 

P
age 32



3 

 

Councillor Bob Standley 

Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, 
Special Educational Needs and Disability 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsible for strategy and policy for all 
Children’s Services (education) matters. 

Principal service area responsibilities covered in 
this plan include quality and standards in 
educational establishments, special educational 
needs and disability, school admissions and 
transport, early years and childcare, school 
organisation and place planning, skills (shared with 
economy) and all ancillary activities. 

Councillor Sylvia Tidy 

Lead Member for 
Children and Families 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsible for strategy and policy for all 
Children’s Services (social care) matters. 

Principal service area responsibilities covered in 
this plan include child protection and family 
support, fostering and adoption for children, 
residential care for children, youth justice, and 
the 0 – 19 Early Help Service.  

Cabinet Portfolio Lead Members 
 

P
age 33



4 

 

Portfolios Overview 
  
1.1 Children’s Services contributes to the Council’s four key 
priority outcomes and has an important role to play in the 
development of strong partnerships to improve or maintain the 
outcomes for children, young people and their families across all 
agencies that work with children in East Sussex. This plan describes 
our aims for Children’s Services for the next few years. We will 
continue working as one council, with our partners, to make sure we 
use the resources we have wisely. 

1.2 As a local authority we have legal obligations to provide 
services to our residents. These are set out in law and describe what 
we must do, at a minimum, to meet these obligations. Together with 
Children’s Services authorities across the country we are 
experiencing pressures from increasing demand and complexity in 
children’s social care. With the financial pressures the Council has 
been dealing with since 2010, there are no easy choices for savings 
at a scale which do not have a direct or indirect effect on service 
users. 

1.3 In line with the Council’s Core Offer, which will be funded 
according to the priority outcomes, we aim to provide the best 
service offer we are likely to be able to afford. This will allow us to 
fulfil our duties, offer support to those most in need, preserve some 
level of early help and prevention where it helps manage demand, 
and assist with the economic development of the county. 

1.4 In order to do this we have reviewed our services including 
those which we know make a difference and reduce future demand, 
for example early help services through which we provide early 
intervention and prevention work. The early help review used the 
Council’s strategic commissioning approach and has concluded that 
we need to prioritise family keywork in order to make the most 
difference to families and help achieve the best value for money 
within the available resources. Other less targeted services will 
continue where the funding for them is provided from other budgets 
within the Council or by partners. 

1.5 One of our overriding principles is to work, with partners, with 
the right children and families, in the right way, for the right amount 
of time to bring about change. We will help to create a stable 
environment in which children can thrive and help families to develop 
resilience and coping strategies to avoid public service dependency. 
Individual and community responsibility is fundamental in helping us 
manage demand over the coming years, supported by good public 
health services (particularly for young children). 

1.6 We will work in partnership to bring in additional resources for 
early help and preventative services. This will include further 
developing our partnership working and working with partners to 
increase inward investment. Priorities for early help and preventative 
services to manage demand and improve outcomes include: 

• Increasing the availability of parenting support/parent peer 
mentoring groups/schemes in relation to preventing demand for 
higher tier inclusion, special educational needs and disability and 
social care services. 

• Supporting schools to work with partners in the public, private and 
voluntary sector to set up school led activities to improve 
emotional wellbeing, increase attendance and reduce the 
likelihood of exclusion. 

• Involving young people in the development of a youth-led system-
wide approach to tackling the challenges they face locally, 
encouraging partners to engage with children and young people 
at a local level to develop bids and deliver projects. 

1.7 Working in partnership with schools, colleges, early years 
settings and providers, we will use our best efforts to target our 
limited resources to assist them in improving educational outcomes 
for all children and young people in the county. We will help schools 
to create a good, sustainable school system to ensure that every 
pupil does well and achieves their potential from the earliest years 
until they enter employment. 

P
age 34



5 

 

1.8 We will also work with settings, schools, academies and 
colleges to assist them to discharge their responsibilities for the 
inclusion of all learners. This will include those who are 
disadvantaged and/or have Special Educational Needs and/or 
Disabilities (SEND); promoting health, wellbeing and resilience and 
preventing barriers from developing. In particular we will work with all 
educational settings to develop their understanding that behaviour is 
a form of communication. The Local Authority is committed to the 
Therapeutic Thinking approach when responding to behaviour that 
challenges. This approach uses protective and educational 
consequences not sanctions; seeking to use consequences to 
safeguard learners and developing safer ways for learners to 
communicate their needs. This leads to improved mental health and 
wellbeing, which improves outcomes for all learners in the setting. 
The Local Authority continues to have a strong focus on schools 
improving the attendance of their cohorts and reducing the number 
of learners they exclude. 

1.9 We will implement the new SEND Strategy to ensure that 
children are able to access the right support at the right time and 
broaden the opportunities for pupils to achieve good outcomes by 
attending their local community school. We will work with 
mainstream schools to improve the offer they make for learners with 

SEND and give greater confidence to parents/carers around the 
quality of the Local Offer. 

1.10  Working in partnership with health colleagues we will work to 
deliver the priorities for children and young people, in the East 
Sussex Plan for local health and social care integrated working. 
Place based integration of services and co-production with children, 
young people, families and carers will help us to support a strong 
start in life for our children and young people and support children 
and young people and families to live longer, healthier lives through 
helping them make healthier choices. Our five key priority areas are: 

• universal child health offer; 

• children and young people’s mental health and emotional 
wellbeing; 

• safeguarding (including contextual safeguarding); 

• looked after children; and 

• disability pathways. 

1.11 We will aspire, within the resources available, to deliver the 
best possible services and minimise any negative impacts of 
savings, including on our ability to sustain or improve performance. 
This is reflected in the performance targets we have set. 

 

P
age 35



6 

 

Operating Principles 
 

The Council has agreed three operating principles that underpin how the Council works across all services and with partners: 

❖ Strategic commissioning: using an evidence-based approach to assess and meet the needs of local people in the most effective way. 
We will specify and deliver appropriate services to secure the best outcomes and value for money for residents. 

❖ One Council: working as a single organisation both through the processes we use, and how we work. We will work in a well-connected 
way across Council teams so we harness all our energy and resources towards achieving our priorities and remove duplication. We will 
judge our success against outcomes for the whole population and the organisation (and whole local public sector) not against the interests 
of a particular group, team or department. 

❖ Strong partnerships: recognising we are one part of a wider system, we will work effectively with partners across East Sussex and the 
region as well as with the wider public sector to ensure we learn from others, secure best value for money and maximise impact for our 
residents. 

  

P
age 36



7 

 

Structure Chart 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Children and Young 
People’s Trust 

East Sussex Safeguarding 
Children Partnership 

Children’s Services 
Director Stuart Gallimore 

Communication, Planning & 
Performance 

Assistant Director Louise Carter 

Teams 
Admissions & Transport 
Home to school travel (SEND) 
Troubled Families & Health 
Commissioning 
Buzz Active 
Safeguarding & Quality Assurance 
Organisational & Workforce 
Development 
Equality & Participation 
Planning, Performance & 
Information Management 
Children's Services Customer 
Relations 
Partnerships and Children's Health 
Safeguarding 

Education &  
Inclusion, Special Educational Needs 

& Disability (ISEND) 
Assistant Director Fiona Wright 

Early Help & Social Care 
Assistant Director Liz Rugg 

Teams 
ISEND - Assessment and Planning 
ISEND – Educational Psychology Service 
ISEND – Intervention and Support Services 
ISEND – Specialist Teaching Services 
ISEND – Post 16 and INMSS 
ISEND – SEN Practice and Standards 
ISEND - Children’s Disabilities Services 
ISEND – Strategic Leadership and   
               Commissioning 
Standards & Learning Effectiveness Service  
- Education Improvement 

- Support and Intervention 
- Safeguarding 
- System Leadership 

- Governance, Pupil Place Planning and 
Partnerships, Skills, Education and 
Training 

- Commissioning and Performance 

Teams 
0-19 Early Help Services integrated with 
Health Visiting and Children’s Centres  
Locality Social Work & Family 
Assessment 
Specialist Services 
Looked After Children 
Adolescent Services including Youth 
Justice  
(Safeguarding) 

Settings*, schools 
and colleges 

*pre-school, 
childminders and 

nurseries 

The East Sussex Children & 
Families Strategic Planning Group  

(Brings together senior decision 
makers/ officers across health, social 

care, education and public health) 

P
age 37



8 

 

Delivering Priority Outcomes 
 
 

 The Priority Outcomes 

The Council has four overarching priority outcomes: driving sustainable economic 
growth; keeping vulnerable people safe; helping people help themselves; and making 
best use of resources. Making best use of resources is the gateway priority through 
which any activity and accompanying resources must pass. 

For each priority outcome there are specific delivery outcomes. These are referenced 
to performance measures in this Portfolio Plan. 

Helping people help themselves - delivery outcomes 

8. Commissioners and providers from all sectors put people first when providing 
services and information to help them meet their needs 

9. The most vulnerable adults get the support they need to maintain their 
independence and this is provided at or close to home 

10. Individuals and communities are supported and encouraged to be responsible, 
help others and make the most of community capacity and assets 

Keeping vulnerable people safe - delivery outcomes 

5. All vulnerable people in East Sussex are known to relevant local agencies and 
services are delivered together to meet their needs 

6. People feel safe at home 

7. People feel safe with support services 

Driving sustainable economic growth - delivery outcomes 

1. Employment and productivity rates are high throughout the county 

2. Individuals, communities and businesses thrive in East Sussex with the 
environment and infrastructure to meet their needs 

3. The workforce has and maintains the skills needed for good quality employment 

4. All children progress well from early years to school leaver and into education, 
training and employment 

 rivin  

sust in  le 

econo ic 

 ro th 

 eepin  

vulner  le 

people s  e 

 elpin  

people help 

the selves 

   in   est use o  resources 

Making best use of resources - delivery outcomes 

11. Working as One Council, both through the processes we 
use and how we work across services 

12. Working in partnership across the public , voluntary 
community, and private sectors to ensure that all 
available resources are used to deliver maximum 
benefits to local people 

13. Ensuring we achieve value for money in the services we 
commission and provide 

14. Maximising the funding available through bidding for 
funding and lobbying for the best deal for East Sussex 

15. To help tackle Climate Change East Sussex County 
Council activities are carbon neutral as soon as possible 
and in any event by 2050 

16. Applying strategic commissioning to ensure resources 
are directed to meet local need 

P
age 38



9 

 

Driving sustainable economic growth 

2.1 We will contribute to driving sustainable economic growth by 
ensuring local people have the skills they need to succeed and that 
all children progress well from early years into education, training 
and employment. We will promote high standards and fulfilment of 
potential so that all pupils can benefit from at least a good 
education. We will use our best endeavours in our work with 
schools to:  

• improve the skills and qualifications of pupils; 

• increase the number of pupils making good levels of progress at 
school each year; and 

• improve the outcomes of pupils vulnerable to under-
achievement. 

2.2 In addition, our public health and targeted early help 
services will help parents to care for their children in ways which 
effectively promote their development and well-being, so that they 
can make the most of their opportunities in early years education, 
school and college. 

School planning and access 

2.3 We will plan for the right number of good school places in 
the right locations in the county. We will: 

• use our best efforts to ensure there are sufficient early years and 
school places where they are needed; 

• co-ordinate and administer the admission process; and 

• provide home to school transport where we have a statutory duty 
to do so. 

Participation in Education, Training and Employment with Training 

2.4 We will work with our partners, within available resources, to 
promote post 16 participation in education and training, including 
provision and support for young people with learning 
difficulties/disabilities. We will work with internal and external 
partners to prepare young people for work and improve their 
employability and skills. 

2.5  We are also encouraging young people into 
apprenticeships. This won’t be appropriate for all young people and 
for those who are particularly vulnerable with complex needs. We 
will work with these young people to try and access appropriate 
employment and training opportunities. 

School Improvement 

2.6 Our aim has been to build a sustainable school system 
across East Sussex that has the capacity and expertise to offer 
appropriate support and challenge to all schools and reduce the risk 
that schools are isolated or underperforming. Excellence for All has 
been our strategy to secure this improvement. 

2.7  The updated Excellence for All strategy was published in 
September 2019. The strategy outlines the shared vision, values 
and ambitions we, and our partners, have for creating an excellent 
education system in East Sussex where no pupil or educational 
establishment is left behind. There is a sharper focus on those who 
are vulnerable or disadvantaged and on how we will deliver 
improvement through the partnership structures in the county. 

Corporate parents 

2.8 As good corporate parents we have high aspirations for the 
children in our care and for young people as they leave care. We 
set appropriately challenging targets, supporting them to achieve 
healthy lifestyles, succeed in education and to find work. We use a 
personal education plan for each child and a Pathway Plan for each 
young person to support them via their school, social worker, foster 
or residential carers and via the Virtual School so they can make 
progress in line with their peers and to achieve better in school than 
children in care nationally, so that they can become successful 
adults. 

Attendance and Exclusion 

2.9 Across East Sussex, our learners have lower rates of 
attendance and higher exclusion than their peers nationally. 
Standards and Learning Effectiveness Service (SLES), and 
Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability (ISEND) teams 
will continue to work closely together with schools through the 

P
age 39



10 

 

Behaviour and Attendance Partnerships, Education Improvement 
Partnerships (EIPs) and the new Primary and Secondary School 
Improvement Boards to support them to identify ways in which they 
can develop best practice and secure improvement. 

2.10 There will be a continued focus on working with schools to 
improve the engagement of some families so that they ensure their 
children are in school, and on improving the quality of teaching and 
provision of support to ensure that pupils engage in learning and 
stay in school. In October 2017 we launched the Get a Grip 
campaign - an innovative approach to challenging parental 
perceptions about the importance of attendance at school. During 
this campaign, overall absence rates across the county fell. This 
campaign has continued, with the latest instalment in 2019 - ‘Be a 
Pushy Parent’ – focussing on reducing absence related to minor 
illness. 

2.11 We will continue to share the learning from targeted 
resource projects, such as the strategic school improvement fund 
exclusions and attendance projects and the Hastings Opportunity 
Area attendance strand, to ensure we maximise impact across the 
county. 

2.12 It is essential that educators understand that all behaviour 
has a cause and a purpose and staff must actively identify what the 
behaviour is communicating and support that underlying need 
through reasonable adjustments to the curriculum, environment, 
provision and behaviour policies. Development work through 
ISEND/SLES strategic change is focussed on this central premise. 
Our new ‘Therapeutic Thinking’ programme for schools develops 
understanding and confidence in this area; building capacity in our 
schools to meet needs, increase learner engagement and reduce 
exclusion. 

Keeping vulnerable people safe 

2.13 Targeted early help and children’s social care services, 
together with public health services, make a significant contribution 
to the delivery of the Council priorities of keeping vulnerable people 
safe and helping people help themselves. In July 2018 Children’s 

Services was inspected under the Inspection of Local Authority 
Children’s Services (ILACS) and judged to be outstanding overall. 

Early Help 

2.14 Early identification is crucial to effective safeguarding. 
Effective delivery of the Healthy Child programmes, including 
universal development reviews for all children age 0-5, supports 
early identification of families with additional needs. We will deliver 
this via an integrated service with health visitors as part of the 0-19 
Early Help service where it helps us manage the demand for higher 
cost services. 

2.15 Since Autumn 2016, the Children and Young People’s 
Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing Transformation Board has 
been developing a number of initiatives to improve the Mental 
Health and Emotional Wellbeing of children and young people. This 
has included: 

• a schools Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing Adviser to 
work with schools so that they become more confident in 
supporting their pupils; 

• a successful bid to develop Mental Health in Schools teams (see 
2.33);  

• the Single Point of Advice (SPOA), an integrated ’front door’ 
between Children’s Services and the Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Service (CAMHS) to streamline referral pathways 
and get children and families the right help more quickly; and 

• the roll out of the iRock drop in centres across the county. 

The Joint Targeted Area Inspection in February 2020 had a focus 
on the emotional wellbeing/mental health of children and young 
people locally and the inspection team commended many of the 
initiatives and services that are in place in the County. A multi- 
agency action plan is being developed to improve services still 
further and that planning will also be linked to a Sussex wide review 
of CAMHS services that is due to be published imminently. 

 

 

P
age 40



11 

 

Multi-agency early help and child protection system 

2.16 We continue to work effectively with partners as part of the 
multi-agency early help and child protection system. This system 
ensures that children and young people who are, or are likely to be, 
at risk of harm are identified, supported and protected. This is part 
of a wider multi-agency safeguarding system, underpinned by 
strong statutory multi-agency governance and scrutiny (by the East 
Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership). 

2.17 We will provide a statutory social care offer to safeguard 
children at risk of harm. This includes protecting children, looking 
after children who are in our care, helping care leavers become 
successful adults, and managing efficient and effective fostering 
adoption and residential services. 

• When it’s clear that a social worker is needed the SPOA will 
work with one of the two Multi Agency Safeguarding Hubs 
(MASH), either in Eastbourne or Hastings, which co-locate police 
and social work staff so that responses are joined up, effective 
and prompt. 

• The Child Protection Information Sharing system is now 
embedded and enables NHS staff, nationally, to be aware when 
children who are looked after or subject to Child Protection (CP) 
plans are seen in hospitals anywhere in England. The 
effectiveness of the system will be reviewed in 2020. 

Children’s Social Care 

2.18 Children’s Services use IDACI (Income Deprivation Affecting 
Children Index) expected rates to measure our performance against 
comparable authorities. IDACI ranks areas in England from the 
most to the least deprived, IDACI expected rates are calculated 
using statistical techniques. Many performance indicators in East 
Sussex are below IDACI which suggests that East Sussex is 
managing to keep activity levels below that of other similarly 
deprived authorities. Although the numbers of children protected via 
formal interagency CP plans remains above IDACI, increased and 
sustained focus on activity has seen a reduction. The table below 
sets out comparative data for CP plans 

 
March 2019 

East Sussex 

March 2020 

East Sussex 

IDACI 
2019/20 

The rate per 
10,000 of children 
with a CP plan 

55.5 

(588 children) 

50.9 

(542 children) 

43 

 (457 children) 

2.19 There are pressures across the system and a rise in 
demand and costs as a result of external factors, for example: 

• Increased costs for placements for often very complex children 
who can’t be cared for within the family setting. As a result, we 
will consider whether the Council can develop more places in 
our children’s homes. We are also developing more supported 
housing options for older young people by contracting with 
partners. 

• Working with the West Sussex County Council, Brighton and 
Hove City Council and Surrey County Council to implement the 
Regional Adoption Agency, Adoption South East, in line with the 
Government. 

• The Council has committed to taking the equivalent of 0.07% of 
the total child population over three years as Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) which will mean the Council 
caring for about 72 UASC in total. The amount that the Council 
can recoup from Central Government is insufficient to cover the 
costs for these children and this becomes particularly acute 
when they become care leavers to whom the Council has 
ongoing support responsibilities. 

2.20 We will work with partners to prevent young people from 
offending and to respond effectively when they do and to develop 
our response to the criminal exploitation of children. 

2.21  In 2020/21 the Council has allocated additional funding for 
two projects: an extension to the existing Family Group Conference 
Service which allows wider family networks to develop plans to 
support children who are in need of protection or who may enter 
care and No Wrong Door, a model developed successfully in North 
Yorkshire, which has seen a significant reduction in the numbers 

P
age 41



12 

 

and costs of supporting children and young people who are on the 
edge of care or who are in the care system. 

Accommodation provision for vulnerable young people 

2.22 As corporate parents we will continue to ensure that looked 
after children live in a place where they are safe and cared for. We 
continue to work in partnership with colleagues from the District and 
Borough Councils and with a range of providers from both the 
private and voluntary sectors to extend and develop housing 
options for vulnerable young people. This includes care leavers with 
severe, complex and/or multiple needs (aged 16 – 25) and young 
homeless people under 18. 

Helping people help themselves 

2.23 A key aim of both social care and targeted early help 
support is to enable families to become resilient and self-sufficient 
so that they only need universal services in order to thrive. All our 
support is designed to motivate and empower families so that they 
can achieve this goal. Following a review, the early help aspects of 
this support will be increasingly targeted on family keywork as we 
know that this both helps families and helps the Council manage 
demand for more expensive services. As part of the plan to deliver 
the outcomes of the Early Help review, 16 children’s and youth 
centres have been retained in areas of highest need. 

2.24 Our draft Early Help Strategy proposes to offer targeted 
services to families at risk of needing social care intervention (at 
level 3 of the continuum of need): 

• Family keywork targeting the specific vulnerabilities that can 
escalate into crisis, such as parent mental ill health, substance 
misuse, and domestic violence – maintaining activity to at least 
7% of baseline levels, including external funding. 

• Focussed interventions with families at risk of needing social 
care intervention where that is appropriate, to maximise the 
number of vulnerable families supported. 

• Evidence-based and targeted family group work, where that is 
appropriate, to support keywork and maximise the number of 
vulnerable families worked with. 

• Evidence-based youth work with vulnerable young people, in 
support of keywork. 

2.25 Ongoing government funding has now been confirmed for 
the Troubled Families programme in 2020/21. We will use this to 
support keywork and we will also work with partners to identify as 
many external funding streams as possible to sustain family support 
programmes and youth work. The volunteering programme will be 
sustained in our 0-19 Early Help Service so that individual and 
communities can lead activities that promote health, wellbeing and 
good development for children. 

Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability (ISEND) 

2.26 ISEND has an important role to play in supporting children 
and young people to achieve their very best, keeping vulnerable 
people safe and helping people help themselves. We will help 
children and young people with SEND achieve their ambitions and 
ensure young people have a successful transition to adulthood. We 
will: 

• carry out statutory assessments of pupils with SEN, who have 
significant barriers to learning; 

• use our best endeavours to secure the right education provision 
for those with the greatest need; 

• fulfil our statutory duties to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
disabled children who meet the threshold under the Continuum 
of Need; and 

• where possible, work to build capacity in Early Years setting to 
ensure vulnerable young children can attend pre-school settings 
from two years old and can be supported to attend and succeed 
in mainstream school. 

2.27 We will ensure that families and children are involved in the 
development and delivery of services, giving families more choice 
and control over the services they receive and providing a more 
personalised response. 

2.28 In 2018 we undertook a review of the High Needs Block 
consultation with partner agencies and parents/carers to identify 
recommendations that will ensure that pupils with SEND have good 

P
age 42

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/5443/continuum-a4-poster.pdf


13 

 

educational outcomes and are able to access high quality SEN 
provision in their local community. 

2.29 As a result of this piece of work, we are undertaking a 
number of activities to improve the quality and value of SEND 
provision across the county. These include: 

• A new Quality Mark for Inclusion, which sets out expectations of 
what local schools should provide pupils with SEND. 

• The development of new specialist facilities attached to 
mainstream schools to allow more pupils to attend their local 
school alongside peers and to improve practice in mainstream 
schools. 

• Development of the post-16 offer across our local further 
education providers to increase the range of provision available 
to young people. 

2.30 This informed the development of the SEND Strategy 2018 
– 2021 which is designed to improve outcomes for pupils with 
SEND across East Sussex. The Strategy has four shared strategic 
aims which were jointly identified by professionals from education, 
health and social care and parent/carers and community groups: 

• Improving communication with families, children and young 
people. 

• Building capacity for inclusion in settings, schools, colleges and 
services. 

• Effective transition at every stage including advanced planning of 
the journey of the child. 

• High quality provision, services, outcomes and aspirations. 

2.31 We provided considerable support to free school applicants 
and the county was successful in securing agreement for four new 
schools (three special schools and one alternative education 
provider) from the Department for Education in April 2017. The first 
school, The Workplace, an alternative provision free school, is 
planned to open in 2020. 

2.32 We have also supported two new Specialist Facilities to 
open in primary schools (from September 2019), in Hailsham and 
Hastings, which will offer additional provision for pupils with autism. 

Capital bids have also been agreed for two secondary facilities to 
support children with Specific Learning Difficulties (and associated 
SEN) in the east and the west of the county which will allow more 
children with SEN to remain in their local communities. 

2.33 We are developing a coordinated strategy of support for 
schools and colleges to meet the mental health and emotional well-
being needs of pupils, ensuring that advice for schools across 
ISEND and partners is consistent and evidence-based. The county 
has been successful in its bid for the provision of three Mental 
Health Support Teams (MHSTs) as part of the government’s 
trailblazer scheme, working across 60 schools and providing early 
mental health support for a population of 24,000 pupils. 

2.34 An accredited Emotional Literacy Support Assistant (ELSA) 
programme has been introduced to build the capacity of schools in 
providing a first response to pupils’ emotional needs. 

Making best use of resources 

2.35 We will contribute to the Council’s priority outcome of 
making best use of our resources through strategic commissioning 
and consider changing our service offer in all areas to become 
more innovative, efficient and effective, whilst safeguarding 
vulnerable children and helping all children to succeed. We use 
robust evaluation, performance data and case auditing to ensure 
that our work with children and young people and families is 
effective and that we are investing in the right interventions. 

2.36 Income generation is one of the key challenges where there 
is economic uncertainty. We have developed a range of successful 
traded services, for example Buzz Active, ISEND and SLES 
services and our schools information governance service. We will 
maximise income generation through our traded offer with schools 
and review fees and charges. 

2.37 We will reduce management and administrative posts where 
possible to retain the resources available to the front line. We will 
review our policies and procedures to ensure best use of resources. 
We will also deliver services and provide access to services very 
differently in some areas, for example by continuing to: 

P
age 43



14 

 

• shift routine advice to the public and professionals from phone 
services to web pages; 

• communicate with clients online when that is appropriate; 

• collaborate with colleagues using web tools to avoid 
unnecessary travel time; 

• learn from joined-up data across partnerships; and 

• use technology to its maximum potential in our joint working 
across the service. 

2.38 While savings have to be made, we will take every 
opportunity to reduce any negative impacts through streamlining 
services and reviewing priorities carefully. 

2.39 The top issue voted for by young people in the East Sussex 
2019 Make Your Mark campaign was Protect the Environment with 
7,707 votes which focused on protecting the environment from the 
effects of climate change for the next generation; and that local and 
national governments should move towards carbon neutral 

alternatives. The Youth Cabinet will continue to work on ideas and 
meet with relevant professionals to agree their priority campaign for 
'Protecting the Environment' including professionals from county, 
district and borough councils, schools, Councillors and other 
decision makers. 

2.40 Annual Procurement Forward Plans were introduced during 
2019/20 to enable the Council to maintain an oversight of 
procurement activity across a full range of Council services. The 
Forward Plans also enable the Procurement team to plan ahead 
and prioritise resources on the projects where they can add most 
value. Procurement Officers worked with their service stakeholders 
and commissioners to develop the Forward Plans for each 
directorate area across the Council. For 2020/21, there will be an 
estimated three projects being worked on by Procurement over £1m 
in value, covering the areas of this Portfolio.  Attached as Appendix 
1 are the details of these projects 

 

 

P
age 44



15 

 

Performance Measures and Targets 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Driving sustainable economic growth 

Cllr Standley 

The percentage of eligible 2 year olds 
who take up a place with an eligible early 
years provider CP 

ESCC 
84% 

National 
Average 

72% 

ESCC 86% 
National 
Average 

68% 

Equal to or 
above the 
national 
average 

Equal to or 
above the 
national 
average 

Equal to or 
above the 
national 
average 

All children engage, attain 
and progress well from early 
years into education, training 

and employment 
 

Delivery outcomes 3 and 4 

The percentage of pupils achieving a 
“good level of development*” at the Early 
Years Foundation Stage CP  
*A pupil achieving at least the expected 
level in each Early Learning Goal (ELG) 
within the three prime areas of learning, 
and at least the expected level in each 
ELG within the literacy and numeracy 
specific areas of learning 

Ac year 17/18 
ESCC 
76.5% 

National 
Average 
71.5% 

Ac Year 
18/19 
ESCC 
76.0%  

National  
 Average 

71.8% 

Ac Year 19/20 
 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
assessments 
cancelled due 
to Covid-19 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

At or above  
national 
average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

At or above  
national 
average 

Proportion of pupils in all schools who 
achieved at least the expected standard 
in each of reading, writing and maths at 
Key Stage 2 

Ac Year 17/18 
 

ESCC 64% 
National 
Average 

65% 

Ac Year 
18/19 

 

ESCC 
62.7% 

National 
Average 
65.3% 

Ac Year 19/20 
 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
assessments 
cancelled due 
to Covid-19 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

No more than 
5 percentage 
points below 

national 
average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

No more than 
5 percentage 
points below 

national 
average 

Average Progress 8 score for state 
funded schools CP 
The average Progress 8 score shows 
how much progress pupils at this school 
made between the end of key stage 2 
and the end of key stage 4, compared to 
pupils across England who got similar 
results at the end of key stage 2 

Ac year 17/18 
ESCC 
-0.03 

 
National 

-0.02 

Ac Year 
18/19 

 

ESCC -0.06 
Nat Average 

-0.03 

Ac Year 19/20 
 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
exams 

cancelled due 
to Covid-19 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

No more than 
0.2 points 

below national 
average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

 No more than 
0.2 points 

below national 
average 

P
age 45



16 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Cllr Standley 

The percentage of disadvantaged pupils 
achieving at least the expected standard 
in each of reading, writing and maths at 
Key Stage 2 CP  

Ac Year 17/18 
 

ESCC 
49% 

National 
Average 

51% 

Ac Year 
18/19 

 

ESCC 
45.9% 

National 
Average 
51.5% 

Ac Year 19/20 
 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
exams 

cancelled due 
to Covid-19 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

No more than 
7 percentage 
points below 

national 
average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

No more than 
7 percentage 
points below 

national 
average 

The gap for disadvantaged 
pupils at all Key Stages is 

kept as small as possible so 
that all children attain and 
progress well from early 

years into education, training 
and employment 

 
Delivery outcomes 3 and 4 The average Attainment 8 score for 

disadvantaged pupils CP  

Ac Year 17/18 
 

ESCC 33.2 
National 
Average 

36.8 

Ac Year 
18/19 
ESCC 
33.5 

National 
Average 

36.8 

Ac Year 19/20 
 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
exams 

cancelled due 
to Covid-19 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

No more than 
6 points below 

national 
average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

No more than 
6 points below 

national 
average 

The percentage of young people meeting 
the duty of RPA (Raising the 
Participation Age) by either participating 
in education, training or employment with 
training or undertaking re-engagement 
provision at academic age 16 (Year 12) 
CP 

93.9% 93.7% 

Monitoring will 
continue, but 
no target set 

due to COVID-
19 

To be set 
2020/21 

To be set 
2021/22 

Young people participate in 
education, training or 

employment with training 
until they are at least 18 
improving their long term 
employment and health 

prospects 
 

Delivery outcomes 3 and 4 

The percentage of young people meeting 
the duty of RPA by either participating in 
education, training or employment with 
training or undertaking re-engagement 
provision at academic age 17 (Year 13) 
CP 

86.4% 86.3% 

Monitoring will 
continue, but 
no target set 

due to COVID-
19 

To be set 
2020/21 

To be set 
2021/22 

The proportion of academic age 16-17 
year olds whose Education, Employment 
and Training (EET) situation is not known 

1.3% 1.2% 
No more than 

3% 
No more than 

3% 
No more than 

3% 

P
age 46



17 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Cllr Standley 

Proportion of Primary schools judged by 
Ofsted to be good or outstanding 

ESCC 
89.9% 

National 
Average 
86.7% 

ESCC 94% 
National 
Average 
87.8% 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
inspections 

are unlikely to 
resume before 
April 2021 due 

to Covid-19 

At or above 
the national 

average 

At or above 
the national 

average 

All children attend a school 
that is judged to be at least 
good by Ofsted. All children 

progress well from early 
years, through compulsory 
schooling, into education, 
training and employment 

 
Delivery outcome 4 

Proportion of Secondary schools judged 
by Ofsted to be good or outstanding 

ESCC 
82.1% 

National 
Average 

75% 

ESCC 
88.5% 

National 
Average 
76.2% 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
inspections 

are unlikely to 
resume before 
April 2021 due 

to Covid-19 

No more than 
2 percentage 
points below 
the national 

average 

No more than 
2 percentage 
points below 
the national 

average 

Proportion of Special schools judged by 
Ofsted to be good or outstanding 

ESCC 
100% 

National 
Average 
91.8% 

ESCC 100% 
National 
Average 

91% 

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
inspections 

are unlikely to 
resume before 
April 2021 due 

to Covid-19 

At or above 
the national 

average 

At or above 
the national 

average 

P
age 47



18 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Cllr Standley 

The percentage of exclusions in primary 
schools per school population in that 
year. 
(i) Fixed term 
(ii) Permanent  

Ac Year 17/18 
 

(i) ESCC 
2.22% 

 

National 
Average 16/17 

1.37% 
(0.85 points 

above national 
average) 

 

(ii) ESCC 
0.06% 

 

National 
Average 16/17 

0.03% 
(0.03 points 

above national 
average) 

Ac Year 
18/19 

(i) ESCC 
1.92%  

National 
Average 

17/18  
 1.4% 

0.52 points 
above 

national 
average 

 

(ii)ESCC 
0.07% 

National 
Average 

17/18 
0.03% 

0.04 points 
above 

national 
average 

Ac Year 19/20 

Measure not 
being 

monitored due 
to Covid-19 
and school 

closures  

Ac Year 20/21 

(i) No more 
than 1.5 

percentage 
points above 

national 
average 

 
(ii) No more 

than 1.0 
percentage 
point above 

national 
average 

Ac Year 21/22 

(i) No more 
than 1.5 

percentage 
points above 

national 
average 

 
(ii) No more 

than 1.0 
percentage 
point above 

national 
average 

Reduced exclusions and 
improved attendance in 
primary and secondary 

schools. All children engage 
and participate well from 

early years into education, 
training and employment 

 
Delivery outcome 4 

P
age 48



19 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Cllr Standley 

The percentage of exclusions in 
secondary schools per school population 
in that year. 
(i) Fixed term  
(ii) Permanent  

Ac Year 17/18  
 

(i) ESCC 
11.6% 

 

National 
Average 16/17 

9.4% 
(2.2 points 

above national 
average) 

 
 
 

(ii) ESCC 
0.34% 

 

National 
Average 16/17 

0.20% 
(0.14 points 

above national 
average) 

 

Ac Year 
18/19 

 

(i)ESCC 
13.41% 

National 
Average 

17/18 
10.13% 

 

3.28 points 
above 

national 
average 

 
Ac Year 19/20 

Measure not 
being 

monitored due 
to Covid-19 
and school 

closures 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

(i) No more 
than 3 

percentage 
points above 
the national 

average 
 

 
 
 
 

 
(ii) No more 

than 1.5 
percentage 

points above 
the national 

average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

(i) No more 
than 3 

percentage 
points above 
the national 

average 
 

 
 
 
 
 

(ii) No more 
than 1.5 

percentage 
points above 
the national 

average 

Reduced exclusions and 
improved attendance in 
primary and secondary 

schools. All children engage 
and participate well from 

early years into education, 
training and employment 

 
Delivery outcome 4 

Ac Year 
18/19 

 

 (ii)ESCC 
0.27% 

National 
Average 

17/18 0.20% 
 

0.07 points 
above the 
national 
average 

The percentage of children in primary 
schools who are persistently absent 

Ac Year 17/18  
 

10.41% 
National 

average 16/17 
8.3% 

(2.11 points 
above the 
national 
average) 

Ac Year 
2018/19 

 

ESCC 
9.40% 

National 
Average 

17/18 
8.70% 

 

0.7 points 
above the 
national 
average 

Ac Year 19/20 

Measure not 
being 

monitored due 
to Covid-19 
and school 

closures 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

No more than 
3 percentage 
points above 
the national 

average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

No more than 
3 percentage 
points above 
the national 

average 

P
age 49



20 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Cllr Standley 
The percentage of children in secondary 
schools who are persistently absent 

Ac Year 17/18  
 

ESCC 15.02% 
National 

average 16/17 
13.5% 

(1.52 points 
above the 
national 
average) 

Ac Year 
18/19 

 

 ESCC 
17.12% 

National 
Average 

17/18 13.9% 
 

3.22 points 
above the 
national 
average 

Ac Year 19/20 

Measure not 
being 

monitored due 
to Covid-19 
and school 

closures 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

No more than 
3 percentage 
points above 
the national 

average 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

No more than 
3 percentage 
points above 
the national 

average 

Reduced exclusions and 
improved attendance in 
primary and secondary 

schools. All children engage 
and participate well from 

early years into education, 
training and employment 

 
Delivery outcome 4 

Cllr Tidy 

Average Progress 8 score for Looked 
After Children (LAC) CP 

Ac Year 17/18 
 

ESCC 
-1.49 

National 
Average 

-1.2 

Ac Year 
18/19 

 

ESCC 
-1.33 

National 
Average 

-1.23 

Ac Year 19/20 
  

Measure not 
being 

monitored as 
exams 

cancelled due 
to Covid-19 

Ac Year 20/21 
 

No more than 
0.5 points 
below the 
national 

average for 
LAC 

Ac Year 21/22 
 

No more than 
0.5 points 
below the 
national 

average for 
LAC 

All children progress well 
from early years, through 

compulsory education, into 
education, training and 

employment 
 

Delivery outcomes 3 and 4 

The percentage of LAC participating in 
education, training or employment with 
training at academic age 16 (Year 12) 
CP 

86%  84% 

Monitoring will 
continue, but 
no target set 

due to COVID-
19 

To bet set 
2020/21 

To bet set 
2021/22 

Looked after Children 
participate in education, 

training or employment with 
training until they are at least 
18 improving their long term 

employment and health 
prospects 

 
Delivery outcomes 3 and 4 

The percentage of LAC participating in 
education, training or employment with 
training at academic age 17 (Year 13) 
CP 

87%  78% 

Monitoring will 
continue, but 
no target set 

due to COVID-
19 

To bet set 
2020/21 

To bet set 
2021/22 

The percentage of Care Leavers at 
university 

10% 10.53% 10%  10% 10% 

P
age 50



21 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Keeping vulnerable people safe 

Cllr Tidy 

Rate of children with a Child Protection 
Plan (per 10,000 children) CP 

55.5 
588 children 

50.9 
542 children 

To be 
reviewed at 
Q2 2020/21 

due to impact 
of Covid-19 

To be 
reviewed at 
Q2 2020/21 

due to impact 
of Covid-19 

To be 
reviewed at 
Q2 2020/21 

due to impact 
of Covid-19 

Children at risk from 
significant harm are kept 

safe 
 

Delivery outcomes 5 and 12 

Rate (of 0-17 population) of referrals to 
children’s social care services (per 
10,000 children) CP 

406 393 535  535 535 

Rate (of 0-17 population) of assessments 
completed by children’s social care 
services (per 10,000 children) CP 

341 333 526  526 526 

Rate of Looked After Children (per 
10,000 children) CP 

57.3 
607 children 

56.5  
601 children 

Maintain 
2019/20 

outturn of 56.5 
601 children 

Maintain 
2019/20 

outturn of 56.5 
601 children 

Maintain 
2019/20 

outturn of 56.5 
601 children 

Number of Care Leavers in Bed and 
Breakfast accommodation (aged 16 – 18) 

No care 
leavers placed 
in B&B accom. 

No care 
leavers 

placed in 
B&B 

accom. 

No care 
leavers placed 
in B&B accom. 

No care 
leavers placed 
in B&B accom. 

No care 
leavers placed 
in B&B accom. 

Care leavers, aged 16 – 18, 
are safe and appropriately 

supported 
 

Delivery outcomes 5 and 6 

Average time between a child entering 
care and moving in with its adoptive 
family, for children who have been 
adopted (days) CP 
(Adoption Scorecard)  

2015-18 
ESCC 

454 days 
National 
Average 
486 days 

2015-18 
ESCC 

448.7 days 
National 
Average 
486 days 

Less than or 
equal to 
national 
average 

Less than or 
equal to 
national 
average 

Less than or 
equal to 
national 
average 

Children are placed for 
adoption as quickly as 

possible in order to achieve 
permanency 

 
Delivery outcomes 5 and 6 

First Time Entrants (FTE) to the Youth 
Justice System per 100,000 population 
aged 10-17 

150FTE per 
100,000 of 
population 

236FTE per 
100,000 

population 

Maintain a rate 
of less than 
300 FTE per 

100,000 
population 

Maintain a rate 
of less than 
300 FTE per 

100,000 
population 

Maintain a rate 
of less than 
300 FTE per 

100,000 
population 

The rate of first time entrants 
to the youth justice system is 

maintained to improve 
outcomes for young children 

and reduce costs 
 

Delivery outcome 5 

P
age 51



22 

 

Lead Member 
Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 
2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn  

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 
Target 

2018-23 
Outcome Summary 

Helping People help themselves 

Cllr Tidy 

The proportion of children who receive a 
new birth review 

81% 84.9% 80% 85% 90% 

New born babies and one 
year olds are reviewed to 

check that they are 
developing well, have the 

best start in life and are able 
to progress to their full 

potential 
 

Delivery outcome 8 

The proportion of children who receive a 
1 year review 

78% 85.1% 85% 90% 90% 

Cllr Standley 

Percentage of EHCP (Education, Health 
and Care Plans) annual review meetings 
where the child gave their view and/or 
participated CP 

88% 88.5% 85% 85% 85% 

Children and young people 
with SEND participate in 

decisions to ensure that their 
needs are understood, and 

they are supported to 
achieve their potential. 

 
Delivery outcome 8 

Cllr Standley 

The proportion of respondents to the 
feedback surveys who agree that things 
have changed for the better as a result of 
ISEND Provider Services 

70% 74.8% 65% 60% 60% 

The services provided are 
making a difference to the 

lives of service users.  
 

Delivery outcome 8 

Cllr Tidy 

The proportion of respondents to the 
feedback surveys who agree that things 
have changed for the better as a result of 
getting targeted support from the 0 – 19 
Early Help Service CP 

91% 89% 80% 80% 80% 

Number of households eligible under the 
government’s Troubled Families 
programme receiving a family support 
intervention CP 

654  
Cumulative 

3,278 

 
1,028 

Cumulative  
4,306 

345 

To be set June 
2021 pending 

information 
from 

Government 

To be set June 
2021 pending 
information 

from 
Government 

Families supported by family 
keywork achieve their goals 
and the Council is able to 

maximise payment by results 
claims. 

 
Delivery outcomes 8 and 10 

P
age 52



23 

 

Gross Revenue Budget  

  

Adult 
Social Care 
£280.77m

Public Health 
£27.11m

Communities, 
Economy & 

Transport £116.06m

Children’s 
Services 
£308.58m

Central Resources 
£2.82m

Early Help & 
Social Care 
£68.16m

Business 
Services 
£47.19m

Governance 
Services £8.43m

Education & 
ISEND £82.71m

Communications, 
Planning & 

Performance 
£6.87mEAST SUSSEX 

COUNTY COUNCIL 
BUDGET 2020/21 

£831.23m

Centrally Held 
Budgets 
£43.10m

Schools 
£148.01m

Home to School 
Transport £13.72m(1)

(1) Home to School Transport is administered by Communities, Economy and Transport on behalf of Children’s Services. 
Totals may differ from sum of components due to rounding 

P
age 53



24 

 

Revenue Budget 
 

Revenue Budget £000 

Divisions 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Gross 
Income + Net 

Recharges 
Net Gross 

Income + Net 
Recharges 

Net Gross 
Income + 

Net 
Recharges 

Net 

Central Resources 1,645  (1,299) 346  1,573  (1,091) 482  2,820  (1,453) 1,367  

Early Help and Social Care 55,593  (8,845) 46,748  59,475  (8,904) 50,571  68,160  (11,113) 57,047  

Education and ISEND 78,425  (3,832) 74,593  84,605  (5,501) 79,104  82,708  (2,000) 80,708  

Communications, Planning 
and Performance 

7,111  8,116  15,227  7,627  9,021  16,648  6,874  10,396  17,270  

DSG Non Schools - (68,259) (68,259) -  (69,491) (69,491) -  (67,564) (67,564) 

Schools 142,999  (142,999) -  142,131  (142,131) -  148,014  (148,014) -  

Tot l Children’s Services 285,773  (217,118) 68,655  295,411  (218,097) 77,314  308,576  (219,748) 88,828  

 

P
age 54



25 

 

Capital Programme 
 

Capital Programme, Gross £000 

Lead Member Project 
Total for 
Scheme 

Previous 
Years 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Cllr Tidy 
House Adaptations for Disabled Children's Carers Homes ** ** 50 50 50 

Conquest Centre redevelopment 356 341 15 -  - 

Cllr Standley Schools Delegated Capital ** ** 791 760 729 

       
**Rolling programme: no total scheme value    
 

      
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



26 

 

Appendix 1: Annual Procurement Forward Plans 

Details of all projected Children’s Services procurements over £1m during 2020/21 are provided below. 

Service Contract Description 
Start date for procurement 
work to begin (estimated) 

Start date of new contract(s) 
or extension (estimated) 

Looked After Children 
Framework for Provision of Foster 
Care Services 

01/09/2020 01/04/2021 

Education & ISEND 
Targeted Information, Advice & 
Guidance Service 

01/03/2021 01/10/2021 

Public Health Health Visiting 01/10/2019 01/04/2020 

 
 

 

P
age 56



 

Adult Social Care and Health 
 

Portfolio Plan 2020/21 – 2022/23 
 

This plan was originally drawn up, ready for 1 April 2020 and prior to the coronavirus pandemic. We 
are currently assessing the impact that the pandemic will have on our priorities and planning 

assumptions. We have updated the plan in July and will continue to do so when there is further 
clarity on the effect the response to the virus has had on Council services. 

July 2020 

eastsussex.gov.uk 

P
age 57



Adult Social Care and Health 2 

Contents 

 

Contents .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Cabinet Portfolio Lead Members .......................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Portfolios Overview .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Operating Principles ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Structure Chart..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Delivering Priority Outcomes ................................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

Performance Measures and Targets .................................................................................................................................................................. 20 

Gross revenue budget ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 28 

Revenue Budget ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 29 

Capital Programme ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 31 

Appendix 1: Annual Procurement Forward Plans ............................................................................................................................................... 32 

 

P
age 58



Adult Social Care and Health 3 

Councillor Bill Bentley 

Lead Member for 
Communities and Safety 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsible for strategy and policy for all 
communities and community safety matters. 

Principal service area responsibilities in this plan 
include safer communities.  

Community responsibilities are covered by the 
Communities, Economy and Transport Portfolio 
Plan. Coroner services and voluntary sector 
responsibilities are covered by the Governance 
Services Portfolio Plan. 

Councillor Carl Maynard 

Lead Member for 
Adult Social Care and Health 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsible for strategy and policy for all adult 
social care and public health matters.  

Principal service area responsibilities covered in 
this plan include services for vulnerable adults 
including older people, learning disability, 
physical disability, mental health, public health 
and all ancillary activities. 

Cabinet Portfolio Lead Members 

 

P
age 59



Adult Social Care and Health 4 

Portfolios Overview 

Adult Social Care 

1.1 Improving the wellbeing of East Sussex residents drives this 
portfolio plan. The particular demands facing Adult Social Care and 
Health (ASCH) locally reflect local demographic changes, financial 
constraints over the last decade, and the need to integrate more 
closely with health and develop closer working with the voluntary 
and community sector. We are also awaiting the publication of the 
Government’s Green Paper on the future of Health and Social Care 
funding. This Portfolio Plan describes our local response to the 
opportunities and challenges outlined above. 

1.2 East Sussex has a growing elderly population, already at 
levels that will not be reached nationally for decades. Compared to 
2019, by 2023 there will be an increase in the population of working 
age people (age 18-64) of 4,620 (1.5%), however the population of 
older people (age 65+) will increase by 12,170 (8.4%) to 157,090. 
Of those, 4.3% of people will be aged 85+, a significantly greater 
proportion than England, 2.7%. East Sussex will be ranked 2nd in 
England for the highest proportion of population 85+. 

1.3 While the population will be getting older, the level of need 
will also be increasing. By 2023 40,120 older people (age 65+) are 
projected to have a limiting long term illness whose day to day 
activities are limited a little (up 9.9%), 30,750 limited a lot (up 
10.8%). 12,020 older people (65+) are projected to have dementia 
(up 10.0%). 

1.4 The wellbeing of East Sussex residents remains at the heart 
of our approach, and is reflected in the ASCH core offer. The Adult 
Social Care (ASC) budget has made savings of over £10 million 
from 2018/19 onwards. The most recent savings being from within 
the Working Age Adults and Meals in the Community services.  

1.5 The ASC core offer reflects the wider financial context, 
alongside our demographic position and is a commitment to: 

• Provide information and advice for all adults seeking care 
and support; 

• Assess need and arrange help for individuals and their 
carers who are eligible for support from Adult Social Care; 

• Provide support that reduces the need for social care in the 
longer term and/or prevents the need for a more expensive 
service; and 

• Safeguard vulnerable adults who are at risk of harm or 
abuse. 

1.6 Our core offer is underpinned by being efficient and 
providing value for money. It will include preventative services 
insofar as this reduces immediate demand for more expensive, 
statutory services.  

1.7 Work continues with NHS partners to transform health and 
care services in East Sussex. We need to deliver efficiencies and 
develop an integrated health and social care system in order to 
improve health and wellbeing; enhance care, quality and 
experience for local people; and make the best use of our combined 
resources to ensure sustainable services as part of the wider 
Sussex Health and Care Partnership. 

1.8 Locally the health sector faces a potential funding gap of 
£120m by 2023/24. The absence of a long-term funding settlement 
through a Green Paper on the future of Social Care funding also 
creates considerable uncertainty.  The financial challenges in the 
local system are reflected within social care and the NHS nationally. 

1.9 The wider (Pan) Sussex Health and Care Partnership 
provides services to over 1.7 million people at a cost of £4bn. 
Having recently undergone a reorganisation to change from the 
Sussex and East Surrey STP to the Sussex Health and Care 
Partnership, it now comprises seven CCGs and several statutory 
providers (excluding GP providers). Further changes are proposed 
as outlined below. 

1.10 The partnership has produced the Sussex Health and Care 
Plan. It aims to improve lives, extend lives and save lives by 
focusing on keeping people healthier for longer and giving our local 
populations the right care, in the right place at the right time. The 

P
age 60



Adult Social Care and Health 5 

plan represents a response to the ever-changing local health and 
care needs of our populations and the national ambitions and 
expectations set out in the NHS Long Term Plan. 

1.11 More locally, a detailed place-based East Sussex Health 
and Social Care Plan has been developed by the Council and 
health partners. Providers already work closely together across 
East Sussex for the benefit of local people, and we will continue to 
develop these relationships. The bedrock of the East Sussex health 
and care model is close and effective working between primary and 
urgent care, community and mental health services, social care and 
the voluntary sector.  

1.12 East Sussex has been covered by three Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs): High Weald Lewes Havens 
(HWLH); Hastings and Rother (H&R); and Eastbourne Hailsham 
and Seaford (EHS). This will move to a single East Sussex CCG in 
April 2020, the co-terminosity with the Council is to be welcomed 
and will allow for a more joined up approach to commissioning. East 
Sussex will have 12 Primary Care Networks (PCN’s). 

1.13 PCN’s will be the unit of delivery for primary and community 
health and care providers responsible for delivering care in the 
neighbourhood – bringing social, physical and mental health 
together and delivery closer to home. PCNs will include social care 
and the voluntary sector, as well as neighbourhood health services. 

1.14 The participation of communities and residents in setting 
health and social care outcomes, helping shape how social care 
and health is delivered and how we meet forthcoming challenges 
sits at the heart of our offer.  

1.15 Work between CCGs and the Council is widely recognised 
for the significant improvements it has made including: 

 Reductions in delayed transfers of care – with the daily average of 
delays improving from 108 in April 2017 to 47 in September 2019. 

• Reductions in the length of time patients stay in hospital – 
down by one day on average which means 1,000 fewer bed 
days each month, every month. 

• Reductions in unnecessary hospital admissions – between 
October 2018 and September 2019 82% of people seen by 

our Crisis Response team had not been readmitted to 
hospital within a month. 

• A 26% reduction in the daily average number of super 
stranded patients (length of stay of 21 days or more) 
occupying beds at East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust 
(ESHT) hospitals, between April 2018 and September 2019. 

• Over 17,000 people have been helped by our benefits and 
debt advice service which we set up to reduce money-
related health problems. 

1.16 However, despite these improvements, we have not yet 
reduced the level of activity and the costs of that activity sufficiently. 
Against this backdrop, transformation of services and the further 
integration of Health and Social Care is not only desirable as a cost 
efficient way forward; it is required in order to ensure the delivery of 
effective health and social care services can continue to be 
provided to people in East Sussex. 

1.17 The core offer from the Council, mentioned previously, will 
underpin this work, establishing the contribution from ASC and 
making sure that collaboration with the NHS supports our strategic 
aims. 

1.18 Closer working with the voluntary and community sector, 
taking an asset-based approach to communities and understanding 
the importance of participation in communities health all underpin 
our approach. This work dovetails with the approach taken through 
public health commissioning.  

Safer Communities 

1.19 The East Sussex Safer Communities Partnership continues 
to deliver positive outcomes for local people against a diverse and 
challenging agenda. Sustaining existing work within the Partnership 
and developing new relationships with the voluntary sector is of 
particular importance to ensure that we are supporting those most 
vulnerable in our community.  

1.20 Over the next five years, a number of drivers and enablers 
will have the potential to directly or indirectly affect the community 
safety landscape. Developments in technology will present even 
more opportunities for specific areas of criminal and law 

P
age 61



Adult Social Care and Health 6 

enforcement exploitation. Political and economic pressures and 
instability will continue to drive legal and illegal migration, regionally 
and globally.  

1.21 Serious and Organised Crime (SOC) continues to be a 
particular focus of our work and includes preventing vulnerable 
adults, young people and our communities from being exploited by 
serious and organised criminals in relation to county lines, modern 
slavery & human trafficking and fraud related-harm. 

1.22 The Serious Violence Strategy1 sets out a new challenge for 
Community Safety Partnerships and other local partners. 
Preventing and protecting individuals from becoming victims of 
serious violent crime, including knife crime, requires a multiple 
strand approach involving a range of partners across different 
sectors such as education, health, social services, housing, youth 
services, and victim services.  

1.23 The new East Sussex Drug and Alcohol service was 
launched in June 2019.  This service works with a range of partners 
from all sectors to minimise the harm caused by substance misuse 
and to support those affected to reach their full potential. 

1.24 We will continue to work with Brighton & Hove City Council 
and other commissioners to deliver a new, shared, specialist 
service for victims and/or survivors of domestic violence and abuse, 
sexual violence, and other forms of violence including stalking, 
harassment and harmful practices. The new service will go live from 
October 2020.  

 
1 HM Government - Serious Violence Strategy April 2018 

Public Health 

1.25 The role of Public Health is to promote, protect and improve 
health and wellbeing, and reduce health inequalities. To do that we 
provide and commission a number of statutory services, some of 
which are known as mandated services because the manner of 
delivery is prescribed nationally. Other services commissioned by 
Public Health are conditions of the Public Health Grant or services 
based on the needs of people locally and support the Council’s 
statutory responsibility for the improvement and protection of the 
health of people in East Sussex. 

1.26 We know that as demand for both health and social care 
services continues to increase and the financial challenges facing 
the Council remain, we need to ensure a focus on prevention and 
early intervention. At a time of major transformation in East Sussex, 
developing an asset based approach to improving health and 
wellbeing presents a key opportunity. It involves mobilising the skills 
and knowledge of individuals and the connections and resources 
within communities and organisations to improve health and 
wellbeing, rather than focusing on problems and deficits. The 
approach aims to empower individuals and communities to help 
themselves and so enables them to rely less on public services. 

1.27 The Council is undertaking a comprehensive review of 
Public Health, which will include a focus on how the Public Health 
grant is spent. The review will report in 2020.  

 

P
age 62



Adult Social Care and Health 7 

Operating Principles 

The Council has agreed three operating principles that underpin how the Council works across all services and with partners: 

❖ Strategic commissioning: using an evidence-based approach to assess and meet the needs of local people in the most effective way. 
We will specify and deliver appropriate services to secure the best outcomes and value for money for residents. 

❖ One Council: working as a single organisation both through the processes we use, and how we work. We will work in a well connected 
way across Council teams so we harness all our energy and resources towards achieving our priorities and remove duplication. We will 
judge our success against outcomes for the whole population and the organisation (and whole local public sector) not against the 
interests of a particular group, team or department. 

❖ Strong partnerships: recognising we are one part of a wider system, we will work effectively with partners across East Sussex and the 
region as well as with the wider public sector to ensure we learn from others, secure best value for money and maximise impact for our 
residents. 

P
age 63



Adult Social Care and Health 8 

Structure Chart 

 

 

 

P
age 64



Adult Social Care and Health 9 

Delivering Priority Outcomes 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Priority Outcomes 

The Council has four overarching priority outcomes: driving sustainable economic 
growth; keeping vulnerable people safe; helping people help themselves; and making 
best use of resources. Making best use of resources is the gateway priority through 
which any activity and accompanying resources must pass. 

For each priority outcome there are specific delivery outcomes. These are referenced 
to performance measures in this Portfolio Plan. 

Helping people help themselves - delivery outcomes 

8. Commissioners and providers from all sectors put people first when providing 
services and information to help them meet their needs 

9. The most vulnerable adults get the support they need to maintain their 
independence and this is provided at or close to home 

10. Individuals and communities are supported and encouraged to be responsible, 
help others and make the most of community capacity and assets 

Keeping vulnerable people safe - delivery outcomes 

5. All vulnerable people in East Sussex are known to relevant local agencies and 
services are delivered together to meet their needs 

6. People feel safe at home 

7. People feel safe with support services 

Driving sustainable economic growth - delivery outcomes 

1. Employment and productivity rates are high throughout the county 

2. Individuals, communities and businesses thrive in East Sussex with the 
environment and infrastructure to meet their needs 

3. The workforce has and maintains the skills needed for good quality employment 

4. All children progress well from early years to school leaver and into education, 
training and employment 

Making best use of resources - delivery outcomes 

11. Applying strategic commissioning to ensure resources 
are directed to meet local need 

12. Working as One Council, both through the processes we 
use and how we work across services 

13. Working in partnership to ensure that all publicly 
available resources are used to deliver maximum 
benefits to local people 

14. Ensuring we achieve value for money in the services we 
commission and provide 

15. Maximising the funding available through bidding for 
funding and lobbying for the best deal for East Sussex 

        

            

         

       

        

           

            

        

            

           

                             

P
age 65



Adult Social Care and Health 10 

Driving Sustainable Economic Growth 

2.1 A healthy workforce is a key component of a sustainable 
local economy. Public health are working with local stakeholders, 
including economic development and local business support 
networks to develop an East Sussex Healthy Workforce programme 
to support local employers to take action to create and maintain 
healthy workplaces, that helps their employees to improve their 
health and wellbeing. Alongside this, the public health integrated 
lifestyle service, One You East Sussex, will continue to roll out a 
programme of targeted NHS Health Checks. This includes working 
with employers to offer NHS Health Checks and advice and support 
to enable people to make lifestyle changes to improve their health, 
in particular targeting employees who are unlikely to take up their 
check via their GP. 

2.2  ASCH is a major contributor to the East Sussex economy – 
In East Sussex there were an estimated 21,000 jobs in adult social 
care split between local authorities (9%), independent sector 
providers (83%) and jobs for direct payment recipients (9%) in 
2017. Adult social care has an experienced ‘core’ of workers. 
Workers in East Sussex had on average 8.2 years of experience in 
the sector and 71% of the workforce had been working in the sector 
for at least three years. 

2.3 In 2017 the adult social care sector was estimated to 
contribute £38.5 billion per annum to the English economy and in 
the South East region this contribution was estimated to be 
between £6.7 and £8.1 billion. Almost half of this is estimated to be 
the wage bill of the sector. 

Keeping vulnerable people safe 

2.4 The Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) is a multi-agency 
partnership, made up of statutory and voluntary partners as well as 
lay-members, established to promote well-being and oversee 
Safeguarding Adults work county-wide. The SAB areas of focus 
are: 

• Adults, carers and the local community assisting to shape the 
work of the SAB and safeguarding responses. 

• Ensuring the SAB provides strategic leadership to embed the 
principles of safeguarding across agencies and contribute to 
the prevention of abuse and neglect. 

• Establishing robust feedback mechanisms on safeguarding 
policies and procedures. 

• Making safeguarding personal (making sure adults are involved 
and consulted in the process of helping them to stay safe and 
agreeing goals to achieve) – ensuring these principles are 
central to safeguarding practice across all agencies. 

• Ensuring learning from reviews is effectively embedded into 
practice to facilitate organisational change across agencies. 

• Ensuring the workforce is equipped to support adults 
appropriately where abuse and neglect are suspected. This will 
include emerging themes of coercive control and domestic 
abuse, modern slavery, cuckooing, and safeguarding rough 
sleepers. 

2.5 The East Sussex Safer Communities Partnership continues to 
deliver positive outcomes for local people against a diverse and 
challenging agenda. Sustaining existing work within the 
Partnership and developing new relationships with the 
voluntary sector is of particular importance to ensure that we 
are supporting those most vulnerable in the community. 

2.6 The following Partnership priority areas were approved by the 
Safer Communities Board in September 2019 and will be the 
focus of our 2020/21 Safer Communities Partnership Business 
Plan:  

• Preventing vulnerable adults, young people and our 
communities from being exploited by serious and organised 
criminals in relation to county lines, modern slavery & human 
trafficking and fraud related-harm. 

• Preventing and protecting individuals from becoming victims of 
serious violent crime, including knife crime. 

• Preventing and protecting individuals from the serious harm of 
domestic violence & abuse, rape & sexual violence and abuse, 
stalking & harassment and harmful practices. 

2.7 A cross-cutting theme throughout all of our priority areas is 
raising awareness of online safety and encouraging young 

P
age 66



Adult Social Care and Health 11 

people to develop a positive and healthy relationship with 
social media, the internet and mobile phones.  

2.8 In addition to the priorities adopted by the Partnership, there 
are other workstreams identified through the community, 
partnership processes and statutory requirements that are 
maintained as business as usual: 

• Preventing violent extremism through education & 
training, and protecting and supporting individuals 
through the Channel programme. 

• Assisting in the implementation of the offender 
management strategies through our joint work at the 
reducing re-offending sub group of the Surrey Sussex 
Criminal Justice Board. 

• Helping people recover from drugs and alcohol misuse 
and preventing premature death. 

• Raising awareness and identifying hotspots, patterns 
and repeat victims of anti-social behaviour and hate 
crime within the community, and work with key partners 
to improve and manage partnership responses. 

• Co-ordinating the delivery of Restorative Justice and 
community resolutions throughout the Criminal Justice 
process by working with victims, offenders and partners. 

• Supporting young people who have been identified as 
being at risk of engaging in serious violence and gang 
behaviour through Reboot, the early intervention youth 
programme. 

• Supporting the Sussex Police prevention teams with 
engagement within our communities. 

2.9 Further details on our current Partnership priorities and our 
other workstreams can be found in our Safer Communities 
Partnership Business Plan, Safe in East Sussex website 
and quarterly newsletters.  

 
2.10 Substance Misuse Treatment & Recovery 

• The new drug and alcohol treatment service launched in June 
2019 and is working to improve the lives of individuals, families 
and communities affected by substance misuse disorders. 

• The service is delivered by a specialist provider combining 
specialist services with the use of existing assets within the 
community, combined with the continued support of mutual aid 
projects. This holistic approach will support more people to 
reintegrate back into the wider community and allow them to 
make a positive contribution and live lives free from substance 
misuse. 

• We will continue to support the development of interventions; 
services and projects which help sustain recovery from drug and 
alcohol dependence in the county. 

• We will work in partnership with a range of partners including 
Public Health, Community Safety Partnerships and the Police 
on a range of initiatives to ensure substance misuse is viewed 
as both population health issues as well as considering the 
broader impacts of substance misuse on the wider community.   

• We will continue to develop initiatives which address new and 
emerging trends within substance misuse including reducing the 
misuse of prescription drugs, ensuring there is a more joined up 
approach to support those with a dual diagnosis and addressing 
recreational drug use. 

• We will continue to develop and support a range of initiatives 
which aim to reduce the number of drug related deaths in the 
county, including undertaking two confidential inquiries a year 
into those drug related deaths that have occurred within East 
Sussex.  A drug related death overview group has been 
convened to ensure all learning from these deaths is applied at 
an operational level. 

We will support the development of early intervention projects to 
reduce the misuse of drugs and alcohol.2.11 Domestic Violence and 
Abuse, Sexual Violence, and other forms of Violence: 

➢ We will continue to work with Brighton & Hove City Council 
(BHCC) and other commissioners to deliver a new, shared, 
specialist service for victims/survivors of domestic and sexual 
abuse. 

➢ During the year, alongside BHCC, we will refresh the Domestic 
Abuse Strategy, which addresses domestic violence and 
abuse, sexual violence, and other forms of violence including 
stalking and harassment and harmful practices. 

P
age 67



Adult Social Care and Health 12 

• This will include further stakeholder consultation to inform 
service development through recommissioning, and for the 
development of the strategy delivery plan.  
➢ Measuring outcomes effectively and with clear purpose to 

maintain focus on the experience of victims and survivors is 
a key focus of the partnership, and will remain so with the 
introduction of  a revised Pan-Sussex strategy with localised 
delivery plans, and the recommission of specialist services 
in 2020. 

• We will ensure professionals have the skills and confidence to 
respond to violence and abuse. This includes: 
➢ Delivering Domestic Abuse Training as part of a ‘Whole 

Family Approach’ for practitioners from Children’s Services 
and ASC and other professionals. 

➢ We will review local training needs and seek to address 
any gaps in the current training offer, in particular in 
relation to coercive control, as well as sexual violence and 
harmful practices. 

➢ We will develop the local Champions Network, to bring 
together practitioners from a range of agencies and to 
further strengthen community and agency responses 
across the county. 

• We will work in partnership to increase survivor safety and 
wellbeing, including: 
➢ Working with housing providers to ensure victims are 

supported to remain in their homes wherever possible. 
➢ Testing new approaches to supporting victims with multiple 

complex needs in local refuges. 
➢ Continuing to develop our local Multi-Agency Risk 

Assessment Conference (MARAC) process to better 
manage complex and repeat cases and ensure effective 
links to Children’s Services and ASC. 

➢ Developing resources for professionals around domestic 
violence and abuse. 

➢ Reviewing access to talking therapies for victims of sexual 
violence and developing provision locally. We will also look 
at developing provision for victims of domestic violence. 

➢ Ensuring that violence and abuse are reflected in the 
refreshed Sussex Safeguarding Adults Policy and 
Procedures. 

• We will hold perpetrators to account by: 
➢ Developing a profile of domestic violence perpetrators in 

East Sussex, including the family and community contexts 
within which they operate, the identification of multiple 
perpetrators and whether there are wider safeguarding 
issues that need to be considered. 

➢ Supporting the delivery of new/pilot programmes that work 
with perpetrators to change their behaviour. 

➢ Working in partnership to develop coordinated services 
working with perpetrators to stop cycles of abuse. 

2.12 We will continue to provide a number of programmes, 
through our Public Health budget to help ensure vulnerable people 
are safe including: 

• Initiatives to address fuel poverty to help the most vulnerable to 
remain warm and well. A Warm Home Check service will 
provide home visits, advice and home improvement measures 
to support those most vulnerable to keep warm and well; it will 
also offer tailored advice to anyone living in a cold home. A 
website offers information on local services and support: 
www.warmeastsussex.org.uk. 

• Partnership work with East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service to 
provide child safety advice and equipment, such as stair gates, 
to vulnerable families with young children. 

• Assurance for health protection across the system as a whole, 
including working with NHS England to improve rates of 
immunisation and screening coverage and agree remedial 
plans where targets are not being met and where 
improvements could be made. 

• Commissioning the healthy child programme (health visitors as 
part of a 0-5 integrated service and the School Health Service 
for 5-19 year olds) to support and improve health and wellbeing 
of children, young people and parents of under 5’s. 

 

 

P
age 68

http://www.safeineastsussex.org.uk/get-involved.html
http://www.warmeastsussex.org.uk/


Adult Social Care and Health 13 

2.13  Impacts of Covid-19 

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable People 

2.14 As of 7th July there are a total of 21,233 people identified as 
clinically extremely vulnerable in East Sussex, and therefore 
shielded. Of these 12,874 (61%) are currently registered on the 
central government Extremely Vulnerable Person (EVP) service. 

Led by the ASC&H Housing & Support Solutions Team, call groups 
were set up to make contact with all shielded people who were not in 
receipt of a Adult Social Care commissioned and funded service (day 
care; home care; direct payments; nursing or residential placements; 
adult placement; extra care). These calls groups were comprised of 
staff from Libraries, Homeworks, STEPS, ESCC Parking Team, 
Children’s Services, WELbeing, and a small local Independent Call 
Centre. 

Calls were made to ensure support is in place to people who have 
been identified by the NHS, as someone at risk of severe illness if 
they catch covid-19 because they have an underlying disease or 
health condition that means if they catch the virus, are more likely to 
be admitted to hospital than others. 

Up to 7th July calls have been made to 18,205 people who are 
Shielding, and 3,404 follow up calls to people on the EVP service 
who required further welfare calls. Additionally work is in progress to 
contact the 2,183 people who were receiving a government food box 
(as at 30th June) to signpost them to alternative forms of support 
when the Shielded Group is paused and government food parcels 
cease at the end of July.  

A range of signposting, advice and forms of support was offered to 
shielded people as part of the contact including: 

• For those who require NHS volunteer support 
(food/medication etc), a referral was made on the GOOD 
SAM website; 

• Details for Care for the Carers where the shielded person had 
a family member/friend/neighbour providing essential care 
who may need additional support; 

• Referral for an ESCC Essentials Food box where the person 
is experiencing ongoing issues accessing food e.g. 

dietary/cultural or insufficient supplies due to size of 
household 

• Information on independent hot meal providers 

• Referral to HSCC if person has personal care or mobility 
needs, or safeguarding risks identified 

 

Where no contact has been made through a phone call, a letter has 
been sent with information of support options and contact details for 
getting in touch with ASC&H. Where a response has not been 
received following a letter we have been working with East Sussex 
Fire and Rescue Service and British Red Cross who are undertaking 
a face to face welfare visit. 

In addition to the call groups above, operational teams within ASC&H 
Teams have been contacting shielded people in receipt of ASC 
commissioned and funded services and people known to teams who 
may be vulnerable although not classified as Extremely Clinically 
Vulnerable (such as those over 70). An ESCC Shielded Helpline was 
also established, managed by the ASC&H Complaints Team and 
supported by HSCC and the training team. 

ASC&H regularly receives reports from the Police and other 
concerned parties regarding Vulnerable Adults – letters have been 
sent to 2,309 people who were reported as vulnerable to ASC since 
the beginning of 2020. 

ESCC food distribution service 

2.15 Led by the ASC&H Equality and Inclusion Team, a new food 
distribution service was rapidly set up in April for people shielding at 
home that had not yet received their food parcel from the national 
government and had no other access to food and essentials during 
lockdown. Since then over 8,000 food boxes have been delivered 
and over 1,700 calls handled through the shielded helpline. Staff from 
across every department pulled together to deliver the service, a vital 
lifeline for hundreds of residents, and now the team’s focus is on 
supporting people’s transition back to doing their own shopping. 
Teams involved include; Libraries, Training, Community Safety, the 
Transport Hub, Procurement, Contract Management, ISEND, CET 
Archaeology, the Planning Policy and Development Management 
Team, ESBAS, CS Customer Relations and the Courier Service. 

P
age 69



Adult Social Care and Health 14 

Care sector impacts 

2.16 Since March 2020 all parts of the social care sector have 
been responding to the pandemic, including making changes to 
service delivery to care for the most vulnerable people in our 
population during lockdown, physical distancing, shielding and 
isolation, as well as to discharge pathways to rapidly allow for surge 
capacity in hospitals within our system.  

In East Sussex this has been supported by regular communication 
and sharing of information and guidance, training and good practice 
and daily monitoring of the sector to support business continuity and 
provide rapid multi-disciplinary support in emergency situations. This 
has included specific steps taken by the Council and Clinical 
Commissioning Group to alleviate short-term financial pressure on 
care homes, home care, extra care, Direct Payments and Personal 
Assistants and commissioned services as a result of responding to 
COVID-19 

An East Sussex Care Homes Resilience Plan has been developed to 
draw together our work as a health and social care system on 
infection prevention and control, training, PPE, reducing workforce 
movement, quarantining, stepping up NHS clinical support, 
comprehensive testing and building the workforce.  A process has 
been put in place to monitor the delivery of mutual aid support to care 
homes jointly across primary, community, acute and social care with 
representation from care sector leads. 

Our care sector has reported high levels of ongoing concern about 
the cost and supply of PPE, staff and client testing, workforce 
challenges and the impact on short, medium and long term financial 
outlook caused by COVID-19 and the ongoing need to prevent and 
control infection.  For example, maintaining social distancing is 
particularly challenging for some services like Day Services, where 
capacity is significantly reduced in a buildings based environment; 
high levels of voids in residential and nursing homes, combined with 
ongoing COVID-19 outbreaks present particular financial and 
operational challenges for care homes.  In June we distributed the 
first allocation of Infection Control Fund made to East Sussex from 
National Government to support the whole market, the second 
allocation will be made in July.  We will continue to work as a whole 

health and social care system to manage existing and new 
challenges and requirements as they arise from COVID-19, and 
deliver co-ordinated support to enable our local independent care 
sector to provide safe, effective care for our population.  This will 
focus on all aspects of social care, including care homes, home care, 
Personal Assistants, Extra Care, and supported housing, and for the 
Council will be managed alongside significant financial risks that 
have arisen from the pandemic.   

Personal Protective Equipment  

2.17 Since April we have been issuing supplies of PPE across the 
county to a range of internal and external teams, including providers, 
GPs, pharmacies and crematoriums.  This has included masks, 
gloves, aprons, waste bags, body bags and eye protection, and to 
date we have issued 1,224,316 items of PPE.  To enable this a team 
of volunteers from across Adult Social Care have been undertaking a 
variety of tasks such as the management of requests and inboxes, 
picking and packing, manning a collection hub at St Marys House 
and undertaking deliveries.   

 

Community Hubs 

2.18 Support to a wider cohort of vulnerable people has been 
provided through Community Hubs. Community Hubs are led by a 
partnership of District and Borough Councils, Voluntary Action (VAs) 
organisations, and other local voluntary community and social 
enterprise (VCSE) organisations. ESCC, in partnership with the NHS, 
has supported the Community Hubs to establish and become 
operational by convening regular updates and meetings, supporting 
communications and data gathering, and helping to identify issues 
and overcome barriers. Over 6000 people have been in contact with 
their District & Borough Councils to access support through 
Community Hubs, and the cross-sector partnership has supported 
many more people through a variety of other access points.   

Community Hub partners have begun discussions on the role of 
Hubs in supporting vulnerable people during the next phases of 
coronavirus pandemic. The Hubs have provided a vital service to 
vulnerable residents during the pandemic so far. As lockdown and 

P
age 70



Adult Social Care and Health 15 

social distancing measures ease demand has fallen and evolved, but 
there is a need to anticipate new types of demand driven by future 
phases of the pandemic and the longer term impact on economic 
insecurity, health and wellbeing.  We are now working together to 
consider what is required from Community Hubs in the future, and 
the role of each partner. Partners also recognise that organisations 
and communities at every level have played a vital role in the local 
response to the pandemic. We need to develop our understanding of 
the sustainability of this support and work together to meet local 
need.  For the time-being, Community Hubs remain available for 
anyone struggling to cope with the effects of coronavirus until at least 
the 31st August. 

 

Helping people help themselves 

2.19 Health and Social Care Connect (HSCC) provides the public 
and professionals with a single point for information, advice and 
access to community health and social care services. This access 
point is available from 8:00am to 10:00pm every single day of the 
year and ensures that people get access to the support they need 
without unnecessary delay. Between April and July 2019, HSCC 
received an average of just over 11,380 contacts per month, this 
compares to an average of around 11,210 per month in the same 
period in 2018 (a 1.5% increase). 

2.20 The integrated community health and social care services 
are implementing Discharge To Assess (D2A)/Home First 
pathways.  The pathways are designed to avoid prolonged stays in 
hospital for people awaiting assessment or commissioned services 
to enable their discharge.  Where possible D2A will aim to avoid 
unnecessary admissions to hospital, and where an admission is 
necessary, it will ensure that people are discharged as soon as is 
safe and practical, back to their own homes or to a D2A bed to have 
their assessments and services arranged outside of an acute 
hospital. 

2.21 Frail adults across East Sussex can receive Technology 
Enabled Care Services (TECS), to help manage risks and maintain 
independence at home. TECS includes Telecare, which offers a 
range of sensors and detectors to meet different needs, such as 

wearable alert buttons, fall detectors or medication dispensers. The 
sensors can be monitored 24/7 by a local contact centre. 
Environmental sensors, such as smoke alarms or flood detectors 
are also linked to the centre for automatic alerts. Individuals can 
also benefit from scheduled live or recorded telephone calls to 
provide welfare checks or reminders during periods of reablement. 

2.22 Adults across East Sussex can access our reablement 
service, which works with adults for a time limited period to support 
them to maximise their independence and reduce the need for 
ongoing care and support.    

2.23    Our Occupational Therapy service offer preventative clinics 
around the county where adults and carers can access advice and 
information on maintaining independence, as well as access some 
daily living equipment without the need for a full statutory 
assessment.   

2.24 Occupational Therapists are now based within each of the 
District and Borough Housing teams across the county, working 
jointly with Housing Officers to assess for and support the provision 
of major adaptations in a timely manner to support people to remain 
at home safely and with maximum independence.  

2.25 We have introduced new online tools to support people to 
access information, establish the likelihood of being eligible for 
Social Care, and get an indication of whether they would need to 
pay for their care and support.  These tools can assist people in 
getting the right information at the right time and to provide 
information to support the assessment process in a way that suits 
them 

2.26 Public Health commissions a number of services and 
programmes of support, including: 

Sexual health – We have commissioned a fully integrated specialist 
sexual health and HIV service for our residents where contraception 
provision and genitourinary medicine (GUM) are provided together 
as one service. This involved collaborating with NHS England to 
provide the HIV treatment and care, and prison sexual health in 
reach services through the one provider. 

P
age 71



Adult Social Care and Health 16 

The East Sussex Sexual Health Comprehensive Needs 
Assessment was published in August 2019. The findings will inform 
the priorities for the East Sussex Sexual Health Commissioning 
Strategy over the next five years. 

East Sussex are one of  twelve partners across four countries 
implementing an INTERREG 2 Seas European project examining 
wider aspects of sexual heath and developing models of 
intervention for those aged over 45. 

Our aims for 2020/21 are to explore access to oral contraception 
through community pharmacies including quick start of 
contraception when emergency hormonal contraception has been 
requested. The intention is to reduce footfall in commissioned face 
to face services and increase value for money whilst retaining 
access and quality of provision. We will also explore alternative 
forms of service access and review sexual health service priorities 
for the county. 

Healthy Living – We will continue to provide behaviour change 
support to people through our One You East Sussex service, via 
an integrated service delivery model that  provides one–stop shop 
support. People accessing the service receive tailored packages of 
support which enable them to address all of their risk factors 
(smoking, low physical activity, excess weight etc.) through a single 
service, and in a way that’s most likely to work for them. 

Asset Based Wellbeing Programme – We have commissioned an 
asset based wellbeing programme, Making it Happen, which aims 
to build the confidence of local people to come together in their 
neighbourhoods and take action to create stronger communities.  
The programme recognises that every person has their own 
individual strengths and every neighbourhood has a wealth of 
positive things happening in it.  Through strengths based and 
community driven community building, the programme aims to 
increase social connection, improve people’s confidence and 
capability to contribute to their community, and increase our 
understanding of the factors that influence healthy communities.  
The programme is targeted in neighbourhoods where levels of 
deprivation are greatest. 

Drugs and alcohol – The Alcohol Partnership, facilitated by Public 
Health, brings together a range of partners (including Council 
Children’s Services, the NHS, district and borough community 
safety and licensing leads, and Sussex police) to address alcohol-
related harm in East Sussex. As a partnership we have 
commissioned a social marketing campaign to discourage parents 
from supplying alcohol to young people; established a Safe Space 
to reduce alcohol-related A&E attendance during the night time 
economy in Hastings; established community alcohol partnerships 
in high risk areas and promoted responsible sales and targeted 
problem premises e.g. through licensing and trading standards. 

Services from General Practices and Community Pharmacies – We 
will continue to commission a range of public health services from 
GPs and pharmacies to increase access to help in priority areas. 
This includes commissioning our GPs to offer and provide: NHS 
Health Checks to all their eligible patients in 2020/21  sexual health 
services such as long acting reversible contraception (LARC); STI 
testing and treatment; help for people to stop smoking; and drug 
and alcohol services. 

Oral health – In addition to the targeted provision of toothbrush 
packs to strengthen advice given by health visitors, taking a 
common risk factor approach across the county by promoting: 
healthy eating, smoking cessation and reducing alcohol 
consumption, we plan to continue a train the wider workforce 
model, with the aim of improving the oral health of vulnerable 
groups, including adults in care homes. 

Public Mental Health – We will continue to promote the mental 
health and wellbeing of East Sussex residents through initiatives 
that impact across their lives, for example: skilling up frontline 
workers to promote good mental health; supporting and 
encouraging employers to promote good mental health in their 
workplaces, activity to improve the physical health of people with 
diagnosed mental health problems; and campaigns to raise 
awareness of mental health and to reduce stigma. 

The multi-agency East Sussex Suicide Prevention Group 
coordinates suicide prevention through the suicide prevention 
action plan. A Beachy Head Risk Management Group focuses 

P
age 72



Adult Social Care and Health 17 

specifically on partnership work related to suicide prevention at 
Beachy Head. 

Health Promotion Campaigns – In 2020/21 we will deliver a series 
of health promotion campaigns to raise awareness of key issues 
and the steps that people can take to improve their health and 
wellbeing. To provide support to anyone whose role includes health 
promotion, the East Sussex Health Promotion Resource Service 
provides a range of high quality online, printable and hard copy 
health promotion resources. 

Workforce development – Our Making Every Contact Count 
(MECC) training programme provides frontline practitioners with the 
knowledge, skills and confidence they need to deliver healthy 
lifestyle brief advice interventions as part of their everyday 
interactions with end users. 

Children – A range of support and services to enable schools and 
early years settings to contribute to improving the health of children 
and young people have been commissioned or established, this 
includes: advice and training for nurseries and children’s centres on 
healthy eating and physical activity; Personal, Social and Health 
Education (PSHE) Hubs which offer school-to-school support; a 
relationships and sex education support programme; a child 
accident prevention home safety advice and equipment service in 
collaboration with East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service; and 
specialist public health advice to a range of partner organisations 
and within the Council, to support public health outcomes for 
children and young people. We will continue to support nurseries, 
schools and colleges to develop their whole-settings approaches to 
health improvement. We will further develop the Healthy Active 
Little Ones (HALO) programme for early years settings, offer 
support to schools to introduce statutory relationships & sex 
education and health education, and explore the introduction of a 
health improvement quality scheme for schools. 

Children’s weight management – In 2020/21 we will continue to 
establish our children and young people’s weight management 
services, as part of our comprehensive whole system approach to 
obesity. 

Making best use of resources 

2.27 ASC continues to work in partnership with our local NHS 
providers in taking a system-wide approach to the planning and 
delivery of health and social care. Together we spend over £1bn on 
health and social care in East Sussex. As demand for services and 
the cost of service delivery continue to rise, it is essential that we 
make best use of our combined health and social care resources. 
By working together we have begun to make improvements in care 
pathways across health and social care to ensure that we best meet 
the needs of people in East Sussex. 

2.28 Reportable Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC) have been 
improving since April 2017, with the daily average of delays 
improving from 108 in April 2017 to 47 in September 2019. There 
has been a focus on the number of super stranded patients (length 
of stay of 21 days or more) occupying beds at ESHT hospitals, and 
this has seen significant improvements. We will be continuing to 
implement a number of actions to reduce DToC within the county 
including: 

• implementation of the Ambulatory Care/Acute Medical 
(including Frailty) Assessment Model at both Eastbourne 
District General and Conquest Hospitals; 

• increased multi-agency focus on patients with longer length of 
stays; 

• rapid improvement in CHC assessments undertaken out of 
hospital; 

• further improvements to the home care market to reduce 
packages of care delays; and 

• improved use of Sussex Community Trust beds to support 
improved acute flow. 

2.29 One of the key ways of delivering a more effective and 
efficient service is to continue to develop a more integrated service 
model with colleagues in the NHS. Over the last several months 
work has been underway to look at the best opportunities to 
continue to take forward integrated health and care in our area, and 
deliver the best care for our residents. As a result, over the next 
year community services will be working more closely together in 
four main areas: 

P
age 73



Adult Social Care and Health 18 

•  In Eastbourne, nursing and social care teams are coming 
together to trial working from a shared base, to support joint 
working and co-ordination of care. This pilot will guide how joint 
working works best, and will include engagement with primary 
care, mental health and voluntary services. 

•  Joint working between the Council and ESHT Occupational 
Therapy staff will be developed, to share skills, best practice 
and help create capacity. 

• New ‘Home First’ pathways are being tested. These are new, 
joined up pathways designed to get people home from hospital 
sooner, and to make sure that assessments for community 
support and decisions about longer term care are not made in 
hospital. 

• Work will also take place to look at the best ways for different 
teams and services to work together to provide integrated, 
rapid response care to people at home, to support discharge 
from hospital and avoid unnecessary hospital admissions. 

2.30 A major component of the transformation programme is to 
continue to improve urgent care services within the region. Urgent 
care is a term that describes the range of services provided for 
people who require same day health or social care advice, care or 
treatment. This is wider than just emergency care provided in 
accident and emergency (A&E), other hospital departments, 999 
and ambulances, which are set up to respond to serious or life-
threatening emergencies. The overarching vision was to adopt an 
integrated system-wide approach creating a long-term sustainable 
solution for local people. This in part was achieved through a 
collaborative senior operational group called Operational Executive 
(OPEX) and which remains in place to continue the partnership 
work between the Local Authority, CCGs and the Acute Trust. 

Some of the current and forthcoming developments include: 

• The introduction of an Integrated Discharge Team (IDT) across 
ESHT. The IDT is made up of professionals from 
physiotherapy, occupational therapy and social care. The team 
are working together to ensure the safe and timely discharge of 
patients from ESHT, and to avoid people spending 

unnecessary days in hospital.  This new way of working links 
closely with the Home First pilot, where people are discharged 
from hospital to be assessed by therapy staff at home. 

• Every hospital must ensure that patients who attend A&E and 
can be seen by primary care clinicians are identified, so that 
A&E departments are free to care for the sickest patients, 
including older people. 

• Every hospital and its local health and social care partners 
must ensure that patients are cared for in the right place and at 
the right time, including better and more timely hand-offs 
between their A&E clinicians and acute physicians, ‘discharge 
to assess’, ‘trusted assessor’ arrangements, streamlined 
continuing healthcare processes, and seven-day discharge 
capabilities. 

• Hospitals, primary and community care and councils should 
also work together to ensure people are not stuck in hospital 
while waiting for delayed community health and social care. 

• 24-hour ‘core 24’ mental health teams will be established to 
cover a greater number of A&E departments. 

• Developing Urgent Treatment Centres (UTCs), which have 
been nationally mandated to ensure that people receive the 
same levels of services wherever they are in the country. Our 
UTCs will be GP and/or consultant-led, open at least 12 hours 
a day, seven days a week, and be equipped to diagnose and 
deal with many of the most common ailments people attend 
A&E for. UTCs will ease the pressure on hospitals, ambulance 
services and GP practices for urgent care cases. 

• Alongside plans to develop UTCs we are also improving access 
to general practice by extending access to appointments 
outside normal hours, to include evenings, weekends and bank 
holidays, making it easier for people to access GP services at a 
time more convenient to them. We have begun the roll out of 
40,000 additional GP appointment slots per year across 
Eastbourne, Hailsham & Seaford CCG and Hastings & Rother 
CCG. 

2.31 Annual Procurement Forward Plans were introduced during 
2019/20 to enable the Council to maintain an oversight of 
procurement activity across a full range of Council services. The 

P
age 74



Adult Social Care and Health 19 

Forward Plans also enable the Procurement team to plan ahead 
and prioritise resource on the projects where they can add most 
value. Procurement Officers worked with their service stakeholders 
and commissioners to develop the Forward Plans for each 

directorate area across the Council. For 2020/21, there will be an 
estimated 21 projects being worked on by Procurement over £1m in 
value, covering the areas of this Portfolio. Attached as Appendix 1 
are the details of these projects. 

P
age 75



Adult Social Care and Health 20 

Performance Measures and Targets 

 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr 
Maynard 

Number of hospital bed days lost 
due to delayed transfers from 
hospital care (Daily average) CP 

47.9 47.1 39.8 39.8 39.8 

There are no unnecessary 
delayed discharges from 
hospital. 

Delivery outcomes 5, 9 
and 11. 

Number of hospital bed days lost 
due to delayed transfers from 
hospital care due to Council social 
services (Daily average) CP 

9.3 7.7 11.5 11.5 11.5 

Number of hospital bed days lost 
due to delayed transfers from 
hospital care due to local NHS 
(Daily average) CP 

42.4 38.3 24.4 24.4 24.4 

The proportion of service users 
discharged from the Joint 
Community Rehabilitation Service 
that do not require on-going care  

73% 72% 65% 65% 65% 

Adults who have required 
support are able to live as 
independently as possible. 

Delivery outcome 9. 

National outcome measure: The 
proportion of people who use 
services who say that those 
services have made them feel safe 
and secure (Adult Social Care 
Survey) CP 

87.6% 83.6% >83.8% >83.8% >83.8% 

Services received by 
adults with long term 
support also have a 
positive impact on their 
safety. 

Delivery outcomes 6 and 
7. 

National outcome measure: 
Proportion of working age adults 
and older people receiving self-
directed support CP 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Adults are able to take 
control of the support they 
receive. 

Delivery outcomes 8 and 
9. 

National outcome measure: 
Proportion of working age adults 
and older people receiving direct 
payments CP 

31.5% 32.9% >34.3% >34.3% >34.3% 

P
age 76



Adult Social Care and Health 21 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr 
Maynard 

The proportion of clients who find it 
easy to find information about 
services (Adult Social Care 
Survey) 

75.5% 75.7% >73.1% >73.1% >73.1% 

Adults who need our 
support are able to easily 
find the appropriate 
service information. 

Delivery outcome 8. 

Number of carers supported 
through short-term crisis 
intervention CP 

765 921 390 390 390 

To support carers when 
they most need it to 
enable them to carry on in 
their caring role. 

Delivery outcome 9. 

National outcome measure: 
Proportion of people who use 
services, who reported that they 
had as much social contact as they 
would like (Adult Social Care 
Survey) 

49.2% 52.4% ≥50.0% ≥50.0% ≥50.0% 

Adults supported by the 
department do not 
become socially isolated. 

Delivery outcomes 5 and 
9. 

National outcome measure: Self-
reported experience of social care 
users quality of life (Adult Social 
Care Survey) 

19.7 19.7 ≥19.5 ≥19.5 ≥19.5 

To monitor various 
aspects of quality of life 
and the impact service 
provision has. 

Delivery outcomes 5 and 
9. 

National outcome measure: The 
proportion of people who use 
services who have control over 
their daily life (Adult Social Care 
Survey)  

81.7% 82.5% ≥80.6% ≥80.6% ≥80.6% 

The services received by 
adults complement their 
ability to maintain control 
over how they live their 
lives. 

Delivery outcomes 5 and 
9. 

National outcome measure: 
Overall satisfaction of people who 
use services with their care and 
support (Adult Social Care 
Survey) 

72.1% 68.3% >67.3% >67.3% >67.3% 

Adults who use adult 
social care services are 
satisfied by what they 
receive. 

Delivery outcomes 7 and 
9. 

P
age 77



Adult Social Care and Health 22 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr 
Maynard 

Satisfaction rates for people with 
mental health conditions arising 
from NHS mental healthcare 

81.2% 
81.8% of 

respondents 
‘        ’) 

80% of 
respondents 

‘positive’ 

80% of respondents 
‘positive’ 

80% of respondents 
‘positive’ Adults who use mental 

health services are 
satisfied by what they 
receive. 

Delivery outcome 9 

Proportion of people with mental 
health conditions likely to 
recommend NHS mental 
healthcare 

52.0% 
47.4% ‘ x      y 

     y’    
recommend 

50% ‘extremely 
likely’ to 

recommend 

50% ‘extremely likely’ 
to recommend 

50% ‘extremely 
likely’ to 

recommend 

Outcomes for people with mental 
health conditions arising from NHS 
mental healthcare: number of 
people entering treatment 

9,412 9,513 7,500 7,500 7,500 To monitor the number of 
people who are being 
supported by NHS mental 
health services. 

Delivery outcome 9 

Outcomes for people with mental 
health conditions arising from NHS 
mental healthcare: percentage of 
people completing treatment 

54.6% 51.2% 50% 50% 50% 

Percentage of interventions for 
Joint Community Rehabilitation 
started within their required 
timescales 

69% 69% 65% 65% 65% 

Services are provided in a 
timely manner. 

Delivery outcomes 8, 9 
and 11. 

Percentage of Health and Social 
Care Connect referrals triaged and 
progressed to required services 
within required timescales CP 

85.6% 84% 90% 90% 90% 

Services are provided in a 
timely manner. 

Delivery outcomes 8, 11, 
12 and 13. 

Percentage of Health and Social 
Care Connect contacts that are 
appropriate and effective (i.e. lead 
to the provision of necessary 
additional services) CP 

96.8% 98% 95% 95% 95% 

Monitor the number of 
contacts from health 
professionals that aren’t 
taken any further. 

Delivery outcomes 8, 11, 
12 and 13. 

Number of people receiving 
support through ‘STEPS to stay 
independent’ and Homeworks CP 

5,280 4,261 3,300 3,300 3,300 
Adults can maintain their 
independence. 

Delivery outcomes 8, 9 
and 10. 

National outcome measure: 
Achieve independence for older 
people through 
rehabilitation/intermediate care 

92.8% 90.5% >90% >90% >90% 

P
age 78



Adult Social Care and Health 23 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr 
Maynard 

Enhance the delivery of 
Technology Enabled Care 
Services (TECS) more rapidly and 
more widely across areas including 
falls; frailty; crisis response; 
medication management, to avoid 
hospital admissions or re-
admissions. CP 

8,513 people 
receiving 

TECS 

8,629 people 
receiving TECS 

8,500 people 
receiving TECS 

8,500 people 
receiving TECS 

8,500 people 
receiving TECS 

To enable adults to 
maintain their 
independence. 

Delivery outcomes 8, 9 
and 11. 

Number of providers registered 
with Support With Confidence CP 

222 246  
10% increase 
on 2019/20 

outturn 

10% increase on 
2020/21 outturn 

10% increase on 
2021/22 outturn 

Increase the options for 
people who need support 
ensuring vulnerable 
people are given effective 
reliable support to help 
maintain their 
independence. 

Delivery outcomes 6, 7 
and 9. 

The proportion of people who 
received short-term services 
during the year, where no further 
request was made for ongoing 
support CP 

92.0% 92.9% >90.5% >90.5% >90.5% 

Provide effective early 
intervention to ensure 
people are given the 
support they need as 
quickly as possible, this 
will also reduce the need 
for more expensive 
intensive interventions at a 
later date ensuring the 
most effective use of 
resources. 

Delivery outcomes 9, 13 
and 14. 

Number of Newly Qualified Social 
Workers (NQSW) recruited per 
relevant team per year across all 
the care groups 

11 
1 per relevant 

team 
≥1 ≥1 ≥1 

Ensure there are sufficient 
numbers of staff to meet 
future service 
requirements, particularly 
where there is a local and 
national shortage and 
there are high vacancy 
rates and difficulty 
recruiting. 

Delivery outcomes 5, 9 
and 11. 

P
age 79



Adult Social Care and Health 24 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr 
Maynard 

Number of new service user 
interventions started through One 
You East Sussex as part of the 
Integrated Lifestyle Service CP 

7,036 6,432 7,000 7,000 7,000 

Support people 
(particularly those with 
multiple lifestyle risk 
factors such as smoking, 
excessive alcohol 
consumption, poor diet 
and low physical activity) 
to make changes to 
improve health outcomes 
and reduce their risk of 
developing conditions 
such as diabetes, cancer 
and heart disease. 

Delivery outcomes 9 and 
10. 

The number of health and social 
care staff and voluntary sector 
organisations trained to deliver 
brief interventions and advice to 
promote, encourage and help 
people make healthier choices as 
part of the Making Every Contact 
Count (MECC) initiative CP 

1,268 689 600 600 600 

Frontline workers and 
volunteers across health, 
care and the wider system 
have the knowledge, skills 
and confidence to raise 
lifestyle issues with the 
people they are in contact 
with and provide brief 
advice or refer into 
services and support 
including help with self-
care. 

Delivery outcomes 9 and 
10. 

Cumulative percentage of the 
eligible population who have 
received an NHS health check 
since 2015/16 (five year period) 
CP 

51.7% 49.3% 50% 50% 50% 

People understand their 
future risk of developing 
vascular disease and 
make changes to their 
lifestyle, or receive 
additional clinical advice 
and support to reduce 
their risk. 

Delivery outcomes 9 and 
10. 

P
age 80



Adult Social Care and Health 25 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr 
Maynard 

The number of children who 
commence a weight management 
programme 

New measure 
2019/20 

104 

Review system 
approach to 
obesity and 

weight 
management 

Target to be set 
following review 

Target to be set 
following review 

Tackling childhood obesity 
and reducing excess 
weight in children, by 
providing evidenced 
based weight 
management support to 
children and their families. 

Delivery outcomes 4 and 
5. 

Percentage of first attendances at 
a Genito-Urinary Medicine (GUM) 
clinic seen within two working days 

95.5% 
95% (April to 
September) 

95% 95% 95% 

Maintaining high rates of 
two day access to Genito-
Urinary Medicine (GUM) 
clinics, ensuring prompt 
testing and treatment as 
required, and preventing 
onward transmission and 
negative sequels of STIs 
and HIV. 

Delivery outcomes 8 and 
10. 

Chlamydia rates - Rate of positive 
tests for Chlamydia in young 
people aged 16 to 25 years per 
100,000 population 

1,690 
1,572 (April to 

September) 
1,800 1,800 1,800 

Achieving high rates of 
chlamydia positivity in 
people aged 16-25 years 
means that the right 
people are being targeted 
and that prompt treatment 
can be provided to reduce 
onward transmission and 
reduce total burden in the 
population. 

Delivery outcomes 8 and 
10. 

P
age 81



Adult Social Care and Health 26 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr 
Maynard 

JSNAA relaunch  
New measure 

2019/20 
Deferred due to 

COVID 

Carry out user 
survey and 

identify 
improvements 

Implement user 
survey improvements 

TBC 

The Joint Strategic Needs 
& Assets Assessment 
(JSNAA) website will be 
relaunched and will 
include new user friendly 
data tools. 

Delivery outcomes 12 and 
13 

Number of households vulnerable 
to the effects of living in a cold 
home that have received a Warm 
Home Check 

308 against a 
target of 450 

486 600 600 600 

Protecting individuals and 
communities from the 
effects of living in a cold 
home, taking action to 
improve the health and 
wellbeing of those most 
vulnerable to the effects of 
fuel poverty. 

Delivery outcomes 5, 6, 7, 
8, 9 and 15. 

Through the Drug and Alcohol 
Innovation Fund 2020/21, 
commission services that sustain 
the development of the recovery 
community in East Sussex CP 

New measure 
2020/21 

New measure 
2020/21 

Commission 
services 

To be set 2020/21 To be set 2021/22 

The rates of people 
entering recovery from 
drug and alcohol misuse 
are maximised and the 
stigma associated with 
misuse is reduced 

Delivery outcomes 5, 9 
and 10. 

Cllr Bentley 

The % of people affected by 
domestic violence and abuse who 
feel safe upon leaving the service 
CP 

88% 96% 88% 88% 88% 

To enable vulnerable 
people who have been 
affected by domestic 
violence to feel safe and 
have the skills they need 
to improve their wellbeing 
and their self-esteem.  

Delivery outcomes 5, 6, 7, 
8 and 9. 

P
age 82



Adult Social Care and Health 27 

Lead 
Member 

Performance measure 

(CP = Council Plan) 

2018/19 
Outturn 

2019/20 
Outturn 

 

2020/21 
Target 

2021/22 
Target 

2022/23 Target 
2016-21 

Outcome Summary 

Cllr Bentley 

When they leave the service the % 
of those affected by rape, sexual 
violence and abuse who have 
improved coping strategies CP 

80% 96% 88% 88% 88% 

Protect vulnerable people 
who have been the 
affected by rape, sexual 
violence and abuse, and 
provide them with skills 
which enable them to be 
more in control of their 
lives and more optimistic 
about the future. 

Delivery outcomes 5, 6, 7, 
8, 9. 

The % of people accessing mutual 
aid recovery services who feel 
more confident as a result of using 
the service 

New measure 

2019/20 
82% 80% 80% 80% 

Increase the confidence of 
those people in recovery, 
who benefit from mutual 
support and motivation 
from likeminded 
individuals.  

Delivery outcomes 5, 6, 7, 
8, 9 and 10. 

The % of people accessing mutual 
aid recovery services who feel they 
can manage more independently 
as a result of using the service 

New measure 

2019/20 
90% 80% 80% 80% 

Increase the coping 
strategies for those in 
recovery, who benefit from 
mutual support and 
provide them with skills 
which enable them to be 
more independent, in 
control of their lives and 
maintain their recovery. 

Delivery outcomes 5, 6, 7, 
8, 9 and 10. 

The number of community safety 
training and awareness raising 
sessions delivered to organisations 
within the county, including 
schools, staff, partners and the 
wider community 

New measure 

2019/20 
167 100 100 100 

Provide early effective 
training and awareness to 
organisations within East 
Sussex, including schools, 
staff, partners and the 
wider community around 
community safety 

Delivery outcomes 5, 6, 7, 
8, 9 and 10. 

CP = Council Plan 

P
age 83



Adult Social Care and Health 28 

Gross revenue budget 

Revenue Budget 2019/20 

 

 

Service Strategy 
£0.29m

Supporting 
People £6.83m

Physical Support, 
Sensory Support and 
Support for Memory & 
Cognition £123.06m

Learning Disability 
Support £62.11m

Mental Health 
Support £7.22m

C   d   ’  
Services 
£308.58m

Centrally 
Held Budgets 

£43.10m

Directly Provided 
Services and 

Assessment & Care 
Management 

£87.92m

Communities, Economy & 
Transport £116.06mGovernance 

Services 
£8.43m

Safer Communities 
£0.46m

Physical Support, Sensory 
Support and Support for 
Memory & Cognition £15.97m

Learning 
Disability 
Support £7.23m

Mental Health 
Support £3.01m

Substance 
Misuse Support 

£0.59m

Equipment & 
Assistive 

Technology £5.60m

Other 
£2.86m

Assessment & Care 
Management 
£26.01m

Management 
& Support 
£19.53m

NHS Health 
Checks £0.90m

Drug & Alcohol 
Services £6.10m

Management Support & 
Public Health 

Programmes £2.38m

Sexual Health 
Services £4.09m

Health Improvement 
Services £4.87m

Independent 
Sector 

£192.39m

Health Visiting & School 
Nursing  £8.77m

Adult 
Social Care 

£280.77m

EAST SUSSEX 
COUNTY 
COUNCIL 

BUDGET 2020/21 
£831.23m

Business 
Services 

£47.19m

Public 
Health 

£27.11m

P
age 84



Adult Social Care and Health 29 

Revenue Budget 

 

Revenue Budget £000 

Divisions 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 Gross 
Income + 

Net 
Recharges 

Net Gross 
Income + 

Net 
Recharges 

Net Gross 

Income + 
Net 

Recharges 
Net 

Adult Social Care:  

Physical Support, Sensory Support and 
Support for Memory & Cognition 

109,635 (42,408) 67,227 114,782 (42,589) 72,193 123,062 (45,149) 77,913 

Learning Disability Support 53,941 (4,307) 49,634 56,941 (4,302) 52,639 62,109 (4,424) 57,685 

Mental Health Support 7,091 (1,043) 6,048 7,437 (1,042) 6,395 7,222 (1,071) 6,151 

Subtotal Independent Sector 170,667 (47,758) 122,909 179,160 (47,933) 131,227 192,393 (50,644) 141,749 

Physical Support, Sensory Support and 
Support for Memory & Cognition 

15,169 (4,532) 10,637 15,742 (4,875) 10,867 15,969 (5,491) 10,478 

Learning Disability Support 7,196 (528) 6,668 7,161 (544) 6,617 7,225 (287) 6,938 

Mental Health Support 211 (187) 24 3,008 (2,984) 24 3,008 (2,985) 23 

Substance Misuse Support 591 (115) 476 591 (115) 476 591 (115) 476 

Equipment & Assistive Technology 7,240 (3,930) 3,310 6,304 (3,346) 2,958 5,599 (3,101) 2,498 

Other 5,150 (3,745) 1,405 3,097 (1,943) 1,154 2,860 (1,707) 1,153 

Supporting People 6,512 469 6,981 6,253 736 6,989 6,833 (310) 6,523 

Assessment and Care Management 25,047 (2,763) 22,284 25,943 (2,991) 22,952 26,011 (3,022) 22,989 

Management and Support 14,199 (24,346) (10,147) 14,248 (26,682) (12,434) 19,532 (29,049) (9,517) 

Service Strategy 569 (45) 524 290 0 290 291 0 291 

Subtotal Directly Provided Services 
and Care Management 

81,884 (39,722) 42,162 82,637 (42,744) 39,893 87,919 (46,067) 41,852 

Total Adult Social Care 252,551 (87,480) 165,071 261,797 (90,677) 171,120 280,312 (96,711) 183,601 

Safer Communities 522 (186) 336 336 0 336 461 0 461 

Total Adult Social Care incl. Safer 
Communities 

253,073 (87,666) 165,407 262,133 (90,677) 171,456 280,773 (96,711) 184,062 

Public Health:     

Health Improvement Services 7,235 (2,777) 4,458 5,989 (1,626) 4,363 4,867 0 4,867 

Drug and Alcohol Services 6,101 0 6,101 6,101 0 6,101 6,101 0 6,101 

Sexual Health Services 4,110 50 4,160 4,110 50 4,160 4,088 50 4,138 

Health Visiting and School Nursing  8,769 0 8,769 8,769 0 8,769 8,769 0 8,769 

NHS Health Checks 778 0 778 778 0 778 898 0 898 

P
age 85



Adult Social Care and Health 30 

Revenue Budget £000 

Divisions 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 Gross 
Income + 

Net 
Recharges 

Net Gross 
Income + 

Net 
Recharges 

Net Gross 

Income + 
Net 

Recharges 
Net 

Management Support and Public Health 
Programmes 

2,659 345 3,004 2,156 223 2,379 2,383 (340) 2,043 

Public Health Grant 0 (27,270) (27,270) 0 (26,550) (26,550) 0 (26,816) (26,816) 

Public Health CCG and Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Draw from General Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub Total for Core Services 29,652 (29,652) 0 27,903 (27,903) 0 27,106 (27,106) 0 

One Off Projects Funded from Project 
Reserve 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Public Health 29,652 (29,652) 0 27,903 (27,903) 0 27,106 (27,106) 0 

P
age 86



Adult Social Care and Health 31 

Capital Programme 

 

Capital Programme, Gross £000 

Lead 
Member 

Project 
Total for 
Scheme 

Previous 
Years 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Cllr Maynard 

Greenacres 3,781 2,687 1,094     

House Adaptations 

Fund over and above disabled facilities grant to adapt 
properties to enable people to stay in their own homes 

** ** 50 50 50 

**Rolling programme: no total scheme value 

P
age 87



Adult Social Care and Health 32 

Appendix 1: Annual Procurement Forward Plans 

Details of all projected CET procurements over £1m during 2020/21 are provided below. 

Service Contract Description 
Start date for procurement 
work to begin (estimated) 

Start date of new contract(s) 
or extension (estimated) 

Housing & Support Solutions 
Block Nursing Beds Dynamic 
Purchasing System 

01/07/2019 01/10/2020 

Housing & Support Solutions Domiciliary Care Services 01/06/2019 27/10/2021 

Housing & Support Solutions 
Care & Support at Extra Care 
Housing Schemes 

01/04/2020 25/10/2021 

Housing & Support Solutions Extra Care Housing Newington Court 01/04/2020 25/10/2020 

Housing & Support Solutions Telecare 01/11/2020 01/04/2021 

Housing & Support Solutions 
Provision of a Housing Support 
Service within a Refuge 

01/09/2019 01/10/2020 

Housing & Support Solutions Supported Accommodation services 01/04/2020 01/01/2021 

Housing & Support Solutions Homeworks  01/09/2019 21/11/2020 

Housing & Support Solutions Floating Support Service West 01/09/2019 21/11/2020 

Housing & Support Solutions Floating Support Service East 01/09/2019 21/11/2020 

Housing & Support Solutions Carers Respite Service 01/02/2021 01/10/2021 

Safer Communities 
Domestic Violence & Sexual 
Violence support services 

01/12/2019 01/12/2020 

Learning Disabilities Hastings and Rother Properties 01/05/2020 01/04/2021 

Learning Disabilities 
Care and Support services at Gilda 
Close 

01/06/2020 01/04/2021 

ASC Operations - Assessment & 
Care Management 

Health & Social Care Connect clinical 
nurse advisor service 

01/03/2020 01/10/2020 

Joint Commissioning 
Integrated Community Equipment 
Service 

01/04/2020 01/04/2021 

Joint Commissioning Stairlift Supply & Installation 01/04/2020 tbc 

Mental Health Elva Court  01/12/2019 06/10/2020 

Health Improvement Warm Home Check Service 01/04/2020 06/11/2020 

Health Improvement Integrated Lifestyle Services 01/06/2020 07/08/2021 

Sexual Health Specialist Sexual Health Services 01/01/2020 01/04/2021 

 

P
age 88



Revenue Budget Summary - departmental budget movements 2016/17 to 2019/20

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Net Movt 
Rebased 

Budget
Rebased 

Budget
Rebased 

Budget
Rebased 

Budget
16/17 to 

19/20

£'000 % £'000 % £'000 % £'000 %

Adult Social Care 163,572 3.08% 168,608 -1.90% 165,407 3.66% 171,456 4.82%

Public Health 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Business Services / Orbis 21,601 -1.48% 21,282 4.64% 22,270 4.30% 23,227 7.53%

Children's Services (excl. 
schools)

64,593 6.14% 68,562 0.14% 68,655 12.61% 77,314 19.69%

Communities, Economy & 
Transport

60,818 4.22% 63,384 -1.86% 62,206 -0.93% 61,626 1.33%

Governance Services 7,499 -2.92% 7,280 -1.21% 7,192 2.42% 7,366 -1.77%

Total Departments 318,083 3.47% 329,116 -1.03% 325,730 4.68% 340,989 7.20%

Net Movt Net Movt Net Movt

12

P
age 89

A
ppendix 3



Revenue Budget Summary 2020/21 - gross revenue budget

Adult Social 
Care

£280.8m

Centrally Held 
Budgets
£43.1m

Children's 
Services
£308.6m

Public Health
£27.1m

Communities, 
Economy, 
Transport
£116.0m

Governance 
Services
£8.4m

Business 
Services / Orbis

£47.2m

How we will spend your money (gross)

£831.2m

Specific 
Government 

Grants
£318.6m

Revenue 
Support Grant

£3.5m

Business Rates
£81.9m

Council Tax
£302.6m

Other Grants / 
Financing / Use 

of Reserves
£44.3m

Fees, Charges 
and Receipts

£64.9m

New Homes 
Bonus
£0.8m

Social Care 
Grants
£14.6m

Where the money comes from (gross)

£831.2m

13

P
age 90



Revenue Budget Summary 2020/21 - net revenue budget

New Homes 
Bonus
£0.8m

Business Rates
£81.9m

Council Tax
£302.6m Revenue 

Support Grant
£3.5m

Social Care 
Grants
£14.6m

Where the money comes from (net)

£403.4m

Adult Social 
Care

£184.1m

Centrally Held 
Budgets
£38.2m

Children's 
Services
£88.8m

Communities, 
Economy, 
Transport
£61.3m

Governance 
Services
£7.5m

Business 
Services / Orbis

£23.5m

How we will spend your money (net)

£403.4m

14

P
age 91



Revenue Budget Summary 2020/21 - budget changes 2019/20 to 2020/21

2019/20 
Rebased Net 

Budget

Additions Reductions 2020/21 Net 
Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Adult Social Care 171,456 12,880 (274) 184,062 12,606 7.35%

Public Health - - - - - 0.00%

Business Services / Orbis 23,227 4,078 (3,782) 23,523 296 1.27%

Children's Services (inc. schools) 77,314 13,471 (1,957) 88,828 11,514 14.89%

Communities, Economy & Transport 61,626 1,183 (1,544) 61,265 (361) -0.59%

Governance Services 7,366 168 (2) 7,532 166 2.25%

Total Departments 340,989 31,780 (7,559) 365,210 24,221 7.10%

Centrally held budgets 34,156 11,136 (7,065) 38,227 4,071 11.92%

Total 375,145 42,916 (14,624) 403,437 28,292 7.54%

Change

15

P
age 92



Revenue Budget Summary 2020/21 - subjective analysis

Department Employees Premises Transport Supplies & 
Services

Transfers & 
Third Party 
Payments

Financing & 
Transfers to 
Reserves

Total 
Expenditure

Government 
Grants

Other Grants 
& 

Contributions

Fees, 
Charges & 
Receipts

Financing & 
Planned Use 
of Reserves

Total Income Internal 
Recharges 
(exp & inc)

Net Service 
Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Social Care 52,473 1,133 1,127 10,311 215,725 4 280,773 (29,555) (31,935) (35,894) (88) (97,472) 761 184,062

Public Health 2,195 - 16 157 24,738 - 27,106 (26,816) - - (607) (27,423) 317 - 

Business Services / Orbis 2,671 11,553 82 30,948 1,920 11 47,185 (2,195) (2,910) (8,825) (72) (14,002) (9,660) 23,523

Children's Services 185,445 11,230 1,564 44,038 66,146 153 308,576 (254,966) 15,830 (3,527) (430) (243,093) 23,345 88,828

Communities Economy & Transport 15,897 4,071 13,690 79,392 523 2,486 116,059 (4,667) (17,644) (16,491) (1,264) (40,066) (14,728) 61,265

Governance Services 5,043 317 60 2,097 912 - 8,429 (360) (322) (180) - (862) (35) 7,532

Services 263,724 28,304 16,539 166,943 309,964 2,654 788,128 (318,559) (36,981) (64,917) (2,461) (422,918) - 365,210

Centrally held budgets 12,626 - - 4,651 881 24,942 43,100 (70) - - (4,803) (4,873) - 38,227

Total 276,350 28,304 16,539 171,594 310,845 27,596 831,228 (318,629) (36,981) (64,917) (7,264) (427,791) - 403,437

16

P
age 93



Revenue Budget Summary 2020/21 - subjective analysis 

Employees
£276.4m

Premises
£28.3m

Supplies & Services
£171.6m

Transport
£16.5m

Third Party & Transfer 
Payments
£310.8m

Financing & transfers to 
reserves
£27.6m

£831.2m

17

P
age 94



Revenue Budgets - Adult Social Care

2019/20 
Rebased Net 

Budget

Employees Premises Transport Supplies & 
Services

Transfers & 
Third Party 
Payments

Financing 
& 

Transfers 
to 

Reserves

Total 
Expenditure

Government 
Grants

Other Grants 
& 

Contributions

Fees, 
Charges & 
Receipts

Financing 
& Planned 

Use of 
Reserves

Total 
Income

Internal 
Recharges 
(exp & inc)

Net Service 
Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Physical Support, Sensory 
Support and Support for 
Memory & Cognition

53,363 Residential & Nursing 3,776 394 93 373 74,105 - 78,741 - (3,097) (18,801) - (21,898) 119 56,962

5,927
Supported & Other 
Accommodation

- - - - 6,334 - 6,334 - - - - - - 6,334

25,929 Home Care 6,016 - 342 93 21,950 - 28,401 - (790) - - (790) 6 27,617
1,419 Day Care 178 123 5 22 1,477 - 1,805 - - (399) - (399) 157 1,563

17,140 Direct Payments - - - - 17,716 - 17,716 - - - - - - 17,716
(11,178) Other Services 1,747 20 92 1,360 2,815 - 6,034 (2,048) (15,961) (2) - (18,011) - (11,977)
(9,540) Fairer Charging * - - - - - - - - - (9,824) - (9,824) - (9,824)

- Meals in the Community - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
83,060 Subtotal 11,717 537 532 1,848 124,397 - 139,031 (2,048) (19,848) (29,026) - (50,922) 282 88,391

Learning Disability Support

34,483 Residential & Nursing 1,618 103 13 93 38,622 - 40,449 - - (2,866) - (2,866) 26 37,609

12,361
Supported & Other 
Accommodation

1,615 15 36 26 12,180 - 13,872 - (21) (137) - (158)
17

13,731

1,205 Home Care - - - - 1,287 - 1,287 - - - - - - 1,287
3,717 Day Care 1,908 131 33 40 1,726 4 3,842 - - (389) - (389) 312 3,765
6,896 Direct Payments - - - - 7,369 - 7,369 - - - - - - 7,369
1,907 Other Services 1,298 11 67 159 980 - 2,515 (153) (59) (94) - (306) 5 2,214

(1,313) Fairer Charging * - - - - - - - - - (1,352) - (1,352) - (1,352)
59,256 Subtotal 6,439 260 149 318 62,164 4 69,334 (153) (80) (4,838) - (5,071) 360 64,623

Mental Health Support
3,114 Residential & Nursing - - - - 3,127 - 3,127 - - (538) - (538) - 2,589
2,430

Supported & Other 
Accommodation

- - - - 2,596 - 2,596 - - - - - - 2,596
370 Home Care - - - - 395 - 395 - - - - - - 395
31 Day Care 36 3 1 15 34 - 89 - (52) (2) - (54) - 35

953 Direct Payments - - - - 1,018 - 1,018 - - - - - - 1,018
4 Other Services - - - - 3,005 - 3,005 (34) (2,933) - - (2,967) - 38

(483) Fairer Charging * - - - - - - - - - (497) - (497) - (497)
6,419 Subtotal 36 3 1 15 10,175 - 10,230 (34) (2,985) (1,037) - (4,056) - 6,174

18

P
age 95



Revenue Budgets - Adult Social Care

2019/20 
Rebased Net 

Budget

Employees Premises Transport Supplies & 
Services

Transfers & 
Third Party 
Payments

Financing 
& 

Transfers 
to 

Reserves

Total 
Expenditure

Government 
Grants

Other Grants 
& 

Contributions

Fees, 
Charges & 
Receipts

Financing 
& Planned 

Use of 
Reserves

Total 
Income

Internal 
Recharges 
(exp & inc)

Net Service 
Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- 
Substance Misuse Support - 

476 Other Services - - - - 591 - 591 - (115) - - (115) - 476
476 Subtotal - - - - 591 - 591 - (115) - - (115) - 476

- 
Other Adult Services - 

1,154 Other Services 467 5 5 417 1,966 - 2,860 - (1,707) - - (1,707) - 1,153
1,154 Subtotal 467 5 5 417 1,966 - 2,860 - (1,707) - - (1,707) - 1,153

- 

2,958
Equipment & Assistive 
Technology

- - - 3,316 2,283 - 5,599 - (2,557) (544) - (3,101) - 2,498

- 
6,989 Supporting People 858 13 - 5 5,957 - 6,833 - (310) - - (310) - 6,523

- 
336 Safer Communities 458 - 3 - - - 461 - - - - - - 461

- 

22,952
Assessment & Care 
Management

24,287 71 379 582 692 - 26,011 (54) (2,660) (334) - (3,048) 26 22,989

- 
13,042 Management & Support 8,211 244 58 3,810 7,500 - 19,823 1,031 (1,673) (115) (88) (845) 93 19,071

- 

(25,186)
Improved Better Care Fund 
and Disabled Facilities 
Grant

- - - - - - - (28,297) - - - (28,297) - (28,297)

171,456 Total 52,473 1,133 1,127 10,311 215,725 4 280,773 (29,555) (31,935) (35,894) (88) (97,472) 761 184,062

Main changes between years £'000
Rebased Net Budget 2019/20 171,456

Growth / Pressures 4,818
Inflation 6,849
Savings (248)
Pay Award 1,213
Tfrs between depts (26)

Departmental Estimate 2020/21 184,062

* Fairer Charging is income from clients for non residential/nursing services. This represents contributions towards packages of care that may include a combination of Supported Accommodation, Home Care, Day 
Care, Direct Payments or Other Services.

19

P
age 96



Revenue Budgets - Public Health

2019/20 
Rebased Net 

Budget

Employees Premises Transport Supplies & 
Services

Transfers & 
Third Party 
Payments

Financing 
& 

Transfers 
to 

Reserves

Total 
Expenditure

Government 
Grants

Other Grants 
& 

Contributions

Fees, 
Charges & 
Receipts

Financing & 
Planned 
Use of 

Reserves

Total 
Income

Internal 
Recharges 
(exp & inc)

Net Service 
Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

4,363
Health Improvement 
Services

12 - - 84 4,771 - 4,867 - - - - - - 4,867

6,101 Drug & Alcohol Services - - - - 6,101 - 6,101 - - - - - - 6,101

4,160 Sexual Health Services - - - 30 4,058 - 4,088 - - - - - 50 4,138

8,769
Health Visiting and School 
Nursing

- - - - 8,769 - 8,769 - - - - - - 8,769

778 NHS Health Checks - - - - 898 - 898 - - - - - - 898

(24,171)
Management support and 
Public Health programmes

2,183 - 16 43 141 - 2,383 (26,816) - - (607) (27,423) 267 (24,773)

- Total 2,195 - 16 157 24,738 - 27,106 (26,816) - - (607) (27,423) 317 - 

Main changes between years £'000

Rebased Net Budget 2019/20 - 
Growth / Pressures - 
Inflation - 
Savings - 
Pay Award - 
Tfrs between depts - 

Departmental Estimate 2020/21 - 

20

P
age 97



Revenue Budgets - Children's Services

2019/20 
Rebased Net 

Budget

Employees Premises Transport Supplies & 
Services

Transfers & 
Third Party 
Payments

Financing 
& 

Transfers 
to 

Reserves

Total 
Expenditure

Government 
Grants

Other Grants 
& 

Contributions

Fees, 
Charges & 
Receipts

Financing & 
Planned 
Use of 

Reserves

Total 
Income

Internal 
Recharges 
(exp & inc)

Net Service 
Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Early Help & Social Care

999
Policy Support & 
Commissioned Services

2,556 - 10 118 710 - 3,394 (2,348) (150) - - (2,498) 236 1,132

5,535
Early Help Keywork and 
Children's Centres

6,710 327 118 811 99 - 8,065 (148) (1,596) (214) - (1,958) (59) 6,048

12,248
Locality Social Work & 
Family Assessment

8,734 - 221 361 3,672 - 12,988 - (262) - - (262) 29 12,755

26,371 Looked After Children 11,371 151 596 2,043 22,692 153 37,006 (1,871) (405) (1,928) (157) (4,361) 173 32,818
2,493 Other Children & Families 1,629 58 87 46 3,300 - 5,120 (1,580) (409) - - (1,989) (214) 2,917

550 Youth Justice 1,181 28 32 27 319 - 1,587 (609) (281) - - (890) - 697
48,196 Subtotal 32,181 564 1,064 3,406 30,792 153 68,160 (6,556) (3,103) (2,142) (157) (11,958) 165 56,367

Education & ISEND
9,319 ISEND 15,189 92 319 4,234 33,617 - 53,451 (40,066) (148) (663) - (40,877) (858) 11,716

2,684
Standards & Learning 
Effectiveness

3,787 - 59 24,164 511 - 28,521 (25,904) (1,287) (264) - (27,455) 1,715 2,781

281 Other Education 214 - - 521 - - 735 (454) - - - (454) - 281
12,284 Subtotal 19,190 92 378 28,919 34,128 - 82,707 (66,424) (1,435) (927) - (68,786) 857 14,778

- Schools 127,664 10,553 59 8,613 1,125 - 148,014 (177,826) 20,619 - (200) (157,407) 9,393 - 

Management & Support
12,772 Admissions & Transport 425 - 7 101 2 - 535 (1,061) - (18) - (1,079) 13,879 13,335

2,718 Management & Support 4,704 21 23 2,862 97 - 7,707 (3,099) (152) (432) (73) (3,756) (964) 2,987
1,344 Safeguarding 1,281 - 33 137 2 - 1,453 - (99) (8) - (107) 15 1,361

16,834 Subtotal 6,410 21 63 3,100 101 - 9,695 (4,160) (251) (458) (73) (4,942) 12,930 17,683

77,314 Total 185,445 11,230 1,564 44,038 66,146 153 308,576 (254,966) 15,830 (3,527) (430) (243,093) 23,345 88,828

Main changes between years £'000

Rebased Net Budget 2019/20 77,314
Growth / Pressures 9,108
Inflation 1,880 .
Savings (540)
Pay Award 1,207
Tfrs between depts (141)

Departmental Estimate 2020/21 88,828

22

P
age 98



Revenue Budgets - Children's Services

2019/20 
Rebased Net 

Budget

Employees Premises Transport Supplies & 
Services

Transfers & 
Third Party 
Payments

Financing 
& 

Transfers 
to 

Reserves

Total 
Expenditure

Government 
Grants

Other Grants 
& 

Contributions

Fees, 
Charges & 
Receipts

Financing & 
Planned 
Use of 

Reserves

Total 
Income

Internal 
Recharges 
(exp & inc)

Net Service 
Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Early Help & Social Care

999
Policy Support & 
Commissioned Services

2,556 - 10 118 710 - 3,394 (2,348) (150) - - (2,498) 236 1,132

5,535
Early Help Keywork and 
Children's Centres

6,710 327 118 811 99 - 8,065 (148) (1,596) (214) - (1,958) (59) 6,048

12,248
Locality Social Work & 
Family Assessment

8,734 - 221 361 3,672 - 12,988 - (262) - - (262) 29 12,755

26,371 Looked After Children 11,371 151 596 2,043 22,692 153 37,006 (1,871) (405) (1,928) (157) (4,361) 173 32,818
2,493 Other Children & Families 1,629 58 87 46 3,300 - 5,120 (1,580) (409) - - (1,989) (214) 2,917

550 Youth Justice 1,181 28 32 27 319 - 1,587 (609) (281) - - (890) - 697
48,196 Subtotal 32,181 564 1,064 3,406 30,792 153 68,160 (6,556) (3,103) (2,142) (157) (11,958) 165 56,367

Education & ISEND
9,319 ISEND 15,189 92 319 4,234 33,617 - 53,451 (40,066) (148) (663) - (40,877) (858) 11,716

2,684
Standards & Learning 
Effectiveness

3,787 - 59 24,164 511 - 28,521 (25,904) (1,287) (264) - (27,455) 1,715 2,781

281 Other Education 214 - - 521 - - 735 (454) - - - (454) - 281
12,284 Subtotal 19,190 92 378 28,919 34,128 - 82,707 (66,424) (1,435) (927) - (68,786) 857 14,778

- Schools 127,664 10,553 59 8,613 1,125 - 148,014 (177,826) 20,619 - (200) (157,407) 9,393 - 

Management & Support
12,772 Admissions & Transport 425 - 7 101 2 - 535 (1,061) - (18) - (1,079) 13,879 13,335

2,718 Management & Support 4,704 21 23 2,862 97 - 7,707 (3,099) (152) (432) (73) (3,756) (964) 2,987
1,344 Safeguarding 1,281 - 33 137 2 - 1,453 - (99) (8) - (107) 15 1,361

16,834 Subtotal 6,410 21 63 3,100 101 - 9,695 (4,160) (251) (458) (73) (4,942) 12,930 17,683

77,314 Total 185,445 11,230 1,564 44,038 66,146 153 308,576 (254,966) 15,830 (3,527) (430) (243,093) 23,345 88,828

Main changes between years £'000

Rebased Net Budget 2019/20 77,314
Growth / Pressures 9,108
Inflation 1,880 .
Savings (540)
Pay Award 1,207
Tfrs between depts (141)

Departmental Estimate 2020/21 88,828

22

P
age 99



Appendix 3 
Capital Programme Update 

1. Current Capital Programme - Expenditure Update 

1.1  Table 1 below summarises the movements to the approved capital 
programme since budget setting in February 2020, noting that the first 3 years of the 
programme, to 2022/23, are approved, whist the remaining years to 2029/30 are 
indicative to represent the longer term planning for capital investment. The changes 
have included year-end and other material, non Covid-19 re-profiling in line with 
updated information and the approved governance and variation process. The 
impact of COVID-19 on the programme will be reported as slippage and/or 
under/overspend as part of the capital monitoring process.  

Table 1 – Capital Programme (gross) movements 

Capital Programme 
(gross) movements 
(£m)

2019/20
MTFP Programme 

Future 
Years Total 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/30

Approved 
programme at 
Feb 2020

99.595 100.456 58.889 58.036 345.358 662.334 

Approved 
Variations

A
1.474 0.429 0.748 1.402 (0.594) 3.459 

Re-profiling C (6.433) (3.168) 9.754 (0.153) 0.000 

Underspend D (0.133) (0.828) (0.961) 

Less 2019/20 
expenditure

E
(94.503) (94.503) 

Total 
Programme

0.000 96.889 69.391 59.285 344.764 570.329

1.2  Total 2019/20 capital expenditure was £94.5m (ref E) against an approved 
budget of £101.1m, (including £1.5m of approved variation (ref A)), resulting in a net 
variation of £6.6m (ref C + D). 

1.3  Since February 2020 net nil approved variations amount to £1.5m in 2019/20 
(ref A) comprising; Schools Delegated Capital of £1.4m and a reduction in the 
Economic Intervention Fund for revenue expenditure of £0.1m. 

1.4 For 2020/21 onward there has been a reduction for a double count in the 
programme of £0.8m relating to funding of the Greenacres project. Net nil variations 
include £1.0m for Bexhill Creative Workspace; a reduction of £1.3m in line with the 
grant reduction on the SALIX scheme for street lighting and traffic signals; and 
£2.3m for the Economic Intervention Fund (EIF) loan repayments. This revised 
programme also reflects reprofiling of the current street lighting scheme and the EIF. 

Page 100



2.0 Programme Risks and Pressures 

2.1 In February 2020, Full Council approved the 20-year Capital Strategy which 
underpinned a 10-year planned capital programme established to achieve agreed 
targets for basic need investment in support of the Council Plan. The purpose of the 
Capital Strategy is to drive investment ambition whilst also ensuring appropriate 
capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management within the context of 
the sustainable, long-term delivery of services. The pressures and issues that Covid-
19 has presented are unprecedented and has thrown many of the current planning 
assumptions off course. Over the summer, services will not only have to explore their 
revenue offer but whether the current targeted basic need investment and capital 
strategy remain appropriate to support the post Covid-19 service offer and Council 
Plan.  

2.2 There are, additionally, a number of specific issues arising that are set out 
below: - 

2.3  South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) Funding – As a 
consequence of Covid-19, it is estimated that schemes will slip gross expenditure of 
£12.1m together with associated specific funding of £11.3m. (Funding issues are 
noted at 3.3). 

2.4 Road funding – announced in the March 2020 budget, an additional £7.7m 
one off funding has been allocated to the Council in 2020/21. The funding 
incorporates the Potholes Fund, from which the Council was allocated £0.6m in 
2019/20. The national pots combined are shown in the table below:-  

Table 2 – National Funding for Roads  

National 
£m

ESCC Share 
£m

Potholes Fund  500.0 tbc 

Challenge Fund 100.0 tbc 

Pothole Action Fund   50.0 tbc 

650.0 7.7 

The funding is currently included at section 3, reducing the need to borrow, in line 
with the current capital strategy.  Once the terms and conditions of the grant funding 
are clarified, this may impact on how the grant can be applied. 

2.5 Emergency Active Travel Fund - Further indicative funding allocations 
totalling £2.4m from the Emergency Active Travel Fund have been announced to 
support the installation of cycling and walking facilities following the Covid-19 
pandemic. This funding will be treated as specific grant having a net nil impact on the 
overall capital programme. Approval to include this funding in the capital programme 
will be through the variation process.  

2.6 School Basic Need - As a result of Covid-19 the School Basic Need 
programme is anticipating additional expenditure of £0.6m due to work arounds to 
facilitate delivery at Seahaven, Robertsbridge and Lansdowne. There is a further risk 

Page 101



relating to extension of time payments that may materialise depending on legal 
consideration. However, currently and at this level, any impact of Covid-19 is 
anticipated to be manageable within the overall programme funding. In addition, the 
programme is anticipating slippage of £1.8m as a result of delays caused by the 
pandemic. Future Schools Basic Need provision will be impacted by several factors, 
including any changes to the birth rate as a result of Covid-19 lockdown, a decision 
by Wealden District Council to withdraw its Local Plan and the requirement on them 
to build more homes over the plan period. It is too early to predict the impact of these 
on place planning strategies and school places, however, existing strategies as set 
out in the 10-year capital strategy will be reviewed on a regular basis. 

2.7  Modernising Back Office Systems – Cabinet on 23 June 2020 approved the 
launch of the procurement for a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) solution to replace the 
current SAP system for Finance, HR and Procurement. The cost of the new system 
will be determined at the end of the procurement process and will need to be 
reflected in the capital programme, in accordance with the governance process.  

3.0     Current Capital Programme - Funding updates  

3.1 Table 3 provides an updated funding position. Funding has been updated to 
reflect the 2019/20 outturn position, approved variations and other known funding 
changes. The revised borrowing requirement of £228.8m represents a reduction 
compared to that reported at February 2020 budget setting of £260.2m, the result of 
a reduction for the 2019/20 borrowing requirement of £24.2m, underspend of £1.0m 
and additional one off Highways Maintenance funding of £7.7m (announced at 
Budget in February 2020), offset by a small reduction in Incentive Fund Grant over 
the life of the programme of £0.2m and a correction to specific funding of £1.3m.  

3.2 In general future years capital grants estimates, CIL and S106 targets remain 
at risk of reducing and MHCLG announced in May that only 2/3rds of SELEP funding 
will be received initially this year ahead of a review in September. Strategies and 
mitigations are currently under review to ensure that this will be at no financial 
detriment to the Council. 

Page 102



Table 3 - Capital Programme Funding  

Capital 
Programme 
Funding (£m)

MTFP Programme 
Future 
Years Total 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/30

Gross 
Expenditure 

96.889 69.391 59.285 344.764 570.329

Section 106 and 
CIL 

(9.410) (1.727) (1.902) (0.321) (13.360)

Other Specific 
Funding 

(27.947) (5.340) (1.079) (2.450) (36.816)

Net Expenditure 
by Department 

59.532 62.324 56.304 341.993 520.153

Capital Receipts (2.915) (3.260) (4.945) (8.000) (19.120)

Formula Grants (26.317) (17.237) (21.537) (143.305) (208.396)

Section 106 and 
CIL Target 

0.000 0.000 0.000 (28.392) (28.392)

Reserves and 
revenue set 
aside

(5.783) (4.544) (3.742) (21.414) (35.483)

Borrowing (24.517) (37.283) (26.080) (140.882) (228.762)

Total Funding (59.532) (62.324) (56.304) (341.993) (520.153)

3.3 The revised programme is £570.3m. Although it should be noted that there 
may be further emerging overspends relating to Covid-19 that will need to be 
managed within the overall programme. Work will be ongoing over the summer to 
review and update the programme and Capital Strategy in support of the future 
service offer and Council Plan. Together with updates on grants, S106, CIL and 
capital receipts. A detailed programme is presented at annex 1. 

Page 103



ANNEX 1 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 to 2029/30 
2020/21 
£’000

2021/22 
£’000

2022/2 
£’000

2023/30 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Adult Social Care

Older People's/LD Service Improvements  50 50 50 150

Greenacres 264 264

Adult Social Care Gross 314 50 50 414

Scheme Specific Resource – Other Specific Funding (264) (264)

Adult Social Care Net 50 50 50 150

Business Services

SALIX Contract 440 350 350 2,450 3,590

Property Agile Works 374 374

Lansdowne Secure Unit - Phase 2 1,457 96 1,553

Special Educational Needs 800 1,600 800 3,200

Special Provision in Secondary Schools 2,379 60 2,439

Disability Children's Homes 242 242

Westfield Lane (delivered on behalf of CSD) 1,200 1,200

Core Programme - Schools Basic Need 13,308 19,688 12,002 43,875 88,873

Core Programme - Capital Building Improvements 9,214 7,983 7,982 55,873 81,052

Core Programme - IT & Digital Strategy Implementation 4,634 4,251 11,580 42,976 63,441

Business Services Gross 33,248 33,228 33,514 145,974 245,964

Scheme Specific Resource – Other Specific Funding (1,897) (446) (350) (2,450) (5,143)

Scheme Specific Resource - S106 and CIL  (8,034) (1,727) (1,853) (11,614)

Business Services Net 23,317 31,055 31,311 143,524 229,207

Children's Services

House Adaptations for Disabled Children's Carers Homes 104 50 50 204

Schools Delegated Capital 791 760 729 2,280

Conquest Centre redevelopment 83 83

Children's Services Gross 978 810 779 2,567

Scheme Specific Resource – Other Specific Funding (791) (760) (729) (2,280)

Children's Services Net 187 50 50 287

Communities, Economy & Transport

Broadband 4,279 3,276 3,277 10,832

Bexhill and Hastings Link Road 1,652 643 252 2,547

BHLR Complementary Measures 219 219

Economic Growth & Strategic Infrastructure Programme

Economic Intervention Fund - Grants 542 460 599 899 2,500

Economic Intervention Fund - Loans 500 500 500 1,500 3,000

Stalled Sites 152 150 47 349

EDS Upgrading Empty Commercial Properties 7 7

Integrated Transport

Community Match Fund 769 307 250 1,326

Newhaven Port Access Road 4,054 170 20 41 4,285

Real Time Passenger Information 284 44 121 449

Parking Ticket Machine Renewal 291 291

Queensway Depot Development (Formerly Eastern) 1,153 1,153

Hailsham HWRS  97 97

Page 104



The Keep 24 73 49 945 1,091

Other Integrated Transport Schemes 3,235 3,152 2,969 21,183 30,539

Core Programme - Libraries Basic Need 670 262 619 3,143 4,694

Core Programme - Highways Structural Maintenance 18,404 17,850 12,946 142,859 192,059

 Dropped Kerbs 1,000 1,000

Core Programme - Bridge Assessment Strengthening 1,267 1,285 1,260 12,460 16,272

Core Programme - Street Lighting and Traffic Signals 1,331 1,712 1,545 12,179 16,767

 Street Lighting and Traffic Signals - SALIX scheme 935 1,869 2,804
Core Programme - Rights of Way Surface Repairs 
and Bridge Replacement Programme 596 565 565 3,460 5,186

LEP/SELEP schemes - delivery not controlled by ESCC

Eastbourne Town Centre Phase 2 3,014 3,014

Bexhill Enterprise Park North 1,940 1,940

Exceat Bridge Replacement (Formerly Maintenance) 1,500 1,651 3,151

Eastbourne/South Wealden Walking & Cycling Package 2,988 363 3,351

Hailsham/Polegate/Eastbourne Movement & Access Corridor 1,203 206 1,409

Hastings and Bexhill Movement & Access Package 6,169 309 6,478

Queensway Gateway Road 504 504

Sidney Little Road Business Incubator Hub 435 435

Skills for Rural Businesses Post-Brexit 2,189 500 2,689

Bexhill Creative Workspace 946 946

Gross LEP/SELEP schemes sub total 20,888 3,029 23,917

Scheme Specific Resource – Other Specific Funding (1,468) (1,468)

Scheme Specific Resource - LEP Contribution (17,557) (1,095) (18,652)

Scheme Specific Resource - S106 and CIL  (565) (565)

Net LEP/SELEP schemes sub total 2,766 466 3,232

Communities, Economy & Transport Gross 62,349 35,303 24,942 198,790 321,384

Scheme Specific Resource – Other Specific Funding (7,438) (3,039) (10,477)

Scheme Specific Resource - LEP Contribution (17,557) (1,095) (18,652)

Scheme Specific Resource - S106 and CIL  (1,376) (49) (321) (1,746)

Communities, Economy & Transport Net 35,978 31,169 24,893 198,469 290,509

Total Gross 96,889 69,391 59,285 344,764 570,329
Scheme Specific Resource – Other Specific 
Funding (10,390) (4,245) (1,079) (2,450) (18,164)

Scheme Specific Resource - LEP Contribution (17,557) (1,095) (18,652)

Scheme Specific Resource - S106 and CIL (9,410) (1,727) (1,902) (321) (13,360)

Total Net of Specific Funding 59,532 62,324 56,304 341,993 520,153

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: People Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

15 September 2020 

By: Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Title: People Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
 

Purpose: To review and agree items for the People Scrutiny Committee’s future 
work programme. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
The Committee is recommended to: 

1) review and agree agenda items for future Committee meetings, including items listed 
in the work programme at appendix 1;  

2) agree topics for Scrutiny Reviews to be included in the Committee’s future work 
programme; and 

3) review upcoming items on East Sussex County Council’s Forward Plan and to identify 
any issues that may require more detailed scrutiny (appendix 2). 

 

 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The work programme is an important tool in ensuring the correct focus and best use of the 
Committee’s time in scrutinising topics that are of importance to the residents of East Sussex, 
and the efficient and effective working of the Council. It also provides clarity for those who may be 
requested to give evidence to the Committee on the issues under review, and the questions the 
Committee requires answers to. 
 
1.2 All reports and activities on the work programme should have a clear objective and 
purpose. Reports should not be “to note” or simply to provide information to the Committee, which 
could be provided as briefings outside of the formal Committee meetings. 
 
1.3.  Discussion of the work programme provides the Committee with the opportunity to 
consider topics that it may be of value to scrutinise, and to decide whether further scoping work is 
required. This provides a basis for deciding the best way of scrutinising a topic, the timescale, 
and who from the Committee will be involved in carrying out the review work. If there are a 
number of potential topics for review, Members can determine the priority of the work within the 
resources available to the Committee. 
 
2 Supporting information 
 
Work programme 
 
2.1  The Committee is asked to review and agree any amendments to the items set out in its 
work programme (attached at Appendix 1). This includes reviewing and agreeing the 
Committee’s future agenda items, its list of potential future Scrutiny Reviews, the work of its 
Reference Groups and the subject matter for any reports for information. 
 
2.2 When considering potential topics for inclusion in the work programme, the Committee is 
asked to consider a range of questions.  These include:    
 

 Is the topic relevant to the Council’s Corporate Priorities? 

 Is the issue of concern or of relevance to East Sussex residents? 

Page 107

Agenda Item 7



 Can Scrutiny have an impact and add value by scrutinising this issue, service or policy? 

 Is the issue one that the Committee can realistically influence? 

 Are the resources needed to undertake the review available? 
 
2.3 Any suggestions for potential Scrutiny Review topics should be discussed with the Chair, 
or the relevant Senior Democratic Services Adviser, in advance of the Committee meetings.     
 
Forward Plan 
 
2.4 A copy of the Council’s Forward Plan of executive decisions for the period 1 September to 
30 November 2020 is included at Appendix 2. The Committee is requested to review the 
forthcoming items on the Forward Plan to identify any issues within the remit of this Committee 
that may require more detailed scrutiny. The Forward Plan is revised and published on a monthly 
basis and Committee members should regularly review the Forward Plan. 
 
3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  
 
3.1 An important part of managing the work of the People Scrutiny Committee is to have an 
agreed future work programme. This involves the Committee assessing its priorities, ensuring its 
ongoing reviews are completed in a timely fashion and identifying new areas for scrutiny.    

 

PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 

Contact: 
Stuart McKeown, Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
Tel. No. 01273 481583 
Email: stuart.mckeown@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 108

mailto:stuart.mckeown@eastsussex.gov.uk


 

 

People Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 

Current Scrutiny Reviews   

Title of Review Detail Proposed 
Completion 
Date  

School Exclusions The Committee agreed in March 2020 to undertake a Scrutiny Review of issues 
related to school exclusions. The Committee agreed the Terms of Reference 
proposed by the Scoping Board and appointed a Review Board to undertake the 
review: 

 Membership of the Review Board: Cllrs Field, Liddiard, Loe and Mr 
Matthew Jones (Parent Governor Representative) (Chair) and Mrs Nicola 
Boulter (Parent Governor Representative).   

 In light of the COVID-19 pandemic and its effect on the availability of 
schools to contribute to further work on this review, it has been paused with 
the intention to recommence it at a suitable future date  

 
 
 

Review currently 
on hold due to 
pressures arising 
from COVID-19 
 
Capacity to restart 
to be reviewed 
November 2020 
 
 
 

Initial Scoping Reviews 

Subject area for initial scoping Detail Proposed Dates 

Loneliness/resilience  
 

The Committee agreed in November 2019 to conduct an initial scoping exercise 
into issues relating to how the Council can incorporate addressing loneliness 
into its existing work, particularly the community resilience workstream.  A 
briefing on the implications of the national Loneliness Strategy was circulated to 
the committee in April 2019.   

 Membership of the Initial Scoping Board:  Cllrs Clark, Galley, Ungar and 

Whetstone.  The Committee agreed Councillor Ungar would act as Chair 

for the scoping exercise. 

 The Scoping Board will consider the subject of loneliness and resilience 

for both older people and children and young people.   

 In light of the impact of COVID-19 on the Public Health Team’s ability to 

support the review it has been deferred to 2021.  

 

 

Scoping meeting 
to be arranged 
when feasible. 
 
Capacity to 
progress scoping 
to be reviewed in 
early 2021 

P
age 109

A
ppendix 1



 

 

Suggested Potential Future Scrutiny Review Topics  

Suggested Topic Detail 

Developing Care Markets/Bedded Care 
Strategy 
 
 

Following an initial scoping exercise of issues relating to the developing care market and the 

Council’s bedded care strategy, the Committee agreed on 14 November 2019 to postpone further 

scrutiny activity on this area for 18 months (to mid-2021).  This will allow the Adult Social Care 

department to continue to develop its workstreams in relation to this area of work.  

Elective Home Education  
 

The Committee has noted issues relating to an increase in the numbers of children being home 

educated and that home education could increase further in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.   The 

Committee was informed that a relevant Private Member’s Bill has not yet completed its progress 

through Parliament.   The expectation is that national guidance will follow in due course (although 

there is not a clear date for this). The Committee therefore agreed to revisit this subject once the 

Government has published its guidance 

COVID-19 response and implications A range of topics related to COVID-19 have been suggested for future scrutiny by Committee 

Members, including: 

 Public Health role – e.g. planning, resources, working with others.  

 The work of care staff during the pandemic and impact on recruitment and retention, including 
use of agency staff and experiences of BAME care workers. 

 Support to care homes, including health service input. 
 The experience of carers during the pandemic. 

The Committee will consider whether to undertake work on these topics at the appropriate time in 

2021 when capacity allows.  

Scrutiny Reference Groups   

Reference Group Title Subject area Meeting Dates 

Health and Social Care Integration 
Programme (HASCIP) Reference Group 

The Committee agreed to establish a Reference Group to monitor progress of 

the East Sussex Health and Social Care Integration Programme (HASCIP) and 

identify areas for future scrutiny. It will review HASCIP progress reports provided 

to the Health and Wellbeing Board and meet on an ad hoc basis as required to 

consider issues arising in more detail.    

The Reference Group last met on 22 January 2020.  

Membership of the group: Cllrs Ungar (lead), Davies, Webb, Ensor and Clark. 

Next meeting: 
TBC  
 
HWB reports to be 
circulated to the 
group as they 
become available  

P
age 110



 

 

Strategic Commissioning Review of Early 
Help Scrutiny Reference Group 

The purpose of this Reference Group is to provide scrutiny input into the 
Children’s Services Department review of Early Help services.   
 
It was agreed by the Committee on 25 June 2018 that following Members would 
sit on this group: Cllrs Davies, Galley, Field and Whetstone. 
 
The Reference Group requested an opportunity to review progress with the 
implementation of the revised Early Help strategy in spring 2021, but as some 
changes were postponed this may be subject to review. 

Next meeting: 
 
Further meeting 
TBC if appropriate 
 
 
 
 

Educational Attainment and Performance 

Scrutiny Reference Group 

Reference Group established in light of discontinuation of the Education 
Performance Panel. It was agreed by the Committee on 25 June 2018 that this 
group would meet once per annum (in the spring) to review data on educational 
attainment in East Sussex and related issues.  
 
The disruption to school exams and attendance caused by the pandemic means 
that relevant performance figures may not be available in January 2021 as 
planned. The Reference Group will liaise with officers closer to the meeting date 
in relation to the availability of information to determine whether/when it should 
go ahead.  
 
Membership: Cllrs Davies, Field, Galley and Cllr Whetstone and Matthew Jones 
and Nicola Boulter (Parent Governor Representatives).  

Next meeting:  

January 2021 TBC 

(depending on 

availability of 

relevant 

information). 

Reconciling Policy, Performance and 
Resources (RPPR) 
 

RPPR Board meeting to agree detailed comments and any recommendations 
on the emerging portfolio plans and savings proposals to be put to Cabinet on 
behalf of the scrutiny committee.     

Next meeting:  
December 2020 
TBC 

Reports for Information   

Subject Area Detail Proposed Date  

Schools Coping with Change Scrutiny 
Review 

Final brief update on issues covered by the Review to be requested for 
circulation by email.    

Late 2020 

Scrutiny Review of the Changing Care 
Market: Information and Signposting 

Confirmation to be requested by email that the planned changes to the website, 
recommended by the Review Board, have been made. 
 

Late 2020 

Scrutiny Review of the Changing Care 
Market: Adult social care workforce  
 

Update to be requested by email in relation to the Review Board’s 
recommendations where possible, including the effect of the Covid-19 pandemic 
on recruitment and retention. 

Late 2020 

Training and Development  
 

 

Title of Training/Briefing Detail Proposed Date 
Briefing on ASC Green Paper To gain a better understanding of the potential implications of the Government’s 

Green Paper/Adult Social Care reforms once published. 
 

Dependent on 
publication by 
Government 

P
age 111



 

 

Future Committee Agenda 

Items 

 Author 

15 September 2020   

Reconciling Policy, Performance and 

Resources (RPPR) 2021/22 
The Committee will begin the process of examining the Departmental Portfolio 

Plans and budget for the 2021/22 financial year.   

Becky Shaw, Chief 
Executive 

East Sussex Safeguarding Children 

Partnership (ESSCP) - Serious Case 

Reviews   

A report outlining the findings and outcomes of Serious Case Reviews 

undertaken by the ESSCP during 2019/20.  The report to include the findings 

and outcomes of any Serious Case Reviews undertaken by the East Sussex 

Local Safeguarding Board (LSCB) during 2019/20 (the ESSCP replaced the 

LSCB in September 2019).     

Independent 
Chair, East 
Sussex 
Safeguarding 
Children 
Partnership 

Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual 

Report  

 

The Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) Annual Report outlines the safeguarding 

activity and performance in East Sussex during the previous financial year, as 

well as some of the main developments in place to prevent abuse from 

occurring. 

Chair, 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board  

Committee Work Programme 
To manage the committee’s programme of work including matters relating to 

ongoing reviews, initial scoping reviews, future scrutiny topics, reference groups, 

training and development matters and reports for information. 

Senior Democratic 
Services Adviser 

19 November 2020   

Reconciling Policy, Performance and 

Resources (RPPR) 2021/22 
The Committee will continue the process of examining the Departmental 

Portfolio Plans and budget for the 2021/22 financial year.   

Becky Shaw, Chief 
Executive 

Annual Review of Safer Communities 
Performance, Priorities and Issues 

To update the Committee on performance in relation to Safer Communities in 
2019/20 and the priorities and issues for 2020/21 that will be highlighted in the 
Partnership Business Plan. 

Tom Hook, 
Assistant Director 
- Planning, 
Performance and 
Engagement 
 

Committee Work Programme 
To manage the committee’s programme of work including matters relating to 

ongoing reviews, initial scoping reviews, future scrutiny topics, reference groups, 

training and development matters and reports for information. 

 

Senior Democratic 
Services Adviser 

P
age 112



 

 

March 2021   

Reconciling Policy, Performance and 

Resources (RPPR) 2021/22 
To provide the Committee with an opportunity to review its input into the RPPR 

process for 2021/22. 

Becky Shaw, Chief 
Executive 

East Sussex Safeguarding Children 

Partnership (ESSCP) - Annual Report 
Presentation of the annual report of the East Sussex Safeguarding Children 

Partnership. 

Independent 
Chair, East 
Sussex 
Safeguarding 
Children 
Partnership 

Standing Advisory Council for Religious 

Education (SACRE) Annual Report 
To update the Committee on the work of SACRE, with the report to include a 

further update on secondary school performance in relation to the requirements 

of the National Curriculum and Religious Education.    

Roy Galley, 
Chairman of 
SACRE / Stuart 
Gallimore, Director 
of Children’s 
Services 

Scrutiny Review of the Changing Care 
Market: Adult social care workforce  
 

Proposed date for 12 month monitoring report on progress with the Review’s 

recommendations. 

Keith Hinkley, 
Director of Adult 
Social Care and 
Health 

Scrutiny Review of Support for 
Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking 
Children 

12 month monitoring report on progress with the Scrutiny Review’s 

recommendations. 

Stuart Gallimore, 
Director of 
Children’s 
Services 

Committee Work Programme 
To manage the committee’s programme of work including matters relating to 

ongoing reviews, initial scoping reviews, future scrutiny topics, reference groups, 

training and development matters and reports for information. 

Senior Democratic 
Services Adviser 

 
 

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
 
Please note: Due to the ongoing situation regarding Covid-19 the timing of decisions listed on this plan may be subject to review 
 
The Leader of the County Council is required to publish a forward plan setting out matters which the Leader believes will be the subject of a key decision 
by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet member in the period covered by the Plan (the subsequent four months). The Council’s Constitution states that a 
key decision is one that involves 
 

(a) expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the expenditure of the County Council’s budget, namely 
above £500,000 per annum; or  

 
(b) is significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more electoral divisions. 

 
As a matter of good practice, the Council's Forward Plan includes other items in addition to key decisions that are to be considered by the 
Cabinet/individual members. This additional information is provided to inform local residents of all matters to be considered, with the exception of issues 
which are dealt with under the urgency provisions. 
 
For each decision included on the Plan the following information is provided: 
 
- the name of the individual or body that is to make the decision and the date of the meeting 
- the title of the report and decision to be considered 
- groups that will be consulted prior to the decision being taken 
- a list of other appropriate documents 
- the name and telephone number of the contact officer for each item. 
 
The Plan is updated and published every month on the Council’s website two weeks before the start of the period to be covered. 
 
Meetings of the Cabinet/individual members are open to the public (with the exception of discussion regarding reports which contain exempt/confidential 
information). Copies of agenda and reports for meetings are available on the website in advance of meetings. For further details on the time of meetings 
and general information about the Plan please contact Andy Cottell at County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent, Lewes, BN7 1UE, or telephone 01273 481955 or 
send an e-mail to andy.cottell@eastsussex.gov.uk.  
 
For further detailed information regarding specific issues to be considered by the Cabinet/individual member please contact the named contact officer for 
the item concerned.  

P
age 115

A
ppendix 2



2 

EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL  
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent, Lewes, BN7 1UE   
 
For copies of reports or other documents please contact the officer listed on the Plan or phone 01273 335274. 
 
 
FORWARD PLAN – EXECUTIVE DECISIONS (including Key Decisions) –1 September 2020 TO 31 December 2020 
Additional notices in relation to Key Decisions and/or private decisions are available on the Council’s website. 
 
Cabinet membership: 
 
Councillor Keith Glazier - Lead Member for Strategic Management and Economic Development 
Councillor Nick Bennett – Lead Member for Resources 
Councillor Bill Bentley – Lead Member for Communities and Safety 
Councillor Rupert Simmons – Lead Member for Economy  
Councillor Claire Dowling – Lead Member for Transport and Environment 
Councillor Carl Maynard – Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health  
Councillor Sylvia Tidy – Lead Member for Children and Families  
Councillor Bob Standley – Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational Needs and Disability 
 

Date for 
Decision 

 

Decision Taker Decision/Key Issue Decision to be 
taken wholly or 
partly in private 

(P)  or Key 
Decision (KD) 

Consultation 
 

 

List of Documents 
to be submitted to 

decision maker 

Contact Officer 

14 Sep 2020 Lead Member for 
Economy 
 

Scale Up East Sussex programme 
To report on progress of the Scale Up East 
Sussex programme and to update the Lead 
Member of funding received to continue to 
support high growth ambitious companies in 
East Sussex in light of the Covid 19 
pandemic. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Ioni Sullivan 
01273 482701 
 
 

25 Sep 2020 Lead Member for 
Adult Social Care 
and Health 
 

Notice of Motion: Unison Ethical Care 
Standards 
A Notice of Motion to be considered calling 
on the County Council to sign up to the 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Keith Hinkley 
01273 481288 
 
 

P
age 116



       

3 

Unison Ethical Care Standards. 
 

28 Sep 2020 Lead Member for 
Transport and 
Environment 
 

Alexandra Park shared pedestrian and 
cycle way 
To consider objections received to the 
advertisement of the Notice to convert 
existing footways on Dordrecht Way to 
shared use associated with the scheme 
 

 
 
 

Local Members 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Tracey Vaks 
01273 481288 
 
 

28 Sep 2020 Lead Member for 
Transport and 
Environment 
 

Bus Stop Clearway proposals in Rother 
District and Hastings Council areas 
To report the outcomes of consultations on 
bus stop clearway proposals and seek 
approval to proceed with their 
implementation. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Deborah Parker 
01273 481288 
 
 

28 Sep 2020 Lead Member for 
Transport and 
Environment 
 

Petition on the use of Glyphosates along 
Hastings roadsides 
To consider a petition on the use of 
Glyphosate weed killer along roadsides in 
the Hastings area. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Pippa Mabey 
01273 335506 
 
 

2 Oct 2020 Cabinet 
 

Council Monitoring: Quarter 1 2020/21 
To consider the Council Monitoring report 
for the first quarter of the financial year 
2020/21 as part of the Council's Reconciling 
Policy, Performance and Resources 
(RPPR) budget monitoring process. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Beth McGhee 
01273 335828 
 
 

2 Oct 2020 Cabinet 
 

Reconciling Policy, Performance and 
Resources (RPPR) - Update 
Cabinet is asked to consider the progress in 
developing an updated Medium Term 

 
 

KD 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Beth McGhee 
01273 335828 
 
 

P
age 117



       

4 

Financial Plan (MTFP) and other work as 
part of the RPPR financial and service 
planning process for 2021/22. 
 

2 Oct 2020 Leader and Lead 
Member for 
Strategic 
Management and 
Economic 
Development 
 

Getting Building Fund - Grant Agreements 
To approve East Sussex County Council 
(ESCC) entering into grant agreements to 
transfer Getting Building Fund (GBF) 
monies to 8 projects in East Sussex, as 
approved by the South East Local 
Enterprise Partnership (SELEP Ltd) 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Dave Evans 
01273 335706 
 

2 Oct 2020 Leader and Lead 
Member for 
Strategic 
Management and 
Economic 
Development 
 

Getting Building Fund - updated Service 
Level Agreement with the South East Local 
Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) 
To approve East Sussex County Council 
(ESCC) entering into an updated Service 
Level Agreement with the South East Local 
Enterprise Partnership (SELEP Ltd) and 
Essex County Council as the accountable 
body to SELEP in order to deliver the 
government’s Getting Building Fund (GBF).  
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Dave Evans 
01273 335706 
 

2 Oct 2020 Leader and Lead 
Member for 
Strategic 
Management and 
Economic 
Development 
 

Local Growth Fund and Growing Places 
Fund financial statement - confirmed spend 
for 2019/20 and forecast for 2020/21 
To agree and approve the Local Growth 
Fund and Growing Places Fund spend for 
2019/20 and forecast for 2020/21  
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Marwa Al-Qadi 
01273 336439 
 
 

19 Oct 2020 Lead Member for 
Transport and 
Environment 
 

East Sussex County Council response to 
the consultation on "Planning for the Future 
White Paper" 
The Planning for the Future White Paper 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Ed Sheath 
01273 335828 
 
 

P
age 118



       

5 

proposes significant reform to the planning 
system that will impact upon the County 
Council, particularly our own statutory 
planning duties and our role as an 
infrastructure provider.  
 

22 Oct 2020 Lead Member for 
Education and 
Inclusion, Special 
Educational Needs 
and Disability 
 

East Sussex Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessment 2020 
To seek Lead Member approval to publish 
the East Sussex Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessment 2020. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Jane Spice 
01323 747425 
 
 

22 Oct 2020 Lead Member for 
Education and 
Inclusion, Special 
Educational Needs 
and Disability 
 

East Sussex School Organisation Plan 
2020-2024 
To seek Lead Member approval to publish 
the East Sussex School Organisation Plan, 
covering the period 2020 to 2024. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Gary Langford 
01273 481758 
 

22 Oct 2020 Lead Member for 
Education and 
Inclusion, Special 
Educational Needs 
and Disability 
 

Admission arrangements for Community 
and Controlled schools in East Sussex 
2022-23- permission to consult 
The Lead Member is asked to approve the 
plans to consult on proposed admission 
arrangements for Community and 
Controlled schools in East Sussex for the 
2022-23 academic year. The law states that 
consultation must be for a period of at least 
six weeks between October and January 
every year. 
 

 
 

KD 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Jo Miles 
01273 481911 
 

22 Oct 2020 Lead Member for 
Communities and 
Safety 
 

Petition - safety concerns at Tyes Cross, 
Sharpthorne 
Petition submitted raising concerns over the 
safety of where Plaw Hatch Lane (C319) 

 
 

KD 

Local Members 
 
Lead Petitioner 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Victoria 
Bartholomew 
01424 724284 
 

P
age 119



       

6 

meets the junction of Grinstead Lane and 
the twitten from Chilling Street, Sharpthorne 
 

  

10 Nov 2020 Cabinet 
 

Scrutiny Review of Road Markings 
To consider the report on the Scrutiny 
Review of Road Markings undertaken by 
the Place Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Martin Jenks 
01273 481327 
 

17 Nov 2020 Lead Member for 
Transport and 
Environment 
 

Well Managed Highway Code of Practice 
update: Highway Maintenance and 
Consideration of Character 
To consider a proposal for a new policy 
regarding the approach to the choice of 
materials used in the management of 
highway assets including those of particular 
conservation and historical interest  
 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Stephanie 
Everest 
01273 482644 
 
 

8 Dec 2020 Cabinet 
 

Council Monitoring: Quarter 2 2020/21 
To consider the Council Monitoring report 
for the second quarter of the financial year 
2020/21 as part of the Council's Reconciling 
Policy, Performance and Resources 
(RPPR) budget monitoring process. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Beth McGhee 
01273 335828 
 
 

8 Dec 2020 Lead Member for 
Resources 
 

Modernising Back Office Systems (MBOS) - 
Preferred Solution Provider 
To approve the engagement of the 
preferred implementation and technical 
solution provider. 
 

P 

 

KD 

 
 

Report, other 
documents may 
also be submitted 
 

Richard Lundie-
Sadd 
07922 387668 
 
 

 

P
age 120



1 
 

 
 
 

 
Report to: 
  

 
People Scrutiny Committee 

Date:  15 September 2020  
 

By: Graham Bartlett, Independent Chair, East Sussex Safeguarding Adults 
Board  
 

Title of report: East Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) Annual Report 2019 - 2020 
 

Purpose of 
report: 

To present the SAB Annual Report as required in the Care Act 2014 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Committee is recommended to comment on and note the contents of the report 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Background  
   
1.1 The SAB Annual Report (Appendix 1) outlines safeguarding activity and performance in East 
Sussex between April 2019 and March 2020.   

 
2. Supporting Information 

 
2.1 It is impossible to reflect on 2019-20 without reporting on the impact of the outbreak of 
Covid-19 in March 2020, which led to unprecedented challenges for the whole country, but also 
created a number of specific issues for safeguarding adults, including: 

 

 A rise in Covid-19 related scams. 

 A reduction in the number of safeguarding concerns being raised with the local authority 
during the lockdown period. 

 An increase in instances of domestic abuse, along with a reduction in formal reports to 
the police. 

 The impact on people’s mental health and an anticipated increase in suicides. 

 The impact upon the workforce. 

 A national increase in deaths of adults with learning disabilities during the pandemic and 
more widely within the residential and nursing home sector. 

 
2.2 Over the next year, the East Sussex SAB will ensure any lessons relating to safeguarding 
adults during the Covid-19 crisis are learnt.   

 
2.3 As a consequence of the Coronavirus pandemic and the subsequent pressures this has 
placed on local authorities, NHS Digital have extended the deadlines for the Safeguarding Adults 
Collection 2019 – 20.  As such the 2019 – 20 data included in this report may be subject to slight 
variations from what will be included in the final SAC return.  Any additional updates will be added to 
this annual report as an addendum at a later date. 

 
2.4  Highlights in the report are as follows: 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

Strategic Aim 1:  Accountability and Leadership  

 In accordance with the two-year cycle for undertaking the self-assessment process, a 
Sussex-wide peer challenge event was held on 9th July 2019.  Several areas for 
development were identified, which have been incorporated into an action plan.  

  

 An updated East Sussex SAB Information Sharing Guide and protocol was published in 
March 2020, providing specific guidance on sharing safeguarding information between 
partner agencies, including good practice principles on managing safeguarding meetings and 
discussions, record keeping and data quality.   
 
Strategic Aim 2:  Policies and Procedures 
 

 Whilst no new Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) were commissioned over this last year, 
work continued on the two SARS that commenced in 2018 – 19.  The SAB published the 
report for SAR Adult B in February 2020.  Despite the impact of Covid-19 causing delays in 
progressing some areas of work, good progress has been made in taking forward the 
recommendations within the action plan.  This has included work to develop updated Making 
Safeguarding Personal (MSP) guidance and a leaflet and developing a multi-agency protocol 
for investigating unexpected adult deaths where abuse or neglect is known or suspected.  
Another SAR in relation to Adult C is due to be finalised in the summer of 2020, and work 
has commenced to develop the Board response to the report.       
 

 Four Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) referrals were made in 2019 – 20 involving a range 
of adults with differing care and support needs, including self-neglect, substance misuse and 
working with multiple complex needs.  In all cases, decisions were made that the case did 
not meet the statutory criteria for carrying out a SAR and the SAB was satisfied that 
appropriate learning had been identified through other mechanisms, such as Single Agency 
Reviews.    

 

 Work commenced in 2019 to review and update the Sussex SAR Protocol with Brighton & 
Hove and West Sussex SABs.  This has been published in August 2020, with further planned 
work to develop a shared and consistent approach to contracting SAR reviewers. 
 

Strategic Aim 3:  Performance, Quality and Audit and Organisational Learning 

 The SAB participated in a University of Sussex research project to explore how learning from 
SARs involving self-neglect can be embedded.  An action plan is being developed to take 
forward the findings and recommendations from the project. 

 

 A multi-agency audit was undertaken in August 2019 in relation to young people at risk of 
exploitation, focusing on the effectiveness of safeguarding responses to this cohort of young 
people.  Good practice included the application of a MSP approach, appropriate 
consideration of the Care Act and Mental Capacity Act, and a number of cases reflecting 
professional curiosity and understanding the importance of trauma-informed practice.  An 
action plan is in place to address the areas for development, which includes reviewing the 
effectiveness of current processes to identify, manage and communicate risks for young 
people approaching the age of 18 and the need for greater awareness amongst agencies 
around recognising the different forms of exploitation that come under the abuse type of 
modern slavery. 

 

 A second audit regarding multi-agency involvement in safeguarding was undertaken in 
February 2020, which was conducted jointly between the Brighton & Hove and East Sussex 
SABs.  This was interrupted by the coronavirus pandemic and there are now plans to 
progress this in August 2020. A summary will be provided in next year’s annual report. 
 
Strategic Aim 4: Prevention, Engagement and Making Safeguarding Personal 

Page 122



3 
 

 An easy read version of the MSP leaflet was developed by members of the East Sussex 
Learning Disability Partnership Board and the Safeguarding Community Network. 

 

 The East Sussex SAB published the first edition of its newsletter in February 2020, with the 
aim of sharing news about the work of the Board, disseminating relevant learning and 
information, and to raise awareness for those who have an interest in adult safeguarding 
issues.   

 
Strategic Aim 5: Integration, and Training and Workforce Development 

 The SAB continues to deliver a comprehensive range of multi-agency safeguarding training 
which has evolved over 2019 – 20 in response to learning identified from SARs and multi-
agency audits.  The SAB training programme includes courses on modern slavery and 
human trafficking, domestic abuse, the Mental Capacity Act, self-neglect and coercion and 
control.   
 
Multi-agency data 

 The number of safeguarding contacts has decreased from 5,532 in 2018-19 to 5,033 in 2019 
– 20. Of the total contacts received in 2019 – 20, 4,484 (86%) were considered safeguarding 
concerns.   
 

 The number of enquiries completed has increased by 69% from 1,185 in 2018 – 19 to 1,998 
in 2019 – 20. This increase can be attributed in part to changes made to the social care 
recording system in 2019 which has led to improvements in capturing safeguarding enquiries 
more accurately.    

 

 In 2019 – 20, the most common form of abuse reported was neglect (as in 2018 – 19) with 
36% of all enquiries undertaken comprising, at least in part neglect.  Financial abuse was the 
second most common form of abuse reported, followed by psychological abuse, accounting 
for 24.5% and 25% respectively of the enquiries completed.   
 

 The most significant proportional differences since 2018 – 19 are an 10% decrease in 
neglect from 46% to 36%, a 6% increase in domestic abuse from 13% to 19%, and a 4% 
increase in self-neglect cases 3% to 7%. 
 

 Data from East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service (ESFRS) reflects that the number of home 
first safety visits completed in the second half of 2019 – 20 decreased from 1814 in quarter 3 
to 1577 in quarter 4.  This can be attributed to the usual trend of fewer visits over the festive 
period, but also was compounded by the outbreak of Coronavirus.  
 

 Overall, there has been an increase of 36% in the number of Vulnerable Adult at Risk 
(VAAR) referrals made by Sussex Police into ASCH, with the biggest variation in quarter one 
of 2019-20 with a 63% increase upon figures for 2018-19. 
 

 The data from South East Coast Ambulance Service (SECAmb) highlights that there was a 
12% increase in the number of safeguarding concerns raised to ASCH in the first half of 
2019 - 20 compared to the same period in 2018 – 19.  There was also another slight 
increase in safeguarding concerns being raised by SECAmb during the second half of this 
year.  
 

 
3. Conclusion and recommendations 
 
3.1 The annual report shows that the Board has continued to make significant progress in 
delivering the aims set out in the SAB Strategic Plan 2018 – 21, reflecting the hard work and 
commitment shown by partner agencies.  The SAB will ensure that the learning and 
recommendations from the SARs undertaken in 2019 – 20 are progressed and embedded in 
practice.  

Page 123



4 
 

 
 
GRAHAM BARTLETT 
Independent Chair, East Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board 
 
 
Contact 
Delyth Shaw -  Safegaurding Adults Board Development Manager 
Tel: 01273 335 277  
Email: ESSAB.Contact@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
 
  

Page 124

mailto:ESSAB.Contact@eastsussex.gov.uk


  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

East Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board 

Annual Report 

April 2019 to March 2020 

“Our vision is for all agencies to work together effectively to 

enable the citizens of East Sussex to live free from abuse and 

neglect, and to promote widely the message that safeguarding is 

everybody’s business” 

 

You can get all our publications in a format to suit you.  If you would prefer this report in an 

alternative format or language, please ask us.   

Please phone Health and Social Care Connect on 0345 60 80 191. 

 

Page 125

Appendix 1



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 

 

Contents 
 

 

Foreword by Graham Bartlett, East Sussex SAB Independent Chair ......................... 1 

Comments by Healthwatch ......................................................................................... 2 

About us ..................................................................................................................... 3 

Our vision and our aims .............................................................................................. 4 

Our subgroups ............................................................................................................ 5 

Links to other partnerships ......................................................................................... 6 

Board membership ..................................................................................................... 7 

SAB budget ................................................................................................................ 8 

Key learning and achievements 2019 – 2020 ......................................................... 100 

Our priorities 2020 – 2021 ...................................................................................... 222 

Our training and development ................................................................................ 244 

Our learning ............................................................................................................ 255 

Our data.................................................................................................................. 322 

Reporting a safeguarding concern ............................................................................ 48 

 

The East Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board gratefully acknowledges Hampshire and West 

Sussex Safeguarding Adults Boards for providing this annual report format. 

Page 126



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 1 of 50 

Foreword by Graham Bartlett, East Sussex 

SAB Independent Chair 

 

I am pleased to introduce the East Sussex Safeguarding 

Adults Board Annual Report 2019-20. The Safeguarding 

Adults Board (SAB) provides strategic leadership, ensuring 

adults at risk of abuse or neglect are effectively safeguarded. 

As Independent Chair, I support and challenge SAB partners 

and agencies in East Sussex to work collaboratively for the 

benefit of adults with care and support needs and foster 

continuous improvement.  

The last few months of the year provided challenges beyond anyone’s expectations. 

Covid-19 threw the whole world into turmoil and, whilst we had ten months of relative 

normality before the pandemic struck, it is difficult to reflect on 2019-20 without its 

impact being reported upon. How it will transform the safeguarding system and 

partners and how the SAB will assure that those at risk are adequately safeguarded 

will only start to emerge over the next year or so. What we know already though is 

that it affected the most vulnerable disproportionately and that our workforce showed 

itself to be as phenomenally flexible, innovative and selfless as we knew they were. 

We have continued to make significant progress against the priorities in our Strategic 

Plan 2018-21 and I would like to acknowledge the hard work and commitment shown 

by all our partner agencies to achieve these aims. Highlights include the agency self-

assessment process, culminating in a pan-Sussex challenge event where significant 

introspection and learning took place and a robust action plan was developed.  

We participated in a University of Sussex research project to explore how learning 

from Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) involving self-neglect can be embedded 

into practice and how organisational change can be effected. The learning from this 

is starting to be embedded.  

We published the ‘Adult B’ SAR this year and will complete another during 2020–21. 

During the coming year we have an equally busy workplan. As well as developing 

new strands related to Covid-19, we will continue to develop our re-formed 

Safeguarding Community Network, enhance our reach into those who access 

safeguarding services and those who care for them, strengthen our affiliation with the 

community and voluntary sector and look for opportunities to share arrangements 

and good practice with neighbouring SABs and at a national level. 

I hope you find this report interesting and are assured of the commitment of the East 

Sussex SAB to continual improvement and decisive action when things go wrong.  

 

 

 

Graham Bartlett 

Independent Chair, East Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board 

Page 127



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 2 of 50 

Comments by Healthwatch 
 

 

Healthwatch has continued to work in partnership with the 

East Sussex SAB over the past year.  Our focus is to ensure 

that the needs, experiences and concerns of people who use 

health and social care services are understood by those who 

commission and deliver them.  The East Sussex SAB 

provides excellent leadership, coordination and partnership 

which supports this work to promote high standards and seek 

assurance from partner agencies where required.   

 

As Chair of the Safeguarding Community Network (SCN), I have been encouraged 

by the progress made in 2019 – 20.  A key goal for the network over this last year 

has been to expand representation at the SCN from the Voluntary and Community 

Sector and we have welcomed six new members to the group from a range of 

services, including from homelessness and veterans’ charities, as well as family 

support and education services.  A priority for the next year will be to consider ways 

in which the SCN can have broader engagement with adults and carers, and support 

work to gather feedback from adults and carers on their experiences of safeguarding 

interventions.     

 

The outbreak of COVID-19 has brought into sharp focus the importance of 

communicating with the public as well as capturing people’s views and experiences 

of health and social care services at this time.  Healthwatch will work closely with the 

SAB over the forthcoming months to understand the impacts of the pandemic and 

engage with partner agencies and the local community in setting future priorities.   

 

 

Elizabeth Mackie 

Volunteer & Community Liaison Manager, Healthwatch East Sussex 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 128



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 3 of 50 

About us 
 

 

The East Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) is a multi-agency statutory 

partnership which provides leadership and strategic oversight of adult safeguarding 

work across East Sussex.  The Board is made up of senior representatives from a 

range of organisations.  Our core membership, as specified in the Care Act 2014, 

includes East Sussex County Council, NHS East Sussex Clinical Commissioning 

Group and Sussex Police.  Additional key community and voluntary agencies and lay 

members are represented on the Board to reflect that safeguarding activity and 

interventions can only be effective where there is collaboration and shared 

commitment. 

 

The East Sussex SAB is led by our Independent Chair, Graham Bartlett, supported 

by a SAB Development Manager, Quality Assurance and Learning Development 

Officer and Administrator. 

 

Under the Care Act 2014, we are required to: 

 Develop and publish a Strategic Plan setting out how we will meet our 

objectives and how our partner agencies will contribute to this. 

 Publish an annual report detailing how effective our work has been. 

 Arrange for Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) to be undertaken when the 

criteria are considered to have been met. 

 

The overarching purpose of the East Sussex SAB is to help and safeguard adults 

with care and support needs from abuse, neglect and exploitation.  We do this by: 

 Gaining assurance that local safeguarding arrangements are in place as 

defined by the Care Act and its statutory guidance.  

 Gaining assurance that the principles of Making Safeguarding Personal are 

central to safeguarding, and practice is person-centred and outcome-focused.  

 Working collaboratively to prevent abuse and neglect, where possible. 

 Ensuring partner agencies are effective when abuse and neglect has occurred, 

and give timely and proportionate responses. 

 Striving for continuous improvement in safeguarding practice, and supporting 

partner agencies to embed learning from local and national SARs, other 

learning reviews and multi-agency audits. 

 

  

Page 129

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/strategic-plan-2018-2021/


 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 4 of 50 

 

Our vision and our aims 
 

 

 
 

 

To achieve this vision, the aims and functions of the Board are to: 

 Actively promote collaboration between organisations. 

 Work together on prevention strategies. 

 Safeguard adults in a way that supports them in making choices and having 

control about how they want to live. 

 Ensure that the views, wishes and desired outcomes of adults and their carers 

or family are considered in the delivery of safeguarding services.   

 Oversee the co-ordination of adult safeguarding activity in East Sussex. 

 Develop and co-ordinate multi-agency safeguarding training, which meets local 

needs. 

 Conduct multi-agency audits and monitor performance in relation to 

safeguarding activity. 

 Raise public and professional awareness of adult safeguarding issues. 

 Provide information and support in accessible ways to help people understand 

the different types of abuse, neglect and exploitation, how to stay safe, and how 

to raise a concern about the safety or wellbeing of an adult. 

 

 

  

Our vision is for all agencies to work together effectively to enable the citizens of 

East Sussex to live free from abuse and neglect, and to promote widely the 

message that safeguarding is everybody’s business. 

Page 130



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 5 of 50 

Our subgroups 
 

The East Sussex SAB meets four times a year.  The Board is supported by a range 

of subgroups that are crucial in ensuring that the priorities set out in the SAB 

Strategic Plan are delivered.  Each subgroup has a work plan which details the areas 

of focus for the financial year, and are regularly updated with specific actions and 

timescales.  These subgroups ensure that the work of the Board really makes a 

difference to local safeguarding practice and to the outcomes adults and their carers 

wish to achieve.

 
 

Operational Practice Subgroup  This group co-ordinates local safeguarding work 

and ensures the priorities of the SAB are put into place operationally.  The group has 

a particular focus on ensuring that all contact with adults with care and support needs 

is based on shared responsibilities for responding to abuse and neglect, and that the 

principles of Making Safeguarding Personal are embedded in safeguarding practice. 

 

Performance, Quality & Audit Subgroup  This group establishes effective systems 

for monitoring, reporting and evaluating performance across agencies, and links 

annual reporting to improvement planning.  The group highlights staffing groups or 

service areas that require further awareness or training. 

 

Safeguarding Community Network  This group brings together representatives 

from the community and organisations who support people with disabilities, mental ill 

health and learning disabilities, together with older people and carers.  The group 

enables two-way communication and exchange of information between the SAB and 

SAB 

Operational Practice Subgroup  

(Chair – ASCH) 

Performance, Quality and Audit 

Subgroup   

(Chair – Sussex Police) 

 

Safeguarding Community Network 

 (Chair – Healthwatch) 

 

Training & Workforce Development 

Subgroup (Chair – ASCH) 

 

SAR Subgroup (Chair – ASCH) 

Sussex Policy and Procedures 

Review Group  

(Rotating Chair – ASCH) 

 

Page 131



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 6 of 50 

clients and carers to improve safeguarding experiences and inform policy 

development. 

  

Training & Workforce Development Subgroup  This group is responsible for 

delivering the objectives of the Sussex Learning and Development Strategy, and 

overseeing multi-agency training developments and delivery in key safeguarding 

matters.  

 

Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) Subgroup  This group consists of the statutory 

partners of the East Sussex SAB.  It meets monthly with the purpose of considering 

cases that may require a SAR and makes recommendations to the SAB Independent 

Chair. 

 

Sussex Policy and Procedures Review Group  This group consists of the statutory 

partners of the three SABs across Sussex (including Brighton and Hove and West 

Sussex).  Its purpose is to review and update the safeguarding procedures in line 

with any policy and legal updates. 

 

In addition to the subgroups outlined above, the SAB also coordinates a Mental 

Capacity Multi-Agency Forum, which brings together champions for mental capacity 

across partner agencies.  These meetings take place on a quarterly basis, with the 

aim of raising awareness, sharing good practice, and ensuring an effective response 

to mental capacity, within and between, agencies and professionals, who have 

responsibility for practice under the Mental Capacity Act. 

 

Links to other partnerships 
 

The Board has formal links with a number of other strategic partnerships in East 

Sussex, including the Health and Wellbeing Board, Safer Communities Partnership, 

East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership, Children and Young People’s Trust. 

 

Following the changes to the multi-agency arrangements for safeguarding children in 

response to the Children and Social Work Act 2017 (which came into effect in 

September 2019), work has commenced to develop an updated Partnership 

Protocol.  Progress on this has been delayed due to the impact of the coronavirus 

pandemic, and it is anticipated that the new protocol will now be ready to be 

launched in the autumn of 2020.  The revised protocol will also reflect changes in 

other partnerships, and include specific examples of joined-up practice with 

overlapping themes, including modern slavery and domestic abuse. 

 

The SAB and its Independent Chair also maintain regular liaison with Sussex-wide 

and national networks and forums, including participation in the South East Regional 

SAB Network, National SAB Managers Forum and National Chairs Network.  In 

addition, our Independent Chair also chairs a neighbouring SAB, which supports 

appropriate collaboration regarding shared themes and priorities. 

  

Page 132



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 7 of 50 

Board membership 
 

Partners of the East Sussex SAB are: 

 East Sussex Adult Social Care & Health (ASCH) 

 NHS East Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

 Sussex Police 

 Care for the Carers 

 Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

 Change, Grow, Live (CGL) 

 District and borough council representation  

 East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service (ESFRS) 

 East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust (ESHT) 

 East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership (ESSCP) 

 Healthwatch 

 HMP Lewes 

 Homecare representatives  

 Kent, Surrey, Sussex Community Rehabilitation Company (KSS CRC)  

 Lay members 

 National Probation Service (NPS) 

 NHS England 

 Registered Care Association (RCA) 

 South East Coast Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (SECAmb) 

 Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust (SCFT)  

 Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SPFT) 

 Trading Standards 

 Voluntary and community sector representation 

  

Page 133



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 8 of 50 

SAB budget 
 

The SAB budget is pooled and partner agencies contribute to the running of the 

Board, not just financially but by offering to chair meetings and SAR Panels, provide 

use of buildings and facilities, and co-deliver training. 

 

Income 
 

The SAB budget for 2019 – 20 consisted of financial contributions from the following 

SAB partners: 

 

 
 

The data above incorporates additional contributions that were made by several 

agencies towards the end of 2019 to adopt a proposal to make the Quality Assurance 

and Learning Development Officer a permanent post within the SAB team.  The 

Board also carried forward £8,055 from East Sussex County Council and third-party 

income from 2018 – 19 into 2019 – 20, bringing the total income to £132,788. 

  

£66,800 

£30,000 

£12,000 £10,000 
£5,500 

£433 

£8,055 

£0

£20,000

£40,000

£60,000

£80,000

Contribution 2019-2020

SAB Income 2019-2020

East Sussex County Council

Sussex Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs)

Sussex Police

East Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust (ESHT)

East Sussex Fire and Rescue Services (ESFRS)

Kent Surrey Sussex Community Rehabilitation Service (KSS CRC)

carry forward and third party income

Page 134



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 9 of 50 

  

Expenditure 
 

 
 

The current forecast for the 2020 – 21 budget estimates that the Board will face a 

shortfall due to projected increases in SAR activity, costs relating to the SAB website 

upgrade and SAB conference, and rises in year-on-year staffing costs.  A review and 

negotiation of contributions will be taken forward at the start of the 2020 – 21 

financial year. 

 

 

£11,229 

£56,703 

£25,921 

£11,141 

£1,184 

£12,968 

£3,905 

£1,273 

£1,021 

£0 £10,000 £20,000 £30,000 £40,000 £50,000 £60,000

Independent Chair

SAB Manager

Quality Assurance and Learning Development Officer

SAB Administrator

Additional staffing costs (including travel expenses, car
allowance, mobile phones)

SARs

Multi-agency training and events

Online policy and procedures and license fees

SAB website

SAB Expenditure 2019-2020

Page 135



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 10 of 42 

Key learning and achievements 2019 – 2020 
 

 

Strategic aim 1: Accountability and leadership 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective one 

Ensure that robust 

mechanisms are in place so 

that partners are held to 

account for their 

safeguarding practice. 

 

Sussex-wide peer challenge event 

In accordance with our two-year cycle for undertaking 

the self-assessment process, a Sussex-wide peer 

challenge event was held on 9th July 2019.  The event 

was hosted by Brighton & Hove SAB, and jointly chaired 

by Graham Bartlett, Independent Chair of both Brighton 

& Hove and East Sussex SABs, and Annie Callanan, 

Independent Chair of the West Sussex SAB.  The event 

was well-received and attended by over 35 

representatives from agencies across Sussex. 

Several areas for development and improvement were 

identified.  Considerable progress towards these has 

been made by partner agencies over the course of the 

year, including updating safeguarding policy documents 

and reviewing internal safeguarding training courses.   

The event highlighted that there appears to be a gap in 

suitable safeguarding training for senior managers.  A 

survey was sent out to SAB representatives towards the 

end of 2019 to evaluate what areas should be included 

in the training package. 

 Development of multi-agency safeguarding 

training for strategic managers.  

 Develop and update the self-assessment 

process for 2021, responding to feedback 

received on the 2019 process, to ensure 

consistent and robust scrutiny. 

 Oversee and monitor the remaining actions 

on the safeguarding assurance action plans 

and obtain updates from relevant agencies. 

 

P
age 136



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 11 of 42 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective one (cont.) 

 

Managing allegations against people in positions of 

trust 

In line with Care Act 2014 requirements, a framework 

and process has been established for how allegations 

against people in positions of trust, working with adults 

with care and support needs, should be responded to, in 

order to promote an individual’s suitability to work with 

adults. 

The East Sussex SAB receives annual updates and 

assurance from the Local Authority Designated Officer 

(LADO) in relation to the people in positions of trust 

arrangements across the local health and social care 

system. 

 The SAB will continue to monitor the 

LADO’s activity in 2020 – 21, and ensure 

there is clarity on the response to 

allegations about people in a position of 

trust. 

Objective two 

Ensure the SAB provides 

strategic leadership to 

embed the principles of 

safeguarding and contribute 

to the prevention of abuse 

and neglect. 

Information Sharing Guide and Protocol 

A common theme identified in reviews, case file audits 

and multi-agency audits has been the importance of 

effective communication when safeguarding adults who 

are at risk of, or experiencing, abuse or neglect.   

The updated East Sussex SAB Information Sharing 

Guide and Protocol was published in March 2020, 

including specific guidance on sharing safeguarding 

information between partner agencies, good practice 

principles on managing safeguarding meetings and 

discussions, record keeping and data quality. 

 A Pan-Sussex version of the Information 

Sharing Guide and Protocol will be 

published in the summer of 2020, drawn 

from the East Sussex version referred to. 

P
age 137

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/Sussex-Information-Sharing-Guide-and-Protocol-v1.pdf
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/Sussex-Information-Sharing-Guide-and-Protocol-v1.pdf


 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 12 of 42 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective three 

Develop arrangements with 

other Boards to be 

responsive and adapt to 

emerging safeguarding 

themes.  Currently, these 

include domestic abuse, 

modern slavery, cuckooing, 

exploitation and abuse of 

those transitioning from 

children’s to adults services, 

and safeguarding rough 

sleepers. 

 

Modern slavery 

The East Sussex SAB has continued to work in 

collaboration with the East Sussex Safer Communities 

Partnership, Adult Social Care & Health (ASCH), Sussex 

Police and NHS colleagues to develop our pathways 

and processes for responding to concerns about modern 

slavery.  This is a priority given the severe and long-term 

impact that modern slavery can have on victims, and the 

need for a multi-agency response to tackle it effectively.  

Progress has been made in supporting First Responder 

organisations to strengthen their ability to respond to 

modern slavery and human trafficking, in line with the 

Modern Slavery Act 2015, through SAB multi-agency 

training, and the development of a Single Point of 

Contact (SPOC) network of practitioners with skill and 

knowledge in this area of practice. 

Over 2019, ASCH has developed a modern slavery 

toolkit to support practitioners in responding to concerns 

involving suspected modern slavery, and a central email 

inbox has been implemented to collate all local authority 

referrals made into the National Referral Mechanism. 

 

 Further expansion of the SPOC network 

within partner agencies to ensure a range of 

staff across different settings develop the 

necessary level of skill and knowledge in 

relation to modern slavery. 

 In response to the coronavirus pandemic, 

during which time face-to-face training was 

not possible, a review of all training 

programmes, including modern slavery, will 

take place.  This will consider other ways in 

which workforce development can be 

supported, such as via webinars.   

 In collaboration with the Safer Communities 

Partnership and East Sussex Safeguarding 

Children Partnership (ESSCP), the East 

Sussex SAB will produce e-newsletters for 

the SPOC network. 

 The SAB multi-agency audit on modern 

slavery, carried out in 2018, identified the 

need for a follow-up audit of cases.  The 

purpose being to evaluate the impact on 

practice of training, the referral pathway and 

associated guidance.  The audit is being 

undertaken by ASCH, and the learning is 

due to be shared through the PQA 

subgroup in August 2020. 

 

P
age 138



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 13 of 42 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective three (cont.) Domestic abuse 

The Joint Domestic and Sexual Violence and Abuse and 

Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) Unit for 

Brighton & Hove and East Sussex has led a 

comprehensive stakeholder engagement programme to 

review existing strategies in relation to domestic and 

sexual violence and abuse.  This has informed the 

development of partnership activity and planned 

recommissioning.  

The commissioning of domestic violence services was 

planned to commence in March 2020 with new services 

to be in place by October 2020.  However, due to 

revised national procurement guidance in response to 

COVID-19 and the increased pressure on services, the 

re-commission has been delayed by six months, with 

new services planned to be in place for April 2021.  

Work has also commenced to redesign the MARAC 

process to respond to year-on-year increases in 

referrals and complexity of cases.  A MARAC Hub pilot 

was delivered from January to March 2020.  Early 

evaluation findings and feedback from partner agencies 

highlighted improvements to the working model 

introduced by the Hub.  A full evaluation with partners 

will be completed later in 2020 – 21 to determine next 

steps. 

 The delivery plan for the partnership 

strategy will be finalised in the summer of 

2020, alongside service specifications for 

specialist domestic and sexual violence and 

abuse services.  

 A full evaluation, with partners, of the 

MARAC Hub will be completed later in 2020 

– 21 to determine next steps.   

 

 

P
age 139



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 14 of 42 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective four 

Ensure flexible links are in 

place with all relevant 

agencies and sectors in 

order to provide strategic 

leadership to embed 

safeguarding principles. 

 

SAB Development Day 

A SAB Development Day was held on 9th March 2020 to 

consider how we can build on existing mechanisms to 

support the work of the Board, and to consider areas of 

focus for our next Strategic Plan 2021 – 24.   

SAB members undertook a survey before the event to 

provide their views on the performance and 

effectiveness of the SAB.  An evaluation of the 

responses reflected positive views about the strength of 

the leadership provided by the Independent Chair and 

subgroup chairs, and that the SAB has a clear set of 

aims and objectives.  The responses in the survey also 

noted the challenges of ensuring adequate financial 

resourcing of the SAB. 

 

Links with the voluntary and community sector 

Discussions have taken place around how the Board 

can build better links with the voluntary and community 

sector (VCS) in order to collaborate effectively over the 

safeguarding agenda.  This has led to work being taken 

forward through the Safeguarding Community Network 

(SCN) to expand membership within the VCS.  

Following an advert which was circulated through 

various VCS networks last year, six new members have 

joined the SCN. 

 The contributions from the SAB 

Development Day will inform the priorities to 

be included in our next Strategic Plan.  

 We will continue to support the links 

between the SAB and the VCS. 

 

  

P
age 140



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 15 of 42 

 

Strategic aim 2: Policies and procedures 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective one 

Ensure that safeguarding 

arrangements are in place 

under the Care Act 2014, 

with appropriate feedback 

and review arrangements. 

Lead Enquiry Officer (LEO) role 

The LEO has responsibility for co-ordinating decision 

making and ensuring that enquiry actions are carried out 

in accordance with Care Act duties and safeguarding 

procedures. 

Following a pilot earlier last year, Adult Social Care & 

Health (ASCH) implemented the LEO role across 

operational teams in October 2019 taking over from the 

previous roles of Enquiry Officer and Enquiry Manager. 

 

South East ADASS Peer Review 

Work has been completed in ASCH to fulfil 

recommendations that were made as part of the South 

East ADASS Peer Review, which took place in 2018.  

This has included: 

 Enhancing the safeguarding recording system in 

ASCH by developing a more streamlined and 

outcomes-focused system for recording concerns 

and enquiries.   

 Implementing an online safeguarding referral form 

in February 2020. 

 A full review and update of the Sussex 

Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures 

is scheduled to take place in the autumn of 

2020.  Revised content will include more 

detailed information about consent where 

there are issues of coercion and control, 

and a section covering the transition of 

children and young people to adult services. 

 

 Evaluation of the impact on practice of the 

self-neglect procedures and the Multi-

Agency Mental Capacity Act Policy and 

Procedures. 

 

 

  

P
age 141



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 16 of 42 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective two 

To raise awareness of the 

SAR Protocol and ensure 

threshold decision making is 

consistent across Sussex. 

Sussex Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) Protocol 

Work commenced in 2019 to review and update the 

Sussex SAR Protocol with colleagues from the Brighton 

& Hove and West Sussex SABs. 

 

SCIE Learning Together Programme 

In June 2019, the three Sussex SABs and Surrey SAB 

jointly commissioned the Social Care Institute for 

Excellence (SCIE) Learning Together Programme.  This 

was delivered to statutory partners of the SABs with the 

aim of improving knowledge of the SAR approach.  One 

of the course attendees was able to support work in 

relation to a SAR in East Sussex later in 2019 as a 

means of starting the process of gaining accreditation as 

a SAR reviewer. 

 The revised Sussex SAR Protocol is due to 

be launched in August 2020. 

 Further work will take place between the 

three Sussex SABs to develop a shared 

and consistent approach to contracting SAR 

reviewers.    

 

  

P
age 142

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/sussex-sar-protocol/


 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 17 of 42 

Strategic aim 3: Performance, quality and audit, and organisational learning 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective one 

Ensure that learning from 

reviews is effectively 

embedded into practice, and 

to facilitate organisational 

change across agencies. 

University of Sussex research project  

The SAB participated in a research project by the 

University of Sussex which began in 2018.  This 

explored how learning from SARs involving self-neglect 

can be embedded into practice, and how organisational 

change can best be facilitated.  The project brought 

together social work academics and researchers, and 

members of six SABs from across the country. 

 

As part of this research project, in June 2019 members 

of the East Sussex SAB co-facilitated a focus group with 

Dr David Orr from the University of Sussex.  The group 

considered the impact of the self-neglect procedures on 

frontline practice.  It was attended by a range of staff 

from different agencies and sectors.  The SAB has 

published a learning briefing which summarises the 

main findings and learning from the project report. 

 

 The East Sussex SAB is developing an 

action plan to ensure the findings from this 

research inform future developments in 

procedures and practice. 

Objective one (cont.) Learning briefings 

The SAB has published a range of briefings and action 

plans over the course of 2019 – 20, in relation to our 

SARs and multi-agency audits, to raise awareness of 

the learning and to promote reflective discussions 

amongst front-line services. 

 We will continue to produce learning 

briefings and action plans, and consider 

ways in which these can be disseminated 

more broadly with our partner organisations 

to share relevant learning and celebrate 

success. 

P
age 143

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/organisational-learning-from-sars-learning-briefing/
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/learning-briefings/
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/learning-briefings/


 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 18 of 42 

 
 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective two 

Ensure the SAB has robust 

multi-agency data to shape 

training and practice, and 

effect change where 

required. 

Multi-agency data set report 

Our Quality Assurance and Learning Development 

Officer has continued to develop an improved multi-

agency data set report over 2019 – 20.  This is essential 

in demonstrating the effectiveness of safeguarding 

arrangements. 

Partner agencies contributing to the data set report 

include Adult Social Care & Health, Sussex Police, 

Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, Sussex 

Community NHS Foundation Trust, South East Coast 

NHS Ambulance Service, East Sussex Healthcare NHS 

Trust and East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service. 

 

A summary of safeguarding data for 2019 – 2020 is set 

out under ‘Our data’. 

 The multi-agency data set report will 

continue to be produced twice a year.  This 

will strengthen the role of partner agencies 

in providing data to the SAB to determine 

strategic priorities. 

Objective three 

Carry out quality assurance 

activity to test effectiveness 

of, and adherence to, 

safeguarding adults policies 

and procedures.   

Multi-agency themed audits 

Our Quality Assurance and Learning Development 

Officer leads on the co-ordination of two multi-agency 

themed audits per year.  During 2019 – 20, audits have 

been completed in relation to young people at risk of 

exploitation, and multi-agency involvement in 

safeguarding. 

Details regarding the findings from these audits are set 

out under ‘Our Learning’. 

 The Performance, Quality & Audit Subgroup 

work plan for 2020 – 21 includes an action 

to develop an audit planner setting out 

agreed priorities for audit activity over the 

year. 

P
age 144



 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 19 of 42 

Strategic aim 4: Prevention, engagement and Making Safeguarding Personal  

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective one 

Produce information and 

reports for the local 

community that are easily 

accessible and raise 

awareness of adult 

safeguarding and how 

concerns can be raised. 

 

Making Safeguarding Personal leaflet 

An easy read version of the Making Safeguarding 

Personal leaflet was developed by members of the East 

Sussex Learning Disability Partnership Board and the 

Safeguarding Community Network. 

 

Twitter 

The SAB has further developed its use of Twitter to 

support the public in understanding the role of the SAB, 

and to promote broader community engagement. 

 

SAB newsletter 

The East Sussex SAB published the first edition of its 

newsletter in February 2020, with the aim of sharing 

news about the work of the Board, disseminating 

relevant learning and information, and to raise 

awareness for those who have an interest in adult 

safeguarding issues. 

 

SAB website  

Work commenced in 2020 to develop a new East 

Sussex SAB website which will have improved 

accessibility, navigation and updated content. 

 Review all safeguarding leaflets to ensure 

compliance with accessibility standards. 

 Review and update the Making 

Safeguarding Personal leaflet to include 

content on the importance of practitioners 

being able to have direct personal contact 

with adults where there are concerns about 

safety and risk. 

 The Safeguarding Community Network will 

update their Communication Strategy to 

improve people’s understanding of, and 

engagement in, work relating to 

safeguarding adults. 

 The East Sussex SAB will produce 

newsletters on a quarterly basis, and look at 

ways of expanding its distribution to a wider 

audience of professionals and members of 

the public. 

 The new East Sussex SAB website will be 

launched in August 2020. 

 

P
age 145

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/making-safeguarding-personal-easy-read/
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/making-safeguarding-personal-easy-read/
https://twitter.com/SAB_EastSussex
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/


 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 20 of 42 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective two 

Involve adults and carers in 

shaping the work of the SAB 

and safeguarding 

responses. 

 

Video about overcoming abuse 

The short film Ben’s safeguarding story: overcoming 

abuse, created by a member of the Safeguarding 

Community Network, launched early in 2019 has been 

utilised as a training resource by a number of partner 

agencies, and other SABs, including it being presented 

at the West Sussex SAB’s safeguarding conference in 

November 2019. 

Click here to view the video about overcoming abuse.  

 The Safeguarding Community Network 

(SCN) will consider the development of 

other video resources to raise public 

awareness of safeguarding issues. 

 

 The SCN will review its terms of reference 

and accessibility to include wider 

representation from adults and carers.  

Objective three 

Ensure adults are consulted 

in the process of helping 

them to stay safe, and 

agreeing goals to achieve. 

 

Adult feedback on safeguarding interventions 

The Safeguarding Development Team in Adult Social 

Care & Health (ASCH) remains committed to promoting 

greater opportunities for adults who have been involved 

in safeguarding enquiries to provide feedback on their 

experience.   

A number of changes have been made to ASCH’s 

recording system to capture feedback more effectively, 

including changing the format of the feedback 

questionnaire to make the language more accessible, 

and increasing the options available for adults to provide 

feedback. 

 The Safeguarding Development Team will 

work with the Safeguarding Community 

Network to consider how other agencies 

outside of ASCH may be able to support the 

process of gathering feedback, and to 

increase the numbers of adults who provide 

information about their experience of being 

involved in a safeguarding intervention.    

 

  

P
age 146

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=GJsmCanh_wc&feature=emb_title


 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 21 of 42 

Strategic aim 5: Integration, and training and workforce development 

Strategic objectives What we have achieved Focus for 2020 – 21 

Objective one 

Ensure the training strategy 

includes mechanisms to 

review the impact and 

effectiveness of training. 

Learning and development strategy 

The Pan Sussex Learning and Development Strategy 

2019 – 22 provides an overarching framework for adult 

safeguarding training and workforce development 

across Sussex.  The strategy seeks to create shared 

learning opportunities and analysis of outcomes from 

SARs and multi-agency audits.   

The focus for 2019 – 22 will be on the following areas: 

 Managing high risk cases. 

 Staff confidence and resilience. 

 Communication and co-ordination between 

agencies. 

 Working with families. 

 Work is planned over the next year to 

review and strengthen the strategy, and 

develop more effective mechanisms for 

sharing learning and training opportunities. 

Objective two 

Ensure the workforce is 

equipped to support adults 

appropriately where abuse 

and or neglect is suspected. 

Multi-agency safeguarding training 

The SAB continues to deliver a comprehensive range of 

multi-agency safeguarding training.  This has continued 

to evolve over 2019 – 20 in response to learning 

identified from SARs and multi-agency audits. 

Details of training provided is covered in this report, 

under ‘Our training and development’. 

 As a recommendation in the Adult B SAR 

action plan, the SAB will hold a conference 

to highlight key areas of learning, including 

professional curiosity, trauma-informed 

practice and managing complex cases.   

The conference was originally planned to 

take place in the autumn of 2020 but has 

been delayed due to coronavirus.  It is now 

planned to take place early in 2021. 

 

P
age 147

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/sussex-learning-and-development-strategy-2019-2022/
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/sussex-learning-and-development-strategy-2019-2022/


 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 22 of 48 

Our priorities 2020 – 2021 
 

 

In addition to the areas of focus for 2020 – 21 outlined above, the East Sussex SAB 

has identified a number of other priorities to work towards over the next year. 

  

These include: 

 Building greater opportunities to share relevant learning for SABs in relation to 

Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) and the Learning Disabilities Mortality 

Review (LeDeR) Programme. 

This will be achieved by enhancing links between the SAR Subgroup and these 

service areas, sharing published reviews and learning briefings, and utilising 

opportunities for shared learning events and conferences. 

 Evaluating the impact of the Financial Abuse Strategy 2017 – 20, including 

consideration of new emerging scam activity which has arisen as a direct result 

of coronavirus. 

 Continuing to follow-up actions from a multi-agency audit considering young 

people at risk of exploitation.  

This will include looking at how to strengthen mechanisms across children’s 

and adult services to identify risks and support this cohort of people, and 

assessing whether there are any gaps in provision within transition cases. 

 Making links with the Rough Sleepers Project Co-ordinator to ensure the 

safeguarding needs of rough sleepers are met. 

 

 

Impact of coronavirus on safeguarding adults  
 

The outbreak of Covid-19 in March 2020 led to unprecedented challenges for the 

whole country, but also created a number of specific issues for safeguarding adults, 

including concerns relating to: 

 An increase in Covid-19 related scams.  

 A reduction in the number of safeguarding concerns being raised with the local 

authority during the lockdown period.   

 An increase in instances of domestic abuse, along with a reduction in formal 

reports to the police. 

 The impact on people’s mental health and an anticipated increase in suicides. 

 The impact upon the workforce. 

Page 148

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/financial-abuse-strategy-2017-2020/


 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 23 of 48 

 A national increase in deaths of adults with learning disabilities during the 

pandemic and more widely within the residential and nursing home sector.  

 

Over the next year, the East Sussex SAB will ensure any lessons relating to 

safeguarding adults during the Covid-19 crisis are learnt.  The SAB will consider what 

work is required to understand the nature of the impact of Covid-19 and lockdown on 

safeguarding activity.  The SAB will also continue to consider any formal guidance 

released by the government in relevant areas. 

 

It is anticipated that SABs may experience a rise in SAR referrals relating to Covid-

19, and consideration is being given as to how SABs can manage this activity in a 

proportionate way, joining up with other Boards where possible around shared 

themes and areas of learning.   
  

Page 149



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 24 of 48 

Our training and development 
 

SAB multi-agency training programme 
 

As practitioners in the field of safeguarding are dealing with increasingly complex and 

challenging cases, the benefits of multi-agency training are significant, and create 

opportunities for increased collaboration and partnership, along with improved 

understanding of different roles and responsibilities. 

 

The SAB has continued to work closely with colleagues from the Training and 

Workforce Development Subgroup to develop and deliver multi-agency training 

opportunities across the networks of the SAB and the East Sussex Safeguarding 

Children Partnership (ESSCP).  The content of our training programme is linked to 

our priorities and has evolved to respond to the learning stemming from multi-agency 

audits and Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs).  Over this last year our training has 

included the following workshops:   

 Modern slavery and human trafficking. 

 Adopting a whole family approach to domestic abuse and promoting safety. 

 Mental Capacity Act 2005: A multi-agency approach to complex cases. 

 Self-neglect. 

 Coercion and control. 

 

Adult Social Care & Health (ASCH) runs additional safeguarding training, including e-

learning and face-to-face courses, which all SAB agencies can access.  All our 

courses can be booked via the East Sussex Learning Portal. 

 

The SAB and ASCH safeguarding training programme remains popular and, in this 

financial year, over 1,500 representatives from 22 different agencies have accessed 

the training. 

  

With the outbreak of coronavirus in March 2020, all face-to-face training was 

postponed.  During the early stages of the next financial year, the SAB will be looking 

at new ways in which training can be delivered. 

 
 

Page 150

https://eastsussexlearning.org.uk/


 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 25 of 48 

Our learning 
 

Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) 
 

SABs have a statutory duty under the Care Act to undertake Safeguarding Adults 

Reviews (SARs).  This is when: 

 An adult dies as a result of abuse or neglect (including death by suicide), 

whether known or suspected, and there is concern that partner agencies could 

have worked more effectively to protect the adult.  

 An adult is still alive but has experienced serious abuse or neglect, and there is 

concern that partner agencies could have worked more effectively to protect the 

adult. 

 

SABs can undertake reviews in any other circumstance where an adult has care and 

support needs. 

 

The purpose of having a SAR is to consider any lessons to be learnt from the 

circumstances of the case regarding: 

 the ways in which professionals and agencies work together to safeguard 

adults, 

 review the effectiveness of procedures, and  

 highlight good practice. 

 

The purpose of a SAR is to determine what the agencies involved in the case might 

have done differently that could have prevented harm or death.  It is not an enquiry 

into how a person died, nor is it to apportion blame; but to learn from such situations, 

and to ensure that any learning is applied to future cases to reduce the likelihood of 

similar harm occurring again. 

 

The Sussex SAR Protocol aims to ensure a consistent approach across Sussex to 

the process and practice of undertaking SARs that follow both statutory guidance and 

local policies. 

  

During 2019 – 20, the East Sussex SAB considered four new SAR referrals involving 

a range of adults with differing care and support needs, including self-neglect, 

substance misuse and working with multiple complex needs.  In addition, decisions 

regarding two referrals received in the previous year, 2018 – 19, were confirmed 

during 2019 – 20.  In all six cases, decisions were made that the case did not meet 

the statutory criteria for carrying out a SAR under Section 44 of the Care Act, and the 

SAB was satisfied that appropriate learning had been identified through other 

mechanisms, such as Single Agency Reviews.  

Page 151

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/sussex-sar-protocol/


 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 26 of 48 

Whilst no new SARs were commissioned over this last year, work continued on the 

two SARS that commenced in 2018 – 19, and the SAB published the report for SAR 

Adult B in February 2020.  Another SAR in relation to Adult C is due to be finalised 

later in 2020, and a summary of this review will be included in next year’s annual 

report. 

 

SAR – Adult B 
 

This SAR was initiated in response to the death of a 94-year-old woman in 

September 2017, referred to in the report as Adult B. 

  

The review evaluated multi-agency responses, and examined the support the 

professionals involved in the case had provided, to establish what lessons could be 

learnt. 

 

Adult B died in hospital of natural causes but, when admitted, was found to have 26 

unexplained injuries including a fractured nose and jaw, as well as old and new 

bruising to her face, arms and legs.  She was diagnosed with sepsis and pneumonia 

shortly after her arrival in hospital and she died eight days later.  The woman had 

been living firstly with her grand-daughter and then with her son and his family.  They 

were providing most of her day-to-day care but with support from privately arranged 

care workers and community nurses. 

 

The SAR was led by an Independent Reviewer and examined the following areas: 

1. How effectively issues of Adult B’s mental capacity and consent were 

addressed. 

2. Whether the historical concerns were sufficiently considered when agencies 

responded to individual incidents – particularly in 2017. 

3. Whether practitioners involved initially at the time of the 2017 injuries were 

sufficiently curious in their investigations of the injuries. 

4. Whether assessments undertaken understood the family dynamics and 

whether there was consideration of disguised compliance by the wider family 

in these assessments. 

 

This case highlighted that professionals can be too inclined to assess the needs and 

vulnerabilities of adults at face value.  Systems do not always allow them to 

understand the full historical and current context.  When this is coupled with a lack of 

curiosity, and a lack of confidence to challenge family members, it can leave 

vulnerable people at risk.  

 

On the back of the review, the SAB made a number of recommendations for how 

private care providers, community nurses, GPs, police and adult social care services 

should improve how they work together.  These included: 

 ensuring clients are seen privately and personally away from their families, and 

Page 152



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 27 of 48 

 better training for professionals working with complex cases, especially where 

there may be coercion and control. 

 

The review also questioned whether the arrangements for investigating adults’ 

deaths at the time, where abuse or neglect is suspected, were sufficient and asked 

for options to be scoped that reflect the procedures when a child dies. 

  

An action plan has been developed to implement these recommendations, and 

progress will continue to be monitored through the SAR subgroup and reported to the 

Board over the next few months. 

 

The full report, action plan and learning briefing for the Adult B SAR can be found on 

the East Sussex SAB website. 

 

Serious Case Review – Child T 
 

In June 2019, the East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership (ESSCP) 

published a Serious Case Review (SCR) in respect of a young man known as Child 

T.  Child T died in hospital at the age of 18 years and 6 months.  His death was 

associated with type 1 diabetes which he had developed as a child.  The ESSCP 

commissioned the review to look at the lessons that could be learnt about the way 

agencies work together to safeguard children and vulnerable young adults. 

  

The SCR identified important learning for the East Sussex SAB partner agencies, 

particularly concerning the areas of: 

 self-neglect, 

 mental capacity, 

 inherent jurisdiction, 

 coercion and control, and 

 transitions between children’s and adult services. 

 

The East Sussex SAB developed its own action plan to respond to the learning in 

these areas, and good progress has been made in taking these actions forward over 

this last year.  This has included reviewing multi-agency training programmes to 

include updated content on coercion and control.  Work is planned later in 2020 to 

carry out a workforce survey to evaluate how well the self-neglect procedures are 

applied in practice. 

 

The East Sussex SAB and ESSCP produced a joint learning briefing to summarise 

key learning in the case.  

 

The full Child T SCR report can be viewed on the ESSCP website. 

 

Page 153

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/adult-b-sar-published-february-2020/
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/child-t-serious-case-review-learning-briefing/
https://www.esscp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Child-T-SCR-Report-FINAL-25.06.19-5.pdf


 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 28 of 48 

Multi-agency audits 
 

During 2019 – 20, the East Sussex SAB undertook two multi-agency audits, 

focussing on: 

 young people at risk of exploitation, and 

 multi-agency involvement in the safeguarding process. 

 

Young people at risk of exploitation 

 

The focus of this audit was to assess the effectiveness of multi-agency safeguarding 

responses to young people (aged 16-25) who had been identified as being at risk of 

exploitation.  The audit considered five cases where safeguarding concerns had 

been raised in the period 1st April 2018 – 31st March 2019, and there had been 

concerns about exploitation including sexual exploitation and criminal exploitation 

such as cuckooing, county drug lines or modern slavery.  All the individuals involved 

were aged 16-25 and two were under 18 at the time of the safeguarding concern.  

 

Specifically, the audit considered the following points: 

 The timely identification of risk of exploitation. 

 The effectiveness of multi-agency working to reduce risk. 

 Making Safeguarding Personal and empowerment. 

 How potential barriers to engagement were recognised and addressed. 

 Information sharing between children’s and adult services. 

 

The audit group comprised representatives from Adult Social Care & Health (ASCH), 

Children’s Services, Sussex Police, East Sussex NHS Clinical Commissioning 

Groups (CCGs), Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SPFT), East Sussex 

Healthcare NHS Trust (ESHT), National Probation Service, Change, Grow, Live 

(CGL) and the Salvation Army Housing Association (SAHA). 

  

The audit identified a number of strengths and examples of good practice as well as 

some areas for improvement. 

What is working well? 

 In many cases, professionals demonstrated effective multi-agency working and 

good practice in relation to information sharing and ensuring a timely response. 

 Application of a Making Safeguarding Personal approach was evident in 

several cases 

 Several cases reflected understanding of the impact childhood trauma can have 

in later life and of the importance of using trauma-informed practice. 

Page 154



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 29 of 48 

 Professional curiosity was demonstrated in many cases, not making 

assumptions and triangulating information from different sources to gain a 

better understanding of an individual’s situation. 

 Good knowledge and application of the Care Act and Mental Capacity Act 

principles. 

What can we improve? 

Raising awareness of the different forms of exploitation that come under the abuse 

type of modern slavery, which can include cuckooing and county lines. 

 Greater consistency of information sharing across agencies to support effective 

communication.  This was particularly lacking in terms of communication with 

primary care. 

 Greater understanding of how involvement in substance misuse and drug debt 

can increase risks of exploitation.  

 The effectiveness of current processes to identify, manage and communicate 

risks for young people approaching their eighteenth birthday.   

 Multi-agency involvement in developing safeguarding plans could be improved.  

The cases reviewed reflected that ASCH often does not clearly document which 

agencies it has informed or shared the safeguarding plan with. 

 

An action plan is in place to address the areas for development, and this will be taken 

forward during 2020, with progress being monitored through the PQA subgroup. 

 

A learning briefing has also been published to summarise the outcomes from this 

audit. 

 

Multi-agency involvement in the safeguarding process 

 

One of the recommendations from the Adult B SAR was that the SAB should:  

 

‘Undertake a sample audit of general agency involvement in the safeguarding 

process, including invitation and attendance at safeguarding meetings and 

receipt of minutes of such meetings.  This is to inform the development of 

robust mechanisms that ensure appropriate representation at safeguarding 

meetings, information sharing if attendance is not confirmed, and secure 

electronic communication’. 

 

The purpose of the audit was to:  

 Assess the effectiveness of multi-agency involvement and communication at 

key stages of the safeguarding enquiry process.  

Page 155

https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/young-people-at-risk-of-exploitation-learning-briefing/


 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 30 of 48 

 Assess the effectiveness of current mechanisms to manage safeguarding 

meetings, including how agencies follow-up invitations and achieve clear 

outcomes.  

 Assess compliance with existing policies, procedures and guidance. 

 Identify gaps and areas for development. 

 Identify examples of best practice with a view to sharing and replicating.   

 Recommend actions or improvements to practice and procedures.  

 

In view of mutually relevant themes, it was agreed that this audit would be conducted 

jointly between the Brighton & Hove and East Sussex SABs.  An audit meeting took 

place in February 2020.  The outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic in March has 

affected the SAB’s ability to consult with partner agencies to finalise the report and 

develop an action plan, but there are plans to progress this later in 2020, and a 

summary will be provided in next year’s annual report. 

 

Learning from complaints 
 

All complaints about our safeguarding processes are taken seriously, as they help us 

to learn and improve how we do things in the future. 

 

The total number of complaints recorded for Adult Social Care & Health (ASCH) for 

2019 – 20 was 427.  Of these 21 related directly to safeguarding, this is 5% of the 

total complaints received. 

 

In addition to these 21 complaints, there were 11 other complaints that have other 

primary classifications but appear to have a safeguarding element. 

 

This compares to 18 complaints and four MP or councillor enquiries in 2018 – 19. 

 

The 21 complaints received can be broken down as shown in this diagram: 

 
As a result of a complaint about inter-familial abuse, ASCH took comprehensive 

action to improve Adult Social Care staff’s knowledge and awareness of inter-familial 

domestic abuse, including:  

 Arranging six additional two-day training sessions for ASCH staff on the whole 

family approach to domestic abuse. 

0 upheld
2 no 

outcome 
recorded

3 partially 
upheld

16 not 
upheld

Page 156



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 31 of 48 

 A further review of the domestic abuse training offer and action plan. 

 Creating a register to track the staff who have completed domestic abuse 

training and those who need to attend. 

 A review of the Sussex Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures to ensure 

they provide clear and robust guidance on safeguarding and domestic abuse. 

 

 

  

Page 157



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 32 of 48 

Our data 
 

The Care Act 2014 sets out our statutory duties and responsibilities for safeguarding 

adults including the requirement to undertake enquiries under section 42 of the Act.  

Below is a summary of key safeguarding activity during 2019 – 2020 for both 

concerns raised and enquiries undertaken by East Sussex County Council Adult 

Social Care & Health (ASCH). 

 

As a consequence of the Coronavirus pandemic and the subsequent pressures this 

has placed on local authorities, NHS Digital have extended the deadlines for the 

Safeguarding Adults Collection (SAC) 2019 – 20.  As such the 2019 – 20 data 

included in this report may be subject to slight variations from what will be included in 

the final SAC return.  Any additional updates will be added to this annual report as an 

addendum at a later date. 

  

Analysing safeguarding data 
 

The number of safeguarding contacts has decreased from 5,532 in 2018 – 19 to 

5,033 in 2019 – 20, which is a change of 9.9%.  

 

 

 
Of the total contacts received in 2019 – 20, 4,484 (86%) were considered 

safeguarding concerns.  The number of enquiries completed has increased by 69% 

1441

1342
1420

1231

1313
1278

1239

1203

1000

1050

1100

1150

1200

1250

1300

1350

1400

1450

1500

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Safeguarding contacts received by quarter 18/19 
and 19/20

18/19

19/20

1,998

Enquiries 
completed

2,014

Enquiries 
started

4,484 
Safeguarding 

Concerns

5,033

Contacts 
received

Page 158



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 33 of 48 

when compared to 2018 – 19 (increasing from 1,185 to 1,998). This increase can be 

attributed in part to changes made to the social care recording system in 2019 which 

has led to improvements in capturing safeguarding enquiries more accurately. 

  

Note - The figure for completed enquiries is not a proportion of the figure given for 

enquiries started as some completed enquiries would result from concerns received 

prior to 2019 – 20, and correspondingly some enquiries started in 2019 – 20 would 

still be ongoing at the end of the financial year. 

 

Types of abuse 
 

 
 

In 2018 – 19, the most common form of abuse reported was neglect followed by 

psychological and then financial abuse.  In 2019 – 20, neglect is still the most 

common type of abuse with 36% of all enquiries undertaken comprising, at least in 

part, neglect.  

 

Financial abuse is now the second most common form of abuse reported, followed 

by psychological abuse, accounting for 25.4% and 25.0% respectively of the 

enquiries completed.  

 

Note - The total types of abuse will exceed the total completed enquiries as some 

enquiries involve multiple types of abuse. 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Neglect and Acts of Omission

Financial or Material Abuse

Psychological Abuse

Domestic Abuse

Physical Abuse

Sexual Abuse

Self-Neglect

Organisational Abuse

Modern Slavery

Discriminatory Abuse

Types of abuse as %

Page 159



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 34 of 48 

 
 

The most significant proportional differences since 2018 – 19 are: 

 A 10% decrease in cases of neglect from 46% to 36%. 

 A 6% increase in domestic abuse from 13% to 19%. 

 A 4% increase in self-neglect cases from 3% to 7%. 

 

This continues to evidence that supportive measures in relation to these specific 
areas of abuse are required to help work with individuals to manage the risk posed to 
them by others.  East Sussex has a much older population profile than the country as 
a whole with 26% of the population being aged 65 plus1.  This means that there are 
an increased number of individuals who will have, or will develop, care and support 
needs. 
 

                                            
1 Data extracted from East Sussex in Figures, June 2020 

46%

18%

13%

3%

36%

21%
19%

7%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Neglect and Acts of
Omission

Physical Abuse Domestic Abuse Self-neglect

Notable changes in proportion of abuse types

18/19 19/20

Page 160



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 35 of 48 

 

Locations of abuse 
 

 
 

As in previous years, the most common reported location of abuse is in the adult at 

risk’s own home (53%).  This is an increase from 43% in 2018 – 19.  The second 

most common location continues to be care homes, accounting for 26%.  This is a 

decrease from 36% in 2018 – 19.  

 

Abuse in residential homes has reduced from 22% to 17% of all reported 

abuse whilst cases in acute hospitals have decreased from 6% to 3% of all cases. 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

own home

care home residential

care home nursing

Community setting

other

hospital acute

community service

hospital mental health

hospital community

Location of abuse as a % of total

Page 161



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 36 of 48 

 
 

Source of risk 
 

Of the 1,998 enquiries completed in this financial year, in 61% of those enquiries, the 

source of risk was known to the adult (up from 50% in 2018 – 19). 

 

In 51% of these cases, the source of the risk was either the adult’s partner or another 

family member. 

 
 

In 8% of cases, the source of risk was not known to the adult (down from 10% in 

2018 – 19) and in the remaining 31% of cases, the source of risk was social care 

staff, a decrease from 42% in the previous year. 

 

150 source 
of risk not 
known to 
the adult

1221 source 
of risk 

known to 
the adult

627 source 
of risk 

Social care 
support

Page 162



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 37 of 48 

Impact on risk  
 

In 2019 – 20, in 84% of enquiries there was an identified risk to the adult and 

action was taken.  In 90% of these cases, the risk was either reduced or removed 

completely.  This is a slight decrease from 93% in 2018 – 19.  

 
 

It should be acknowledged that it is unlikely that risk will be reduced or removed in 

100% of cases, as individuals may exercise choice and control over the steps taken 

by authorities to mitigate the risk.  A challenging aspect of safeguarding work is 

ensuring that the wishes of adults with capacity are respected when this results in 

risks remaining. 

 

From safeguarding enquiries completed in which a risk was identified, the proportion 

of cases where risk remains has increased from 7% to 10%. 

 

Support for adults at risk who lack capacity to make informed 

decisions 
 

Making Safeguarding Personal is a key focus for the Board. We aspire that people 

are able to express their wishes wherever possible and that safeguarding work 

strives to support desired outcomes.  This approach requires appropriate support to 

those who may lack the mental capacity to make safeguarding decisions for 

themselves.  This support can be provided informally for example by a family 

member or friend, or through advocacy services.  In East Sussex the advocacy 

services in 2019 – 20 were provided by POhWER. 

 

Page 163



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 38 of 48 

 
 

In East Sussex, 93.9% of all adults who lacked capacity received support, either by 

family or friends or via a referral to POhWER for advocacy support. 

 

 

Outcomes achieved through safeguarding 
 

In 2019 – 20, 87% of adults were asked about their desired outcomes, a slight 

increase on 82% in 2018 – 19. 

 

 
 

A review of cases where outcomes were not asked found that these were all cases 

where the adult lacked capacity to make decisions in relation to the enquiry. 

 

In 2019 – 20, of those who expressed a desire for specific outcomes, in 93% of 

cases those outcomes were either fully or partially met.  This is the same percentage 

as for 2018 – 19. 

 

77%

10% 11%

2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Yes asked and
outcomes expressed

Yes asked but no
outcomes expressed

not asked don’t know/ not 
recorded

Desired outcomes expressed

Page 164



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 39 of 48 

 
 

It is acknowledged that there will always be cases where outcomes will not have 

been achieved, for example, where desired outcomes are beyond the remit and 

control of the enquiry, or where the situation has changed from the initial desired 

outcomes that were recorded. 

  

Safeguarding data from partner agencies 
 
The SAB through the Performance Quality and Audit (PQA) subgroup monitors and 
evaluates safeguarding performance across partner agencies and ensures this links 
to service improvement.  A multi-agency data set report is reviewed by the PQA 
subgroup twice a year.  A summary of the data provided by some of the SAB partner 
agencies for 2019 - 20 is provided below. 
  

East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service (ESFRS) 
 

The chart below shows the number of home safety visits conducted by ESFRS in the 

last four quarters, including the number of visits conducted as a result of referrals 

from East Sussex ASCH.  These visits are one element of the ESFRS targeted 

prevention work providing support to the most vulnerable members of the community 

who may be more at risk of having a fire in their home. 

Fully Achieved, 51%Partially Achieved, 
41.8%

Not Achieved, 7.2%

Percentage of adults whose expressed outcomes 
were met 2019-20

Fully Achieved

Partially Achieved

Not Achieved

Page 165



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 40 of 48 

 
 

The reduction in number of home safety visits completed in the second half of the 

year is a part of an annual pattern of peaks and troughs and also a tendency for 

fewer visits to be completed during the festive season. This year the numbers of 

home safety visits towards the end of quarter 4 were further affected by the outbreak 

of Coronavirus.  

 

In undertaking home safety visits ESFRS often identify safeguarding concerns, which 

they report to the local authority via a coming to notice (CTN) form.  During 2019 – 20  

there was a total of 313 CTNs raised with East Sussex ASCH, relating to a range of 

safeguarding and care and support issues, including self-neglect, hoarding, 

cuckooing, domestic abuse, financial abuse, substance misuse concerns, mental 

health concerns and fire risks, including unattended cooking and smoking.   

 

Sussex Community NHS Foundation Trust (SCFT) 
 

SCFT delivers adult community health services to the High Weald Lewes and 

Havens area of East Sussex.  Professionals work in multi-disciplinary teams linking 

closely with health and social care partners.  SCFT professionals might visit patients 

in a care home, a variety of healthcare settings or within the patient’s own home. 

Their work includes supporting people with complex long-term health conditions, 

rehabilitation following hospital admission and assessing urgent health care needs.  

 

While supporting a patient with their health needs, professionals may identify a 

safeguarding concern and report this to the local authority.  In 2019 – 20, the type of 

abuse most commonly reported by SCFT was neglect, followed by self-neglect and 

then domestic abuse.  

 

Q1 19-20 Q2 19-20 Q3 19-20 Q4 19-20

Home safety visits 1814 1814 1814 1577

Home safety visit referrals from
ASCH

288 313 308 281

0

500

1000

1500

2000

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

vi
si

ts

ESFRS Home safety visits in East Sussex 
April 2019 - June 2020 

Page 166



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 41 of 48 

  

 

 

These three types of abuse saw the largest increase in safeguarding concerns raised 

in 2019 – 20 upon the previous year. Concerns raised for neglect increased by 58%, 

concerns for self-neglect increased by 360% and concerns for domestic abuse 

increased by 450%. The increase in safeguarding concerns is influenced by a 

number of factors and is considered a positive change evidencing SCFT compliance 

of Care Act duty in relation to adult safeguarding concerns. In 2019 - 20 SCFT 

focussed on raising staff awareness and understanding of domestic abuse and the 

increase in this year’s figures reflects an increase in recognition of this form of abuse. 

In 2019 – 20 there were no concerns raised for Discriminatory Abuse, Sexual Abuse 

or Modern Slavery.  

 

Sussex Police 
 

The following chart shows the number of reported crimes per category of abuse, by 

each quarter. The overall numbers of crimes were lower in quarter 3 and quarter 4, 

but the ratio of abuse types has remained roughly stable through the year. 

 

 
  

0
6

1

57

23

1 1
11

0 0
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Safeguarding concerns raised by SCFT 2019-20 by type of 
abuse 

23

276

7

32

1311

821

339

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

Discriminatory

Financial

Institutional

Neglect

Physical

Psychological

Sexual

Crimes by abuse type 2019-20

Page 167



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 42 of 48 

Operation Signature 

 

Operation Signature is the operational response of Sussex Police, which identifies 

and supports vulnerable, and often elderly, victims of fraud of all types.  The types of 

fraud include people that have been contacted by telephone, email, letter and on the 

doorstep.  Two specialist Operation Signature case workers working across Sussex 

have supported 850 victims of fraud during 2019 – 20. 

 

 

 
 

 

In East Sussex, the overwhelming majority of cases, 88%, were elderly people: 24% 

of victims were 60 – 74 years old and 64% of victims were over 75 years old. 

  

In 2019 – 20, the number of identified cases in East Sussex was 791, an increase of 

43% on the previous year’s figures.  525 cases were in the Eastbourne, Lewes and 

Wealden area and 269 in the Hastings and Rother area2.  

 

In East Sussex 61% of the cases identified by Operation Signature involved the 
criminals contacting victims by telephone, with 21% being targeted by doorstep 
crime. 
 

                                            
2 Population figures extracted from East Sussex in Figures, June 2020  

75+
64%

60-74
24%

30-59
9%

0-29
3%

AGE GROUPS AFFECTED BY FRAUD AS % OF TOTAL  

75+

60-74

30-59

0-29

Page 168



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 43 of 48 

 
 

DASH Referrals 

Incidents of Domestic Abuse are subject to a risk assessment using a Domestic 
Abuse, Stalking and Harassment (DASH) checklist. An officer, with the victim, 
assesses the level of risk using this checklist and will take initial steps to manage 
identified risks.  Sussex Police Safeguarding Investigations Unit (SIU) refer all cases 
of domestic abuse involving an adult with care and support needs to Adult Social 
Care & Health (ASCH). This checklist provides information on whether the risk to an 
individual is high, medium or standard.   

The chart below shows the number of DASH referrals made by Sussex Police to East 
Sussex ASCH for each quarter in 2019 - 20 by risk level. 

 

 

59%

20%

4% 4% 3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

telephone doorstep social media letter email

Contact method by prevalence

Operation Signature cases by method of contact 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

High 102 98 70 59

Medium 725 677 715 690

Standard 1554 1822 1566 1437

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000

DASH referrals by risk level per quarter 2019-2020

Page 169



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 44 of 48 

The number of standard level risk referrals increased in quarter two and then 
dropped back to the same level as in quarter one. By comparing the total number of 
DASH referrals during 2019 - 20 with the same data for 2018 -19, as shown in the 
chart below, we can see that in 2019 - 20 there has been an overall increase of 9%.  

 

Vulnerable Adult at Risk (VAAR) referrals 

Sussex Police submit VAAR referrals to ASCH in relation to safeguarding adults 
concerns they identify.  

The chart below shows the number of VAAR referrals made by Sussex Police by 

quarter for the year 2019 - 20, with comparison to the same data for the previous 

year.  Overall there has been a 36% increase in the number of VAARs this year upon 

last year, with the biggest variation in quarter one of 2019-20 with a 63% increase 

upon figures for 2018-19. 

 

 
 

 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

18-19 2200 2320 1984 2214

19-20 2381 2597 2351 2186

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000
DASH referrals by quarter 2019-2020 and 2018-2019

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2018-19 1292 1660 1673 1873

2019-20 2111 2292 2251 2187

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

al
s

VAAR referrals per quarter 2019-20 and 2018-19

Page 170



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 45 of 48 

Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (SPFT) 
 

The table below shows the number of concerns, by abuse type, that have been 

raised by SPFT staff (that the SPFT safeguarding team has been made aware of) 

through either email or incident reporting or by receiving information from mental 

health teams in ASCH. 

 

 

 
 

The following table shows the number of safeguarding concerns raised by SPFT over 

2019 – 20, including those that progressed to a safeguarding enquiry. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sexual abuse, 
14%

Physical abuse, 
24%

Psychological and 
emotional abuse, 

10%

Neglect and acts 
of omission, 22%

Domestic 
abuse, 17%

Financial and 
material abuse, 

13%

Safeguarding concerns by types of abuse 2019-20

72 70

58

42

16
22

15 15

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

SPFT safeguarding concerns including those resulting in 
enquiries by quarter 2019-20 

Safeguarding concerns

S42 enquiries

Page 171



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 46 of 48 

South East Coast NHS Ambulance Service (SECAmb) 
 

The chart below shows the number of safeguarding concerns raised by SECAmb to 

ASCH during April to September 2019 compared to the second half of the year from 

October 2019 to March 2020.  There was a decrease of 5% in the number of referrals 

that SECAmb made over quarters three and four.  

 

 
 

In comparing the data from SECAmb for 2018 - 19 and 2019 - 20, there was a 12% 

increase in the number of safeguarding concerns raised to ASCH in the first half of 

2019 - 20 compared to the same period in 2018 – 19.  There was also another slight 

increase in safeguarding concerns being raised by SECAmb during the second half 

of this year compared to the same period in 2018-2019. 

 

  
 

 

720

730

740

750

760

770

780

790

800

Q1/Q2 Q3/Q4

Safeguarding Referrals from SECAmb to ASCH 2019 - 2020

Q1/Q2 Q3/Q4

2019/2020 788 748

2018/2019 701 723

640

660

680

700

720

740

760

780

800

Number of safeguarding referrals to ASCH 
per 6 months period of 2019 - 20 and 2018 - 19

Page 172



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 47 of 48 

The increase in safeguarding referrals is influenced by a range of factors. SECAmb 
have increased compliance rates for completion of safeguarding training, raised 
awareness across the organisation of the signs and symptoms of domestic abuse, 
leading to a 60% increase in referrals for domestic abuse across SECAmb. SECAmb 
have also improved how safeguarding risks are recorded and shared with key partner 
agencies. Other factors that may have influenced the rise in referrals are the fact that 
SECAmb increasingly are coming into contact with more patients and their families 
every year and an increased awareness across staff of the importance of multi-
disciplinary working.  
 
  

Page 173



 

 

East Sussex SAB Annual Report April 2019 – March 2020 Page 48 of 48 

 

Reporting a safeguarding concern 
 

 

No-one should have to live with abuse or neglect – it is always wrong, whatever the 

circumstances. 

 

Anybody can raise a safeguarding concern for themselves or another person.  Do not 

assume that someone else is doing something about the situation.  

 

You can raise a concern in the following ways: 

 

Phone: 0345 60 80 191 (8am to 8pm 7 days a week, including bank holidays) 

Email: Health and Social Care Connect 

Online: Via the form on the East Sussex County Council website 

 

Contact the police on 101 or in an emergency 999 

 

 

Find out more in our safeguarding leaflet and easy read version safeguarding leaflet. 

 

Page 174

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/contactus/emailus/email.aspx?n=Health+and+Social+Care+Connect&e=HSCC&d=eastsussex.gov.uk
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/socialcare/worried/report/
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/what-to-do-if-you-think-someone-is-being-abuse-neglected-or-exploited/
https://www.eastsussexsab.org.uk/documents/easy-read-safeguarding-leaflet/

	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting: 12 March 2020
	5 East Sussex Safeguarding Children Partnership (ESSCP) - Serious Case Reviews
	Appendix 1
	Learning from Reviews�Child T
	Introduction
	Child T
	Child T
	Learning areas
	Transition
	Persistent DNA/WNB and neglect
	Persistent DNA/WNB and neglect
	Self-neglect and capacity
	Plans and working together
	Plans and working together
	Conclusions
	Recommendations
	Recommendations


	6 Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) 2021/22
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 People Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - People Scrutiny Work Programme
	Appendix 2 - Forward Plan
	Plan


	8 Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report
	Appendix 1 - ESSAB Annual Report 2019 - 20 final


